10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

A e

GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT
AGENDA
MONDAY, JUNE 13, 2022
2:00 P.M.

Lambeau Field Atrium - MVP BOX 4039
Enter American Family Insurance Gate
Follow Signs to 4th Level

Call the Meeting to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approve/Modify Agenda

Request for Approval of the Minutes — March 28, 2022
Communications

April 15, 2022, Article RE: Bills Stadium

May 20, 2022, Article RE: Packers Ticket Waiting List

Article RE: Ashwaubenon Stadium District

May 26, 2022, Article RE: Number of Soccer Match Tickets Sold
Late Communications (if any)

moawp

Consideration of Bonny Emmer Sec. 893.80(1d)(a) and (b), Wis. Stats., Notice of Claim

Special Events & Economic Development Fund Update:
A.  Detail of Special Events and Economic Development Fund

B.  Request for Funds for NFL Draft — Deferred

Adjourn to closed session pursuant to Sec. 19.85(1)(e), Wis. Stats., for the purpose of
deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds,
or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons
require a closed session, to-wit: special counsel.

Return to Open Session

Consideration of Action, If Any, Regarding Closed Session Discussion

Consideration of Resolution 113 — Authorizing and Approving the Hiring of an Attorney to
Assist in Lease Negotiations

Financial Reports — March, April, and May 2022
Director’s Report

Other Matters Authorized by Law

Motion to Adjourn

If you need assistance, please contact Diane Roskom at 920-983-1699




GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT

Pursuant to Section 19.84, Wis. Stats., a meeting of the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football
Stadium District Board was held on Monday, March 28, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Chuck Lamine, Leah Weycker, Keith Lucius, Mark Graul, Kristen Johnson, and Sen.
Cowles
EXCUSED: Bill Galvin and Bill Vande Castle

ALSO PRESENT: Pat Webb, Ken Kaszubowski, Brian Dworak, Beth Ulatowski, Diana Ellenbecher,
Joanne Bungert, Chad Weininger, Ray Suennen, and media.

L. CALL MEETING 1O ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Lamine at approximately 2:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken. All Board members were present except Mr. Galvin who was excused, and Aaron
Popkey joined via phone.

3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Board recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
4,  APPROVE/MODIFY AGENDA
Mr. Webb handed out a page from an email he received detailing the special event funding requests.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY SEN. COWLES AND SECONDED BY KFEITH LUCIUS TO
APPROVE THE AGENDA. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

3. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - DECEMBER 13, 2021

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KRISTEN JOHNSON AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES 10
APPROVE THE MINUTES. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

6. COMMUNICATIONS

A.  February 14, 2022, Green Bay Press-Gazette Article “Lack of Support Ends Effort to Disband
Lambeau Field Stadium District”

Mr. Webb reported that article explained the end of the effort to disband the District, and he
feels the article speaks for itself.

B.  “Murphy’s Law” Articles RE: Miller Park Economic Impact

Mr., Webb explained these articles deal with Miller Park — one dealing with the whole economic
impact of stadiums and how to judge that. He thought it was interesting.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 2

The second article deals with how they may need some additional funds from the taxpayers to
continue operating Miller Park. One of the purposes of sharing this article is to explain the
ditferences in the structures of the agreements of the two districts. Miller Park put away enough
money to share in the expenses of the capital improvements of the stadium. This district is only
obligated to the extent that we have funds available. Both the operations and maintenance
account and capital improvements funds are based on what is available in the fund at the time
the Team requests the money. This district is only on the hook currently for $3 million of capital
improvements because that’s all that’s in the account. Every year the District collects money
based on a formula plus the ticket tax to determine how much is available for operations and
maintenance. He wanted to explain the differences between the two districts and why our
district is based on what’s available vs a shared cost.

Mer. Graul asked about the legislation. The article mentioned that there was a meeting and there
were some agreed to arrangements. Mr. Webb explained that Chair Lamine suggested in that
meeting that the District put more information on our web page. We will be adding our audits
and as soon as we get the scanner operational the whole agenda packet will be put on the web
site. It wasn’t about things that weren’t available to the Board but things that will now be more
available to the general public.

Chair Lamine added that the more conversations that took place it was understood that all the
information was available but this would enable the public to attain the information themselves.
He said that catching up and adding this information would take time but going forward it will
hopefully just become part of the process. Mr. Webb said the big issue is that the larger agenda
packets need to be scanned and they are working to get this done as soon as possible.

Sen. Cowles mentioned that even though this information will soon be available on line, it was
always available upon asking. He knows he was able to get all the information he’s ever asked
for and nothing was ever off record. Mr. Webb agreed and said there was always transparency.
Chair Lamine stated that anything that was included in the agenda packets was considered
public

Ms. Johnson asked Mr. Webb if anybody has ever made any open records requests for this
information. Mr. Webb said there were open records requests during the proposed legislation
change and the district provided bank statements and other things to Steffens office. Prior to
that we’ve had records requests for different things. The Team was involved in audits and we
provided all kinds of information. Every time there was a request for information the District
supplied it. Being part of government — that is just something that you do.

Ms. Weycher suggested that a statement be added to the website about requesting information
that isn’t available on line. Mr. Webb said they could also bring their laptops to meetings in the
future once the agendas are on line.

Chair Lamine mentioned there is a book that was distributed to board members and there’s a lot
of really good information in it. He uses it when questions arise and if he can’t answer them he
would call Mr. Webb also. He encourages all the board members to make use of this as well.

Ms. Weycher printed out the email that was sent and left it behind. She asked if all three things
will be dealt with on the website. Mr. Webb didn’t have the email. He confirmed with Ms.
Roskom that everything requested has been added to the website other than the agenda packet.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 3

Mr. Webb said the audit reports were always readily available. Chair Lamine appreciates the
efforts of everybody in putting this together.

He asked if there were any questions. There were none.

LATE COMMUNICATIONS (IF ANY)

There were no late communications.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KEITH LUCIUS AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES TO
RECEIVE THE COMMUNICATIONS AND PLACE ON FILE. A vote was taken. MOTION
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

7. SPECIAL EVENTS & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND UPDATE:

A.

Detail of Special Events and Economic Development Fund

Mr. Webb presented the fund statement and stated there is $687,000 available. This amount is
the only discretionary funds the District has. They are the only funds that can be used for the
District’s general operations or for economic development activities in the community such as
the WIAA tournament and various other things. When everybody talks about how much money
the District has — the only money the District has that is discretionary is the $687,000 plus
$100,000 annually for the sales tax that gets transferred from the escrow that was put away back
in 2015. Chair Lamine stated that $64,319 was tapped this year for District operations. Mr.
Webb agreed and stated that there was some funds for economic development activity.

Ms. Weycker asked if the District will have $80,000 at the end to work with. Mr. Webb said
the $80,000 is committed already and the $687,000 is what’s available now until we get
additional funds.

Sen. Cowles asked about the $64,000 for operations and if it would stay the same. Mr. Webb
said it would be tapped for attorney costs and additional staff time for lease negotiations. He
wasn’t sure about staffing changes and costs incurred. He thinks staffing should get done with
$100,000 but he can’t be sure.

Sen. Cowles asked about the requests for funding. Mr. Webb said these requests are for projects
committed to them long ago. He said the Board could approve to fund all of them or none going
forward. They could wait until 2025 to see what happens after that, or they can commit to the
end of these contracts to assure the returning events that the funding commitments will be
fulfilled. The worksheet says $102,000 but there’s really an additional $5,000 needed for sure
for the 2022 WIAA volleyball tournament. If the Board wants to commit to all the event funding
it would be $107,000 but it will come out past 2030. The Notre Dame football game is still
coming to Lambeau. Mr. Popkey will also be talking about Item 7 B and he feels the Packers
are committed to hosting special events every year which will help fill this coffer back up. He
said the District is still recovering from giving $1 million to the Resch Expo and then when the
Notre Dame game that was cancelled due to Covid, the fund entered into a holding pattern. The
four events that Discover Green Bay is looking for now are for events that the District has
consistently funded. They are good events that have helped the community and, as Mr. Webb

(/> -

Z,
e




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 4

mentioned earlier, the District has had a continuing commitment to those events. Ms. Ulatowski
from Discover Green Bay is present if the Board has any questions about the events.

Mr. Lucius clarified that those events are funded over multiple years. Mr. Webb agreed the
$21,000 amount in 2023 is the $15,000 for the WIAA tournament and $6,000 for the Forest
Lakes District event. There is also $31,000 for WAMO Darts/Pool over multiple years and
$15,000 for the WIAA tournaments. They are all laid out there over various years.

Mr. Graul asked what the District Board needs to act on today. Mr. Webb said Discover Green
Bay is asking for $107,000 but the Board can approve whatever they feel is appropriate. Chair
Lamine said the $107,000 would be a multi-year commitment but drawn annually. Mr. Webb
said they would be reported as committed but not spent on the fund detail to reserve the fund
balance for those events. It’s a way of putting money aside without spending it. Sen. Cowles
clarified that these requests do not draw down the fund. Mr. Webb said it would draw it down
but not the cash. The balance will be reduced by $107,000 and they will have only $580,000
remaining if you approve all the events till the end of their contracts. Sen. Cowles asked about
the next event in the bowl. Mr. Webb said Mr. Popkey was going to talk about a potential event
this summer. However, the Team would like to use the proceeds towards the NFL Draft. He
explained it would bring some good economic impact to the community and the draft would be
a huge economic impact. The District wants to keep events here for the community to fulfill its
mission of economic development. If the District can make the dollars work that’s what they
try to do. Mr. Graul asked if they needed to go in order for requests for the draft funds and other
events. Mr. Webb agreed they are different requests but somebody jumped ahead and he wanted
to answer those questions.

Chair Lamine said it might make it easier for the discussion on Item 7C after the discussion on
Item 7B. Mr. Webb and the Board agreed.

Request for Funds for NFL Draft

Mr. Webb said the Team is trying to secure the draft party that takes place at the end of April.
They were hoping to get it here for 2024 but as of today it went to Detroit. The Team would
like to see a commitment by as many local community organizations as possible to indicate to
the NFL that this community is 100 percent behind getting the draft here. We are one of the
community organizations they would like to see commit to the draft. The District’s way of
committing to that is giving the Team ticket tax on an event. Mr. Popkey will explain that if
they are able to hold an event here in the summer, he would like the Board to commit to using
those funds toward the draft for 2025 or 2026. Mr. Webb said if it goes beyond those years he
would reconsider the use of the funds because he doesn’t want to tie up those funds for too long.
He would like to use those funds for other purposes if the draft doesn’t happen. However, he
doesn’t feel there would be any other event that would benefit the community as much as the
draft.

Mr. Popkey said the Mr. Webb laid out the Team’s proposal as he would have for the draft
funds request. Mr. Popkey appreciated the opportunity to present this to the Board. He said
Mr. Murphy spoke about being confident enough and optimistic that Green Bay will have an
opportunity to host the draft. Discover Green Bay has also put out some statements about it’s
not a matter of being chosen but when. He said the impact would be $90 million which is
tremendous and it is very exciting to think of that coming to the area sooner rather than later.
With respect to the community’s commitment, the District’s special events funds is a key aspect




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 5

to a number of things, but the Team feels they want to reiterate the commitment to hosting the
event, It’s concerts, football games, and other types of events and he feels confident that after
moving past covid that these opportunities will be on the horizon soon. As Mr. Webb
referenced, along those lines, the Team feels very confident that they will host a major event
yet this year. Details are still being finalized but the Team is excited and he asked everyone to
stay tuned. With that event, the ticket tax that comes in would go into the fund and that fund
will continue to be boosted with more events. With respect to this item on the agenda and the
news about the draft, the Team will continue to work with the NFL to get the draft here. There’s
a large amount of information that gets relayed and put together for this process. They will
continue to have a dialogue with the NFL and they’ve learned they need to continue to have a
dialogue. They’ve been discussing the commitment of the community and part of that
commitment is the financial commitment and of course the Packers will be leading that with a
significant amount of money to go toward the hard costs of putting on an event like this.
They’ve been working with other supporters in the community which is a silent phase right
now. They felt this summer event is exactly the type of event that would be appropriate for the
economic development fund to support with the ticket tax that comes in. This would show the
wide support of the community for bringing the draft here. The ticket tax would be another
piece that would demonstrate that. The Team feels very confident they will get this event to
come to Lambeau and it would be very supportive to have the Board earmark that ticket tax
money and put that right toward the community’s bid to secure the draft. He asked the Board
to consider this. With respect to that event, they are hopefully going to put out more information
in the very near future.

Ms. Ulatowski of Discover Green Bay stated they worked really closely with the Packers to put
together the bid for the 2022 Draft and will continue to do so. It was disappointing to hear that
Detroit won the bid for 2024. Hosting a draft costs money and they are in full support of doing
whatever they can to bring the draft to Green Bay. It would be one of the largest events to take
place in Wisconsin. She wanted to make the Board aware of the fact that they will continue to

work on getting the draft here.

Mr. Webb asked about the $90 million of economic impact the draft would bring to the area.
He wanted to know how that amount compares to other events. She offered to look back at
those numbers. She said the setup to the event would be a month or so and that would affect
the impact as well. Not to mention the amazing exposure Green Bay would get.

M. Graul asked if the Board would earmark these dollars how much would that amount be and
what would it be used for. Mr. Popkey answered that the dollars are yet to be determined and
it’s a major event. All the details are still being finalized but it would be significant dollars —
well into the six figures. The concerts and games have been anywhere from $200,000 -
$300,000. Mr. Webb added that the McCartney concert generated about $300,000 and the LSU
game was $1 million. The Chesney concert ticket tax was $200,000 and Billy Joel was
$236,000. These amounts are in the summary. The Packers charged the full 10 percent ticket
tax for those events and the Stadium District gets half of that. Mr. Popkey agreed that the
amount will be determined but should be in that range of the concerts. He feels that would be
another great show of community support for the draft. He also feels the District’s fund will
grow again with future major events in the stadium. The ultimate commitment from the fund
will be discussed further.

Mr. Graul asked Mr. Popkey what the funds would be used for. Mr. Popkey said there are a
number of hard costs that go into the draft. These funds would go into that pool of costs for

"',;/61
S




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 6

putting on the draft — security, labor, etc. It would be similar to a major event like a festival or
convention.

Sen. Cowles asked about the timing of the Board’s commitment. Mr. Popkey said he
appreciated the opportunity to discuss this at meetings. He feels the upcoming meeting in June
should give more clarity on the upcoming event. At that time they could put together the more
formal ask for funds. Ms. Ulatowski agreed that the June timing would be fine. Mr. Webb
asked Mr. Popkey if he would agree that the funds request was only for the 2025 or 2026 draft
to limit the exposure of the District. Mr. Popkey agreed the District shouldn’t be expected to
hold the funds longer than that. He also reiterated that there will most likely be events held in
the bowl annually to help replenish the District’s fund.

Mr. Lucius asked if there were any legal concerns about setting up separate funding and
committing a significant amount for the draft. He also stated he does support the draft. Mr.
Webb said the District was created to be the landlord of Lambeau Field, but economic
development has been the core of the District’s mission.

Ms. Weycker asked if the draft would be in lieu of an event at the stadium. Mr. Webb said the
draft would be in April. Mr, Popkey said that would remain to be seen as far as how it lines up
with other events. The draft itself would be a tremendous undertaking and the Team sees it as
the most significant event the community has ever held and would be much greater than any
other event that takes place that year. Mr. Webb mentioned that if it happened in 2026 the Notre
Dame Badgers football game would still take place in the fall. If there would be a concert
scheduled for 2025 they certainly wouldn’t back out of holding both events that year. Mr.
Popkey said their goal is to have one major event a year but if the draft is scheduled to take
place on a year there wasn’t another event, that could be considered that one major event.

Ms. Weycker said the ask for the draft would be the full 10 percent and would limit the funds
of the District to provide funding for other events. Mr. Webb said the draft would have an
economic impact of $90 million. Ms. Weycker said that would only be one event. Mr. Webb
explained that there is an economic impact of $15 million for a Packer game and bring it forward
for inflation based on the fact that is a fairly old study and say it’s $20 million — the draft event
would be like four football games. It is beyond comprehension what the economic impact will
be. Since the area will never be able to host a Super Bowl, this is the next best thing this
community could get.

Chair Lamine asked what facilities they would see showcased as part of hosting the draft. Mr.
Popkey asked which ones would we not showcase. It’s a big event. Mr. Popkey said the campus
they envision would encompass the stadium and going west to Titletown and east to the Resch
Center and beyond that. They talked about downtown and City Deck, etc. There will be lots
of spillover events. In regards to the draft taking place in lieu of a stadium event, the fund is
used to attract economic impact events, and he agrees with Mr. Webb that this event would
accomplish that and then some. It would be a huge economic impact. Ms. Weycker asked how
long the event goes. She asked about the weekend rate. Ms. Ulatowski said that many people
come to town a month in advance for the draft. They are here for much longer than a weekend.
She estimated the smallest amount of days would be seven for a small group of people. The
majority would be here a month or six weeks. Mr. Webb said that would be the people putting
together the event. Ms. Ulatowski agreed. The rooms in Green Bay would be used primarily
for the NFL. They are able to do this and they have the rooms. It is a big event and she can’t

S




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 7

even begin to stress what an amazing event this would be for Green Bay and Wisconsin with
the exposure and notoriety.

Ms. Johnson asked if the Board needed to make a decision now or if it would be discussed in
June. Mr. Webb said they didn’t know until today that the 2024 draft was not coming here.
They will address this once they know what the event is that’s coming here in summer. They
can cap the amount they give for the draft. The motion is up to the Board as to what you wanted
to do. You could also ask them to come back once the event is finalized. Mr. Webb feels Mr.
Popkey wants to get the Board’s support for having the draft here and the sooner the District
gives that to them the sooner they can communicate that to the NFL. Chair Lamine asked when
the NFL makes their decision for the 2025 and 2026 draft. Mr. Popkey said it wouldn’t be soon
so the June discussion makes sense unless they were to come back and say they would make
these decisions in the next few months. He feels for the Team’s purposes, knowing they didn’t
get 2024 but are still in the mix for subsequent years, it’s good to line up these commitments.
Ms. Johnson feels more comfortable waiting until June when they get more information. She
feels the entire Board is in support of hosting the draft and it’s part of their mission. They don’t
have enough information now, and the District’s fund is really struggling because of Covid and
not having many events. She feels they need more information and time to think about it.

Ms. Weycker wanted to make a motion that the Board fully supports the draft and would look
at making a more final financial commitment when more information becomes available.

Sen. Cowles wanted to mention that they just found out they lost the 2024 draft and asked if
there’s a reason they didn’t win that bid and why the Team didn’t solicit the Board for money
for the 2024 draft. Mr. Webb reminded the Board that he told the Team if they had an event in
2021 he’d be happy to bring that request for funds to the Board, but an event never took place.
This was discussed at a meeting with the Team in early 2021, but they never came up with an
event and that’s why it wasn’t discussed at a Board meeting. Sen. Cowles agreed to wait until
the next Board meeting to decide and mentioned the diminishing budget and other requests for
funds. He wants more information on the upcoming event. Mr. Webb said that would be fine
now that the 2024 draft is gone.

Mr. Lucius would support doing this right now because it is a signature event for the area to
show the nation what Green Bay has to offer. He wanted to support it to get the draft for 2025
or 2026.

Chair Lamine said he likes win-win situations and he admitted he looks at this as a signature
event in terms of what we would be able to draw to the City of Green Bay. It would showcase
our unique story in the NFL. The opportunity to put that out there nationally is huge. He could
wait for a decision or decide now. The one thing worth discussing more would be the concerts
and the concern about the turf and what may happen during concerts. The Packers have renewed
interest in holding concerts and they have to commit to annual events because it has been proven
successful. He asked Mr. Popkey to expand on their commitment to holding annual events. Mr.
Popkey reaffirmed their commitment to going after shows every year. They’ve demonstrated
the ability to hold these events and now have dialogue with promoters and feel confident they
will have more shows at Lambeau Field.

Mr. Webb added another point. He mentioned that if the Board commits now that gives the
Packers incentive to hold an event this summer. Maybe that won’t make a difference and they
are far enough along to have the event but whatever incentive the Board gives them to have an

57



STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 8

event in the bowl may help. Chair Lamine added that if they don’t have an event there are no
funds to commit. He asked if there is some value in getting word out to the NFL earlier rather
than later as to additional significant support from the community by way of the Stadium
District. Mr. Popkey thinks that as they continue their discussions that are taking place right
now at the annual meetings in terms of showing that commitment. The Team is reminding them
that everything has been set in place and any further commitment they can state now is certainly
helpful. Even the positive discussion today is a move in that direction. He feels that even if the
summer event doesn’t take place at least they have started discussions with the Stadium District
Board. The Packers’ ask today is tied to the summer event being held and hopefully that
reaffirms that the intent was there. If there’s some motion today to express that commitment,
if there is an event, those types of things would be helpful with the NFL event. It all works

together.

Mr. Lucius asked the Board why there were hesitant. He stated if the event was held they could
commit the funds — if it wasn’t held there would be no commitment of funds.

Mr. Graul stated that if the Packers were here asking for $500,000 for the draft, he would
approve it. However, they are asking for an undisclosed amount for an undisclosed purpose at
an undisclosed time. He thinks the community is all in for the draft but if the Team comes back
in June he doesn’t think the Board will commit an undisclosed amount of money for an
undisclosed amount of time for an undisclosed date of an event — he’s not sure how that moves
the needle. He thinks the District needs specific amounts and details even if it’s just for planning
purposes. He feels committing themselves to something that doesn’t yet exist doesn’t seem
prudent. Ms. Johnson agrees and would echo what they’ve talked about in the past. Part of her
struggle is they don’t know what the summer event is and how much money it will be bringing
in to the community and they also don’t know what the others financial commitments are. They
are in support of the draft coming to the city but want to make sure they have money to continue
supporting other events and continue operating as they fought to do. She feels they are up
against a rock and a hard place. They don’t want to appear they are not supportive of the draft,
because they are, but want to maintain some funds to continue on.

Ms. Weycker did some math on the request that’s before the Board on the agenda. It looks like
15 days worth of hotel rooms for $107,000. She’s like to hear what numbers the Team is talking
about for the draft and the amount the District would be giving. If they are willing to give
$107,000 for 15 days of hotel nights, it’s hard to give to the draft without knowing the numbers.
It kinds of feels like when the District donated ticket tax for a concert. Mr. Webb said they gave
5% for a concert. Mr. Webb said the 5% went to the fund to pay for the event. There wasn’t
10% for the concert. Ms. Weycker asked if the request was for 10% of the draft. Mr. Webb
said it would be 10% for the summer event not the draft. He said they could delay this request,
but if they are uncomfortable with this they could limit the amount from the summer event to
go to the draft for 2025 and 2026. If you want to put a cap on the amount and you could limit
the years to 2025 and 2026. You have that option of making the motion any way you want or
you could delay it to the June meeting.

Ms. Johnson asked if the Team would have to come back to the Board again to ask about the
summer event. Mr. Webb said the summer event is the Packers event and it will be held. Ms.
Johnson asked about the ticket tax negotiation. Mr. Webb said if they want more than $300,000
and the Board puts that cap on the request, and it looks like it may draw more than $300,000
they would have to come back for more funds. Ms. Johnson asked if they would have to come
back if the Board doesn’t put a cap on it. Mr. Webb said they wouldn’t. He also thought they

57




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 9

should limit the request to the 2025 and 2026 draft and shouldn’t be chasing drafts out further
than those years at this time. With all the events the District can support between there and with
more concerts and a college football game even possibly a new lease, things will be different
after 2026. He would definitely limit the request to 2025 and 2026. If the Board feels like they
don’t want to give an unlimited amount of money they can put a cap on it. Ms. Johnson says
she would be more supportive of that idea but at this point she wouldn’t know where to start
with a monetary amount. She would like to see how much they feel it will cost to bring in the
draft and how much the Packers and other community supporters are spending. They would be
giving away money they don’t have that they don’t know about. It feels rushed and she wants
more information. She agrees with supporting the draft but wants to see more details.

Chair Lamine wanted to find an appropriate motion. One would be to show the Board’s support
for the ask and hosting the draft in Green Bay. Beyond that he could wait but feels it’s a large
enough impact and it’s a great opportunity for the area.

Mr. Graul asked if they need a motion of any kind today on this. Mr. Webb said the only motion
you would need is if they wanted to support the draft they would verbally support the draft
coming here in 2025 and 2026.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
SUPPORT THE DRAFT COMING TO GREEN BAY AND COMMIT TO FINANCIALLY
ASSISTING WITH THE DRAFT IN THE FUTURE.

Sen. Cowles said this is like a theme without any backing and asked if they would have to do
another motion down the road. Mr. Webb agreed the Team would bring back whatever event
will be held in the summer just like the concert when they asked. The first concert the District
accepted no ticket tax. The second, third, and fourth concert the District took 5% of the ticket
tax. The Team will have to come back with the specific event and ask for the ticket tax for that
event. They won’t know how much that money is, but the Team might be able to provide the
Board with the total cost of putting on the draft as Mr. Johnson requested. He said it will change
depending on how far out they will go. There are some ideas of what it takes to put on the draft
which is millions and millions of dollars. Also in June, they might be able to share with the
Board the other organizations that have already committed. You won’t know how much you’re
giving them because the ticket tax amount will not be known until people purchase tickets for
the event. Sen. Cowles said this motion would be conceptual without a lot of meaning and we
would still have to discuss it more at the next meeting. Mr. Webb agreed it would be taken up
again at the next meeting. Mr. Lucius feels they want to give the Packers the authority to tell
the NFL at the owners’ meetings they have another group backing the draft even if they don’t
know how much the District would be giving. He wants to give the Packers as much support
as they can for the draft. Chair Lamine feels it would be helpful in terms of their additional
fundraising efforts.

Chair Lamine asked if the Board had any other questions or discussion about the motion. There
were none.

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN AND MOTION CARRIED -6 AYES ~ 1 ABSENT.

Mr. Popkey thanked the Board for the discussion and is looking forward to bringing more
information forward and diving into further details at the June meeting. Chair Lamine added
that they could set a special meeting if they found it necessary or if there was change.

7




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28. 2022
Page 10

Request for Funds — Discover Green Bay

Mr. Webb reported that the $107,000 requested are for events the District has committed to in
the past. If they feel uncomfortable going all the way out with the funding requests they could
stop at 2025 or 2026 or just approve all the years. Ultimately, these are events the District’s has
been committed to and helped keep them coming back year after year. That’s why the requests
are every other year for some and every year for some. The WIAA will want to renegotiate
their contract and the District’s continued commitment will show we are supportive of that.

Chair Lamine asked if a shorter term commitment has any impact on Discover Green Bay’s
discussions for continuing these events. Mr. Ulatowski said it would depend on the event.
Forest Lakes is a January event that has been coming here for 12-13 years. The event grew
substantially over the last few years with 4,600 people. She has searched for another event for
that time of vear and there is not another group for those dates that would have that kind of
impact on the area. The hotels are empty at that time of year. It’s a great time to have a group
come to the area. They are looking for a 2-year commitment. The District’s funds are used for
shuttle busing because the event takes place at the KI Convention Center. So it is a citywide

event.

She discussed the WAMO dart and pool tournaments that are held in the Expo Hall. Darts is a
huge event with 4,000 people attending. WAMO Pool is a little bit smaller but still a great
event. These events rotate to different areas. Forest Lakes comes to our area every year but
Kalahari in Wisconsin Dells is courting them like crazy. There event would be under one roof
if held there so she’s worried about that one. WAMO Darts rotates and Kalahari hosts them as
well and would love to have them every year. Pool is a great group and they’re looking to come
here is 2026, 2028, and 2030.

She discussed the WIAA Girls Basketball and Boys and Girls Volleyball Tournaments. These
events are a great boost to the community. She feels that not providing funding for these years
they would probably start looking elsewhere. She added that WIAA is talking about holding
another WIAA event here as well and those talks are in the beginning stages. She said these
groups have been here a long time and they don’t want to lose them. She knows these are the
only groups they’ve requested funds for because they know the situation the District is in.
That’s why they only bring the most important ones forward. Mr. Webb said the Forest Lakes
group request would be for 2024 and 2025 — 2023 is already committed because they didn’t
have the event due to Covid.

Ms. Johnson asked if they need to approve all the events for the years requested would they be
guaranteed to get the events. Ms. Ulatowski said Forest Lakes would be guaranteed. Mr. Webb
said that WIAA would also be guaranteed. Ms. Ulatowski said the funds would help their cause
for the WAMO events. They are in the bidding process yet. They also like coming to Green
Bay. Chair Lamine asked which event has used the new Expo Hall. Ms. Ulatowski said WAMO
Darts used the new facility.

Mr. Graul asked about the fact that WAMO and Forest Lakes being recruited by Kalahari. He
asked if Kalahari offers incentives. Ms. Ulatowski said they always do. The biggest difference
is they offer everything under one roof and they can negotiate a cheaper rate for the rooms and
meeting space. Green Bay can’t do that, and the hotel rooms are a totally separate entity in
negotiations.




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 11

Mr. Graul asked what the funds are used for. Ms. Ulatowski said it went to facility costs to use
the Expo. Mr. Webb said one of the reasons the District started these incentives for bringing
events here was due to the competition with Wisconsin Dells. Ms. Ulatowski wanted to add
that the participants of these events are all over town. The girls’ basketball teams packed the
prom dress shops during the event. Mr. Graul asked about WIAA and how they lost their space
in Madison. Mr. Ulatowski said the boys basketball teams used the Kohl Center and the girls
were using the Fieldhouse or the Alliant Center. The Kohl Center was overwhelmingly too
large for the girls tournament. They offered the incentive of $25,000 for the first two years to
move here. Now the District sponsors the ticket incentive “Rush to the Resch”. Since they’ve
been here, they’ve enjoyed it. Mr. Graul asked if they need to keep offering the incentives if
they are entrenched here. Ms. Ulatowski said their costs are going up and other cities offer
incentives. Mr. Webb said they wouldn’t go away before 2025 if they discontinue the
incentives. The funding now brings in more attendance at the event. Each division gets a
$2,000 scholarship to the school that sells the most tickets. What the District is trying to do is
encourage more people to attend and make it a better event for the community. Without the
incentive tickets might drop by 5,000 or so for the event. Therefore, it wouldn’t be as great an
event for the community. The District’s funds don’t go to the WIAA like the first two years.

Mr. Graul thought that you would either come to girls basketball or not. It doesn’t feel like
something that people would make a trip to Green Bay for if your child isn’t participating in the
event. His concern is that historically these entities have been significant recipients of the
District’s funds already and wondered if there were more groups to come here to see it’s great
and to keep them coming back or if they just need to keep handing out money to the same

groups.

Ms. Ulatowski said they do have events that come back year after year. They would rather not
have to incentivize any of these groups but once this starts you have to follow suit or you don’t
get the business. It’s just part of the business now, unfortunately.

Mr. Lucius added that the WIAA tournaments were held in La Crosse last year because of Covid
and he’s worried about losing them. Chair Lamine is also intrigued by the potential of another
WIAA championship event here and maintaining the good relationship with them. He went to
one of the check presentation ceremonies and he was impressed. It’s a great event and it isn’t
just kids in the seats, it’s a lot of parents. In talking to the athletic directors, they are marketing
it and saying that more people attend because of the Rush to the Resch incentive.

Mr. Graul feels it’s a good event but wonders if it makes sense to keep incentivizing the same
groups every year. They obviously like coming here and he doesn’t feel they would move the
event to La Crosse. If they are considering these grants and the fund balance and the Packers
desire for draft funds, they might think about giving 10 years of welfare to organizations to keep
coming back.

Sen. Cowles asked if the District is the only entity that can help subsidize these things or if they
have other resources. Ms. Ulatowski said there are other groups they don’t bring funds requests
to the District for.

Ms. Johnson asked what other communities do that don’t have a Stadium District to ask for
funding. Ms. Ulatowski said they have other CVB’s with larger budgets — especially Wisconsin

o1/




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 12

Dells which is seven times more than Green Bay’s budget. Chair Lamine said the flexibility
other places have with the rooms incentives.

Sen. Cowles asked about the timing of these requests. Some stretch out all the way to 2028.
He wanted to know the timing need for the events. Mr. Webb said one goes out to 2030. He
feels Discover Green Bay is looking at negotiating a contract out that far for those events and
are looking for the District’s assistance. The money wouldn’t go to them until the year they are
needed. Sen. Cowles said they would have to hope they have enough funding. Mr. Webb said
they would reserve the funds. Mr. Graul looked at the funds. They have to pay for the District’s
operations out of the same fund and will continue going forward. He wondered about the
upcoming attorney fees as well. The $600,000 in the fund will be depleted quickly especially
if the Team wants the funds for the draft.

Mr. Webb said he doesn’t dispute the tightness of the budget. The summer event is a separate
request and it doesn’t mean all the future funds would go to the draft. The fund has enough to
get to 2026 and will begin to turn the corner and have more funds and hopefully something in
between and something this summer. Ms. Weycker said that would be helpful. Sen. Cowles
said the summer event funding would go to the Packers if they vote to do so.

Ms. Weycker said if the take off $20,000 to get through 2027 that would reduce it a bit. Ms.
Johnson asked which events need it the most. Ms. Webb said that if the District went through
2026 you’d be covering their ability to bring in two WAMO Darts and one WAMO Pool event
with the idea they’d come back for them afterwards if that would make them feel better. You’d
have the WIAA event through 2025. Ms. Johnson asked if they wanted to secure the WAMO
Pool contract through 2030. Ms. Ulatowski said that would be nice but they can only do what
they can do. Mr. Webb said this would be an option if they are not comfortable with the current
requests. There’s no right or wrong answer to these requests. Ms. Ulatowski agreed. He added
they are events that were funded in the past and have been relying on the funds. If they don’t
get the funds, some things may change after their contracts are up. He reiterated that the entire
amount doesn’t go out of the fund at once.

Chair Lamine said that typically they are working towards a 2023 concert event and those
discussions would be occurring this summer due to the timing in the past. One thought was if
they wanted to divide this request or program it out over a couple payments they might be in a
better position by next fall to ask Discover Green bay to come back. They would be taking a
risk for the long-term contracts.

Mr. Graul feels these monies are extra monies and that most communities don’t have a Stadium
District Board with an Economic Development Fund. Ms. Ulatowski said that most
communities answered yes and no. All CVB’s are run differently. Some get money from the
City, some from the County. It’s all different and Green Bay CVB isn’t like that. Mr. Graul
said it seems that from a strategic standpoint it would be nice to recruit other organizations to
Green Bay to see how awesome it is and then have them want to come back whether or not they
get the funding from the District. There may be value in trying to recruit different organizations.
Ms. Ulatowski understands that thought and realizing that if WAMO decided not to come back
it would be $1.2 million in economic impact for the restaurants, hotels, stores, gas stations. Mr.
Graul wondered if the funds can get an organization to come here with a $4 million impact. The
church event and using the funds for shuttles makes the most sense of all of the funding requests.
He’d like to vote on these requests separately. Sen. Cowles asked if these votes could be
delayed. Mr. Webb said it could be delayed but there will be no new information at the next

/4




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 13

meeting. Sen. Cowles said they might know about the summer event. Mr. Webb said they
won’t know how much money it will generate. You will only know what the event is and get
some idea of what the attendance would be. There’s no event here that’s taking place until
volleyball in November. They definitely need the $5,000 funding for that event because they
are already expecting that. That money isn’t put aside yet because of the timing of events. He
added that if the Board only wanted to approve $5,000 at this time — or wait till June that’s fine
too.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY LEAH WEYCKER TO APPROVE THE $5,000 FOR THE
WAMO STATE POOL TOURNAMENT FOR 2023.

Chair Lamine asked if the Board wanted to approve each item separately.

Mr. Graul wanted to know if the WAMO pool tournament was in 2024 or 2023. Mr. Webb said
the volleyball event isn’t listed and that’s the first event to be held.

Ms. Weycker withdrew her motion.

Mr. Webb explained each request in order. He asked what they wanted to do with the WAMO
Dart tournament for 2024, 2026, and 2028. They can approve some of it, all of it, or none of it.

Sen. Cowles wanted to address the potential concert. He asked if the District wanted to give
the Team all the ticket tax. Mr. Webb said that’s what the Team requested but you don’t have
to do that, Sen. Cowles said if the event brings in what the Chesney concert did it would be one
heck of a contribution. He also doesn’t know what other groups in the community would be
committing funds for the draft.

Mr. Webb said the Board can cap or set terms of any donation requests. They’ve already said
they want to delay the draft funding request until June when the Team has more information.
There’s no reason you couldn’t cap it at $300,000 and if it makes $350,000 you can’t keep the
$50,000. Ms. Weycker said they haven’t generated $300,000 on a concert yet so they would
commit more than they have. She said Mr. Webb is making it sound easy but they are working
with pretend numbers. Mr. Webb said they are working with pretend numbers until people are
sitting in the stadium. You’d have to work with percentages and caps. Chair Lamine asked if
there’d be some value in trying to split the contribution to super incentivize the Packers to have
an event in 2023 and some of the revenue for the draft would come from that event as well. He
doesn’t know how quickly they need the money for their proposal. Mr. Webb said that whatever
they do with the event in the bowl in 2022 will be discussed in June. If they have another event
in 2023 the Board can make the same determination at that time. They can decide how they
want to spend those funds at that time. None of these things are in a vacuum and they are all
nice events and the District has made a continuing commitment to some and other are new.
Obviously, the draft is a whole different thing. Right now what is before the Board is what to
do with these four events and Mr. Graul has asked for them to be taken separately. He wants to
start at the beginning and decide what they want to do with the event scoresheet for the WAMO
State Dart Tournament which is asking for $30,000 for the negotiations to bring it here for 2024,
2026, 2028 with an annual economic impact of $3.1 million per year. Sen. Cowles asked if they
could approve only one year. Mr. Webb said they could do whatever they want to do. Chair
Lamine asked Ms. Ulatowski if their agreement with WAMO was a 3-year agreement or a 1
year. They initially wanted a 2-year agreement and they asked about a 3-year agreement. It’s
all part of that negotiation. Bringing a group this size back year after year is easier to rebook

-1




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 14

business you already have than to go and try to find a larger piece of business or take it from a
different city. It’s extremely competitive. If you want to just approve 2024 they could go back
to the group and tell them they’d come back to talk about the future years and that doesn’t stop
them from going someplace else. It just means they can only offer them one year.

Mr. Graul asked about WAMO?’s all in costs on the event. Ms. Ulatowski didn’t know and
couldn’t begin to guess. If you saw the event and the number of dart machines they bring in
along with the rental and the set up and utilities costs, etc. Mr. Webb added that his gut reaction
was that for $3.1 million impact per year and over $9 million worth of business, if the District’s
$30,000 helps get that then it is worth it. Ms. Johnson agreed with Mr. Webb and it sounds like
it’s a great economic impact to the community. She doesn’t feel this is a group that would come
back no matter what and is in favor of approving all three years.

Chair Lamine asked if there was further discussion and asked for a motion.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KRISTEN JOHNSON AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS
TO APPROVE THE WAMO FUNDING FOR ALL THREE YEARS. A roll call vote was
taken. 4 AYES —2 NAYS (COWLES, GRAUL). MOTION PASSED.

Mr. Webb presented the WAMO Pool request for funds $5,000 each year for 2026, 2028, and
2030 - $1.5 million economic impact each year. Sen. Cowles asked about 2026 which is four
years from now. Is that being negotiated right now. Ms. Ulatowski said some of these contracts
go way out even to 2032. Chair Lamine asked for a motion. Ms. Weycker asked about the
dates this event is held. Ms. Ulatowski said it was in March. Ms. Weycker said she definitely
favors the events that are held in January.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KEITH LUCIUS AND SECONDED BY KRISTEN JOHNSON
TO APPROVE THE FUNDING REQUEST FOR WAMO POOL FOR ALL THREE YEARS.

Sen. Cowles said he would approve funding for 2026. Chair Lamine asked if he needs to ask
for a revision of the motion. Mr. Webb said you could just let the original motion die. Mr,
Lucius amended his motion for approval to one year. Ms. Johnson seconded that revised
motion. A vote was taken. 5 Ayes — 1 Nay (Graul). Motion Passed.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL AND SECONDED BY KRISTEN JOHNSON
TO APPROVE THE FUNDING FOR FOREST LAKES FOR 2024 AND 2025. A vote was
taken. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Mr. Webb presented the request for WIAA Girls Volleyball/Boys Volleyball for 2022 at $5,000
and WIAA Girls Basketball and Girls/Boys Volleyball for 2023 at $15,000.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KRISTEN JOHNSON AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES

TO APPROVE THE REQUEST FOR FUNDING FOR WIAA TOURNAMENTS FOR 2022
AND 2023 AS PRESENTED. A vote was taken. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Ms. Ulatowski thanked the Board.
GAME/EVENT REVIEW BY SIGMA — PACKERS VS WASHINGTON — OCTOBER 24, 2021

54




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 15

Mr. Kaszubowski presented the game/event review. He that reported he, Greg Kuehl, and Brian
Dworak reviewed the facility last fall. The game/event review is one of the legs of the maintenance
monitoring tool. Part of the program is to do some due diligence on how well the Packers are
maintaining the stadium. The intent of the game/event review is to dial in and help refine any O&M
procedures and protocols the Packers are implementing. It is meant to provide background
information in order to facilitate draws from the O&M Fund and to ensure consideration of operations
and maintenance needs in the formulation of a capital improvement plan.

This was the 20™ time this has been done. He feels the report is self-explanatory, but he has a couple
comments as a participant in the review are driven by previous reports done by Mr. Kuehl. The first
item of note would be the handicapped drop off and pickup. They noted it was definitely in place and
happening with golf carts shuttling people and it is difficult to negotiate the congestion in a golf cart
at times. While it has been improved, it is still something that needs a bit of work. Chair Lamine
mentioned that it his family and friends have used this service and it has vastly improved with the golf
carts. Even within the facility with access to elevators and the Team’s willingness to make services
available. He doesn’t know where the carts are located but people do seem to find them. Mr.
Kaszubowski said it was signed and noted on their website. The only problem he saw was that
somebody decided to park a car in the one lane the golf carts were trying to maneuver in.

A second item that was mentioned in previous reports was the traffic flow on the south end of the
stadium by Valley View Road and the South gate and media lot. It ends up being a fairly congested
area based upon reading previous reports. Now there seems to be less vehicles in the area going to the
media lot or employees going to the security entrance gate. That being said, an observation was that
some of the emergency response vehicles are parked on south side of Valley View Road. If there was
an urgent call, the vehicle has to negotiate between the pedestrian congestion on Valley View Road.
It has improved but maybe worth evaluating how to segregate the pedestrians and the emergency
response vehicles. They do have the ability for a police escort and manpower to move the crowd. In
a perfect world you’d like to segregate the people from the vehicle movement.

Another item reviewed is the queue at every stadium entrance. Some are worse than others. They
literally walked around and counted. What happens on game day is the fans have to get through
security and get their ticket scanned. They counted the number of detectors at each gate. The table
on page 6 shows that the longest queue lines with the average number of guests per metal detector.
Oneida Nation gate is two times more than other gates.

Chair Lamine said the American Family Insurance gate used to be the best kept secret. Now people
have caught on and it shows on the table provided. Ms. Weycker asked if it’s true that with the
electronic tickets you have to enter the gate that is on the ticket. Mr. Popkey said they strongly
encourage people to use the gates on tickets which is nearest to their seats but it is not required. Mr.
Kaszubowski said that one of his employees that manages projects at Miller Park went to the Stadium
Managers’ Association meeting and she reported that some teams found flipping ticketing and security
helped move lines along and they shared that with the Team.

Mr. Kaszubowski’s other comments were about the landscaping which is unbelievable. He thinks the
quality helps keep trash down and keeping the grounds maintained well helps with trash accumulation.

He last comment was about the grab n go concessions. He feels they are very effective. They had 10
points of sale in a place where there was one point of sale in the past. The fans probably initially
struggled but over time the education process of the experience will help improve this option. It looks
like this is the direction other parks are moving in.

S5/




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 16

Chair Lamine says this is always one of his favorite reports of the year because it tells us how the
facility is performing. He hears comments from different fans from all over the country when he’s in
his seats and this adds some credence to why it’s working and the efforts to keep improving the fan
experience has been helpful.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY LEAH WEYCKER AND SECONDED BY SEN. COWLES TO
ACCEPT THE REPORT. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED.

Chair Lamine asked Mr. Dworak about his experience working at the Bradley Center. He said they
had a team evaluate things at events. The teams that played there also had a third party secret shopper
program that would come in and evaluate their experience at 30 percent of the games. He feels that
having someone see the facility with a different set of eyes is very helpful.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 113 — AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE HIRING
OF AN ATTORNEY TO ASSIST IN LEASE NEGOTIATIONS

Mr. Webb reported that the District was always going to hire an attorney but it became somewhat of
a lightning rod at the end of the talks with Rep. Steffen. He was thinking the District should start with
a minimum of $20,000 and work with the Chair to hire the most efficient attorney they could find.
Ms. Johnson asked if both the City and the Packers are on board to start discussions. Mr. Webb said
the Packers have indicated they want to begin but the District wouldn’t spend any money until they
are ready. They said in the agreement with Rep. Steffen that the District would have funds available
for hiring an attorney. Sen. Cowles said they were always planning to hire an attorney. Mr. Webb
agreed and he thinks every budget for the last two years has included a caveat that when the District
hires an attorney the $1,000 budgeted for outside council wouldn’t be enough and they may need to
also add staff time. Right now Mr. Kuehl is not working much but he has a working knowledge of the
lease that doesn’t quit. He would look at bringing him back in during negotiations.

Mr. Webb said the District has always done what’s best for the community and always tries to work
with people. They have no incentive to renegotiate the lease. It was something brought on by the
Team to protect their long-term investment. In any negotiations once a document is there it is harder
to change it than to leave it the same.

Sen. Cowles asked if the County has incentive to renegotiate the lease. Mr. Webb said the County
isn’t part of the lease. It would be the City that would participate in negotiations. It’s the City, the
District and the Team who are party to the Lease. It’s mainly the Team that would like to renegotiate
as they do more and more and would like to protect their investments beyond the current Lease.

Sen. Cowles asked about the County representation. Mr. Webb said that Sen. Cowles represents
Brown County as Mr. Lucius represents Ashwaubenon. However, the job of the Brown County
appointees is to look out for Brown County’s interests.

Ms. Weycker asked if Mr. Webb could guess at the scope of work or how they would direct this hire.
Mr. Webb said the attorney would work for the District to evaluate any proposed changes to the Lease
and protect the Board going forward. Ms. Weycker asked if that would protect the Board’s existence.
Mr. Webb said our attorney would look at the District’s issues. He told the County Board committee
that there’s nothing the Board does that the City can’t do. There may need to be law changes or other
things that would have to take place in order for City to take over the District’s responsibilities. Under
current situation, all three parties would have to agree to have the Lease not include all three parties.

5T/




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 17

This has been the stumbling block from the very beginning when it says that the District can go out of
business by a vote of the District Board as long as they meeting all their contractual obligations. It’s
hard to meet all your contractual obligations if you have Lease obligations you can’t get out of without
the other parties being party to it. So any of the three parties can block the other parties to leave the
Lease which is the general interpretation of what it all comes to. He said that if they are going to
negotiate this long term, and the Team expresses the desire for the District to stay in business they
would have to protect the District’s interest well into the future.

Mr. Graul said it seems the most consequential thing they would do as a Board in recent history -
renegotiating this lease. Mr. Webb said that it could be. But extending the Lease is a normal situation
-- for instance if you rent an apartment. The negotiations could be as simple as saying under the same
terms and conditions the lease is extended for 10 years. Mr. Graul said if the Packers are driving the
negotiations they won’t be extending it and they would probably want some changes. His point is that
if the District is posturing themselves to be ready for this — which may or may not happen soon — he
feels the Board itself should be more broadly involved than this resolution describes. This resolution
would give Mr. Webb the ability to just go hire an attorney without Board consent of any kind other
than this resolution. Mr. Webb agreed. Mr. Graul felt that with something this consequential which
will position the Board going forward it would make some sense to have some attorneys bid and
propose to the Board itself to select. His general overall concern is he would like to see more Board
involvement if this is the road they are going down with this.

Ray Suennen, Brown County Supervisor, asked Chair Lamine to open the floor to comments. Mr.
Graul asked if now would be the appropriate time or could it wait until after discussion. Chair Lamine
said it wasn’t a public hearing but he would open the floor if the Board desired it.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KRISTEN JOHNSON AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
OPEN THE FLOOR FOR COMMENTS. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED.

Mr. Suennen said he attended the Executive Committee meeting where Mr. Webb and Mr. Lamine
were present in discussing things. He said he read the resolution and it is labeled one thing and
includes two significant things. It is labeled basically to the lay person who will read it that you are
hiring an attorney. He’s in agreement with hiring an attorney and believes the Lease potentially could
have significant changes and that it is significant dollars involved. If you look at the first numbers 1
and 2 it directly addresses hiring an attorney. Item 3 grants great powers to one person with consensus
of another person. As a board he has problems with this. He’s been on many boards — the Howard
village board for 12 years. He said it is good to get leaders out to get things going but as a board you
are to make decisions as a group. He doesn’t know the full intent of exactly how this is worded. He
can easily read it and get the impression that puts the whole leasing process in one person’s hands.
That is not appropriate. He believes the selection of an attorney as was mentioned and there are
competent attorneys around and hopefully one that specializes in this particular area. However, that
selection process should require the whole board. Usually, three board members would address the
issue and then bring back to the board with the criteria.

Another function in the document gives a lot of power to one person over a long period of time.
There’s no implication they have to come back to the board on a step process or a direction process
and a final approval process. If he were on this board, he would not support item 3. He would identify
a person as a primary contact liaison to report back to the board about the progress.

A MOTION TO RETURN TO THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA WAS MADE BY MARK GRAUL
AND SECONDED BY LEAH WEYCKER. A vote was taken. Motion approved.

O/ 7




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 18

Mr. Lucius reads item 3 of the resolution is about hiring an attorney not to make any decisions about
the Lease. Mr. Webb said that was certainly the intention of the resolution. It was intended to have
the Board approve the director to work with the chair to hire an attorney and any changes in the Lease
would be brought to the Board.

Mr. Webb suggested the Board re-read the Lease and get any comments together and if they need to
go into closed session they will. This resolution has nothing to do with negotiating the lease but
everything to do with hiring the most effective person to do the negotiations. Mr. Lucius agreed with
his assessment. He also mentioned he would have no problem perhaps hiring Ms. Johnson who is an
attorney. He is trying to hire the most efficient and effective person. However, he reiterated there is
no incentive for the District to renegotiate the Lease at this time.

Mr. Lucius feels that having a seven-person Board make a decision is not efficient. He doesn’t have
a problem with Item 3 if it’s clear that this is about hiring an attorney. As a board they will discuss
anything in the Lease and have a closed session where they can openly discuss those things before
they move forward. Mr. Webb agreed.

Ms. Johnson asked about Attorney Vande Castle. Mr. Webb said he normally attends the meetings
but he’s on vacation. She thinks they should wait until Attorney Vande Castle is at the meeting and
he can help determine how the Board should proceed. Mr. Lucius asked if there was a timing issue.
Mr. Webb said he was told to get an attorney on board as soon as possible. He’s doing this with seed
money now. Mr. Lucius asked who told Mr. Webb to get an attorney. Mr. Webb said it was part of
the agreement with Rep. Steffen.

Ms. Weycker asked if it would be important to have the Board come up with some of the scope of
what they would be looking for in an attorney. She was concerned about the three parties involved
and the Board members having slightly different interests in what the Lease negotiations would entail.
She would like to see some background information done on what other stadiums are doing. This is a
unique situation being a community owned team and just wanted to see what other models look like.
Mr. Webb said all this is on the table for when they go into closed session. He has no problem with
any of that. Ms. Weycker asked if they should put something in writing. Mr. Webb said if they would
like a closed session in June that would be fine. If they don’t want to hire an attorney that would be
fine. Chair Lamine thinks they all agreed when they worked on the budget. They talked about looking
at the budget again if they proceed with hiring an attorney. Now he feels they definitely want to
proceed on that. He’s not clear as to what other models there are. This District’s lease is specific to
our model. There’s a lot of bad leases out there and a lot of bad examples. He remembers looking at
Cincinnati’s situation. He hates to throw the whole baby out with the bathwater. They saw an example
earlier of what happened in Milwaukee and the next coming to the trough will be for the team. The
District has a statute that’s unique. It’s written partially based on the Milwaukee experience but there
was a lot of protection put into place at that time to limit what the taxpayer exposure was going to be
in Brown County. They could look at every team but it would be irrelevant and it could run into a lot
of staff time to work on that versus getting to work on this Lease. If Board members want to look into
it and they see or hear something they think is really good he would bring that up in closed session.
He is reluctant to spend a lot of time researching agreements that may not even be public agreements
and some would be completely irrelevant to our situation. He like to see the Board focus their energies

a little more,

Ms. Johnson said they would be dealing with two other parties that have much bigger budgets that the
District. They will have a team of lawyers looking at this Lease for longer than three months. As far

a4




10.

STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 19

as rushing it to spend $20,000 to hire a lawyer to just start digging into it she doesn’t see it as such a
rush. She thinks the other parties will need to spend more time and bring options to us to review or
the attorney the District hires. Her preference would be to push this off until June, have a closed
session, and have Attorney Vande Castle at the meeting to advise.

Mr. Lucius wondered about the subject of the closed session. Would it be to select attorney or
guidance on how to select an attorney. Ms. Johnson said it would be to discuss hiring and they could
talk about how they would like the discussions to go and what the attorney should focus on and how
much money to spend.

Mr. Lucius said that makes sense to him. If they need to have a closed session sooner he would be
willing to do so. Mr. Webb said he wouldn’t have brought it to the Board at this time without being
instructed to do so. Mr. Webb said he has $1,000 to play with right now.

Chair Lamine said in his past life as the Brown County Planning Commission Director — one of the
things he would discuss with members appointed by communities would be to explain that the name
plaque doesn’t say Chuck Lamine — County appointee. It says Green Bay/Brown County Professional
Football Stadium district. He said that a collective thought will come into play and the attorney will
be representing the stadium district. When the District gets to the point of approving amendments to
the Lease, that collective thought would be to the members that come into play. They all come in with
some background and perspective that’s going to come into play as well. He thinks it’s important to
remember the Board’s responsibility is to the Stadium District.

Sen. Cowles asked on a side note that if any attorneys in the area were involved with the Lease
originally. Mr. Webb said they used Godfrey & Kahn in Milwaukee but this could be talked about in

closed session.

The Board agreed to take no action on the resolution.

FINANCIAL REPORTS - NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER 2021 - JANUARY AND FEBRUARY
2022

Mr. Webb directed the Board to the December report. Pages F11-F16 is the detailed check register
for the whole year. You have seen these each month but this is the whole year. F17-F26 is the detailed
expenses by category. Social security, Medicare, etc. Those are also provided every month. F30-F36
is the amount actual versus budget. Before he got started on that he directed the Board to look at the
cash detail. One of the questions about the District pertained to the $81 million last year. This year it
details cash and investments at the end of 2021 is $75 million. Although the District only has actual
cash of $61 million, the difference of $14 million is the accrued interest of $11 million and then the
mark to market of $3 million. Of that $75 million or the $61 million of actual cash, the District owes
the Team $4.95 million for O&M for 2021. If you go to budget versus actual which is on F30-F36,
he could highlight some of the differences there. The budget is slightly over in salary and fringe
benefits because there were actually 27 pay periods in 2021 and we budgeted for 26. The District
underspent in office supplies, Board travel, and insurance. However, the insurance was offset by a
reduction in revenue because that money is transferred in. If you remember from the sources and uses
it is transferred in from O&M. Professional services were under by $2,853. The District negotiated a
new contract with the accounting firm that prepares the checks and reduced the annual cost. In addition
there was no money spent on the regional counsel.

507




11.

STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 20

Mr. Webb reported on the capital projects. Regarding the user fee, it was reported several times that
they collected more user fee than anticipated because more tickets were turned in than projected. That
could be the case again this year. The District collected more interest because they collected more
money and had the $6 million capital project payout to the Team for slightly longer than anticipated.
The bank fees were also actually less than anticipated.

The Special Revenue 8257 Fund details that the license plate sales were slightly over budget. Bricks
and tiles were 50% above budgeted amount. The sales for November and December were
approximately $31,000. The details will be later in the report. $90,000 was the largest amount earned
for quite a while. Interest on the fund was slightly over budget and some minor changes on the other
items. Qualified bank fees were more based on the amount of investments.

Mr. Webb reported that the O&M fund. The ticket fee was $182,000 less than budgeted because the
Minnesota game turned out to be in January of 2022 and the Packers have now been paying the District
on a game-by-game basis because of the uncertainty of games. They used to give the District a lump
sum up front and settle up after each game. This is $1 million that didn’t show up in 2021. Interest
was way less because the Team requested the funds on a quarterly basis plus the District didn’t get the
funds up front. The transfer in from the Special Revenue Fund was slightly under budget but that’s
offset by the revenue being less than budgeted in the other account. Maintenance and repairs are under
by $239,000 because the District didn’t have the funds available to pay it. The District didn’t spend
any money from the Economic Develop Fund other than the $15,000 spent for WIAA volleyball and

WAMO - $56,000 was budgeted.

Mr. Webb said that the January and February reports are early and it is hard to tell where the budget
in going at this point in time. He asked if the Board had any questions on the financial reports. There

were none.,

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KRISTEN JOHNSON AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
APPROVE THE FINANCIAL REPORTS. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Webb reported on the fund statement with $59 million in the account. $46 million is still in the
8257 Fund. $12 million is in the O&M Fund of which $4.9 million is due to the Team for 2021. This
will reduce it to about $7 million. That came from the original transfer from 8257 Fund plus playoff
game plus the Minnesota game.

Mr. Webb discussed the annual draw for Lambeau Field O&M reimbursement. To him this is more
like a pass through. The District collects ticket tax and also transfers funds from the 8257 Fund based
on a formula. The Packers have an unlimited amount of expenses that qualify in this area so the
District pays them. The Team breaks down their request between City labor and all other because
there are different inflationary formulas used for each component. The sheet on the right reported they
had incurred $681,000 worth of City labor while all other expenses were $15 million plus — bringing
the total to $16.1 million. We had interim payments of $5.1 million and $2.5 million to make $7.6
million leaving a net Team request of $8.505 million. The District only had $4.9 million available and
that’s all the District is required to pay. Itisn’t like Miller Park where there are shared expenses. The
payment is only what’s available in the fund. The fund comes from the segregated 8257 Fund which
is made up of the sales tax escrow, the first $500,000 of ticket tax, license plate revenue, and net brick
and tile revenue. That money can only be used for O&M. The District makes sure the Team is

5200




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 21

maintaining the facility with a maintenance audit, quarterly maintenance reports, and a game day
review to protect the District’s interest in the stadium.

Mr. Lucius asked is the net excess is excess of what the Packers asked for over what the District has
so the Team has to come up with that money. Mr. Webb agreed. He directed the Board to the last
page of that section. He included the Packers financial report they distribute to shareholders. It shows
an asterisk by the Facilities net stating the number of expenses for the O&M of the facility after the
District makes a payment to them. Not all these expenses would qualify per the Lease, but there are
plenty of expenses to warrant the District’s payment to the Team. They can only be used for one
purpose. Mr. Webb explained that the District pays the Packers almost $12.6 million. The $7.6 million
the District already paid plus the $4.9 available. Mr. Graul said the District budgeted $12.8 and paying
$12.590 million. Mr. Webb agreed and stated if the District had more they would be paying them
more. The District didn’t collect enough ticket tax to do so. Mr. Graul asked about the 2022 budgeted
amount for O&M. Mr. Webb said it was similar, maybe closer to $13 million. Mr. Graul asked about
this amount in the presented document. Mr. Webb said it is a summary of the detail that is attached.
Mr. Graul asked how the Packers determine what the District pays. Mr. Webb said the detail is
attached to their request. The Team explained it lists utilities, maintenance staff, City labor, security
staff, etc. The operations and maintenance of the facility they feel they want to present for payment
is in the detail. Mr. Graul asked about this at the last meeting and now this is the detail explaining the
request. He asked if the Packers stated they needed $16 million and they asked for an additional $35
million. Mr. Webb said that $35 million was the prior year — their June numbers. It’s just an example.
They’ve already netted the District’s $6 million given them last year and the $12 million given them
in 2020. When you see the Packers report they hand out to their shareholders in the summer, it will
give you a number that is net of the $12 million the District gave them this year. Mr. Graul asked how
the Team determines what to put into the $16 million bucket. Mr. Webb said they decide what is the
least controversial issues to put into the request. Ms. Weycker asked if that was in the legislation. Mr.
Webb said yes — operations and maintenance is a huge, wide-open number. He reminded the Board
that it is the closest thing to a pass-through without actually saying pass-through in the legislation.

Sen. Cowles emphasized that it was never the job of this Board to look at competitive bids as it flowed
through to the District. They have the incentive to do it and the Board is just paying the requested
amount allowed by the legislation. Mr. Webb agreed and stated they didn’t tell the Packers how to
build it or maintain it other than meeting high quality standards and complying with the architectural
program. The Packers accepted responsibility for all the construction, O&M, and capital improvement
overruns if they are allowed to run it the way they want to run it. The District has some controls by
making sure the stadium needs to remain in the top 25% of NFL stadiums. Miller Park has similar
language but they might be asked to contribute. This District’s legislation means we could ask the
Packers to do something to make sure they meet the top 25% even though the District doesn’t have

the funds.

When Miller Park was built the stadium district down there was in charge of construction. Here the
Packers wanted total control of the construction and the operations of the facility, and for that they
capped all the District’s responsibilities.

Sen. Cowles stated they have plenty of incentive to do things as efficiently as possible because they
pay the overruns. Mr. Webb stated the stadium also came in on budget for the most part. The District
could only pay the Packers from the funds the legislation allowed. That’s the biggest difference
between Lambeau Field and the other stadiums. It is the Packers’ facility to run and the District gives
them money based on formulas,

N4




12.

STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 22

Mr. Graul said this is the first time he’s seen this detail since being on the Board. He thinks it’s very
interesting to get a feel for it. Some of it was easily predictable like cable bills. Ms. Weycker
mentioned they toured the new security building and there was a lot of cable. Mr. Graul questioned
the Time Warner and Direct TV billings. Mr. Webb said they have that in the suites, etc. Sen. Cowles
said that Sigma reviews the facility and comes up with recommendations. Mr. Webb agreed and that’s
why Sigma was brought in — to make sure the District’s money was spent prudently and the facility
was maintained. He said that Mr. Kaszubowski who’s been here with Sigma from the beginning and
might agree that this is one of the best maintained facilities in the country. Mr. Kaszubowski
mentioned that the Team’s facilities department had some great procedures to maintain the stadium
and he’s using some of their procedures at other facilities.

Sen. Cowles feels this facility is immaculate and it’s a showpiece. That’s why the money in the funds
should remain in the District through the end of the lease. The proposed changes would not have
worked and it never made it through to legislation. The money should go to whomever is running this
place. Mr. Webb agreed. If you get rid of the District and if the City of Green Bay would end up
running the facility, the money would have to go to them to use to maintain the facility.

Mr. Webb reported on the Capital Projects Fund — it has $3 million. It’s almost refund season and we
will see how much is collected from user fees and go from there.

The quarterly maintenance report was presented to the Board. Mr. Webb asked if they had any
questions. Chair Lamine said this is the Packers report given to the District quarterly. Mr. Webb
agreed they supply this report to show what they are working on and what they accomplished. Chair
Lamine highlighted the part of the report that they are addressing things from the Sigma inspections,
and they are not ignoring the work the District hired Sigma to do. It is a great partnership and Sigma’s
findings are integral to the Team’s processes. Mr. Kaszubowksi agreed is it a good working
relationship.

Mr. Webb reported on brick and tile sales statistics which are very interesting. The distribution of
bricks and tiles from various places - $2.7 million in sales since started - 21,000 total bricks and tiles
purchased, etc. It is a nice report with interesting information on the sales throughout the years. What
is really interesting is that they’ve been on a run as far as sales go. $36,000 in the last two months of
the year. $10,000 in January of 2022. Last year January had $8,000 in sales which is also more than
usual. The District is working with the Team to find more room for future shipments of bricks as the

space is running out.

Mr. Webb reported on the quarterly meeting dates for 2022. Mr. Graul mentioned he couldn’t attend
the revised date for the June meeting. He feels once the dates are published they should remain the
same. Mr. Webb said the Board could certainly run the meeting without him on the originally
scheduled date, but he won’t be available. Chair Lamine said he’d have trouble running the meeting
without Mr. Webb in attendance. The agreed upon date was changed to June 13, 2022,

There were no other questions on the Director’s Report.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY KEITH LUCIUS AND SECONDED BY MARK GRAUL TO
APPROVE THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED.

OTHER MATTERS AUTHORIZED BY LAW

There were no other matters.

2,




STADIUM DISTRICT MINUTES
March 28, 2022
Page 23

13, MOTION TO ADJOURN

A MOTION WAS MADE BY LEAH WEYCKER AND SECONDED BY KEITH LUCIUS TO
ADJOURN THE MEETING. A vote was taken. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:20 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Dt ekl

Diane Roskom
Administrative Specialist

T




I've studied stadium financing for over two decades — and the new Bills
stadium is one of the worst deals for taxpayers I've ever seen

Victor Matheson, Professor of Economics and Accounting, College of the Holy Cross

Fri, April 15, 2022, 7:12 AM-6 min read

After New York lawmakers blew past the deadline to approve the state budget, they finally came to
an agreement on April 9, 2022, that included a US$850 million subsidy for a new stadium in Buffalo
for the NFL’s Bills.

As a sports economist who has studied stadium deals for over two decades, | am not exaggerating
when | write that the New York Legislature has managed to craft one of the worst stadium deals in
recent memory — a remarkable feat considering the high bar set by other misauided state and local

governments across the country.

Study after study has shown that stadiums are terrible public investments. The taxpayers financing
them rarely want to pay for them. So why are governments willing to subsidize them?

A return to the bad old days

There were many things to dislike about the Bills stadium project. At $850 million, it is the largest
taxpayer handout for a new stadium in U.S. history even before additional subsidies such as annual
maintenance costs, property tax exemptions and tax exemptions for municipal bond interest are
considered. These factors could easily drive the total government price tag well over $1 billion.

With taxpayers footing over 60% of the $1.4 billion price tag, it also runs counter {o the irend of the
past decade toward lower levels of public funding for stadium construction.

State and local governments on average had covered roughly two-thirds of stadium construction
costs during the first wave of the modern stadium boom that began in 1991. During the Great
Recession, however, government leaders found it politically unpalatable to hand over hundreds of
millions of dollars to billionaire owners as they were laying off teachers and firefighters.

Over the past decade, my ongoing research has shown that public subsidies have fallen to only one-
third of building costs, on average. In fact, the most recent Super Bowl was played in the entirely
privately financed SoFi Stadium in Los Angeles.

The Bills deal evokes the bad old days. Stadium subsidies in general are terrible public policy, and
this arrangement is no exception.

The Bills and their owners, Terry and Kim Pegula, don’t need a handout. With a net worth of $5.8
billion, Terry Pegula ranks as the ninth-richest owner in the NFL. The generous revenue-sharing
structure of the NFL means that even playing in one of the league’s smallest markets, the Bills have
earned over $300 million in operating income since the Pegulas purchased the team for $1.4
billion just seven years ago. And since then, the value of the Bills has risen by another $900 million.
The Pegulas have earned enough on their investment in just seven years to pay for the entirety of a
new stadium on their own.

But the only thing better for a team owner than a new stadium is a new stadium that someone else
pays for. Indeed, the new stadium is likely to further drive up the value of the Bills far more than the
$350 million the Pegulas are contributing to the stadium’s construction costs.

Stadiums make poor neighbors

These taxpayer-funded deals are often pitched as an investment in the local economy, but

of) |




two decades of academic research on the topic have conclusively shown that stadiums and
franchises have little or no impact on local economies. The Bills are not likely to be an exception.

For one, most of the customers at a sports venue are residents of the metro area who would simply
spend money elsewhere in the local economy in the absence of the team. Second, stadiums often
make poor neighbors. NFL venues, like the Bills’ current home. Highmark Stadium, are huge facilities
that are rarely used: The Bills play eight home games each year in the regular season. This creates
little incentive for investing in the surrounding neighborhoods.

And don't think that NFL stadiums typically host a multitude of other events. Over its 50 years of
existence, aside from a pair of annual high school football games and a few miscellaneous
competitions, Highmark Stadium has hosted a arand total of 30 major concerts. three college football
games and two large hockey games. And Buffalo’s venue is not out of the ordinary for any large,

outdoor stadium.

Rather than creating a dense area of housing, retail establishments and restaurants, Highmark
Stadium instead sits alone as an island of concrete in a sea of parking lots.

The threat of relocation

The stadium project is deeply unpopular, with one survey finding that 55% of New Yorkers are
opposed to the plan, versus only 22% in favor of it.

So why did it get included in the state budget?

For one, stadiums are a perfect example of the classic special-interest problem. For a handful of
passionate fans in Buffalo, a new stadium may determine which candidate gets their vote. But for the
rest of the state, a small increase in their tax burden is unwelcome but not problematic enough to

compel a voter to switch sides.

Teams have also gotten smart about minimizing transparency, which is bad for public policy but good
for team owners. The Bills stadium proposal was added to the state budget and dropped on
unsuspecting taxpayers just days before a final vote was scheduled in the Legislature. With such a
short timeline, it was impossible for lawmakers to fully analyze the issue, and there was little time for
public interest groups to mobilize against the handouts.

The Pegulas were essentially able to extort New York taxpayers by threatening to relocate the team
if they didn’t pay up. Buffalo is only the 49th-largest meiro area in the U.S. At least half a dozen cities
across the U.S. without NFL franchises are both richer and at least twice as populous, including San
Diego, St. Louis, Portland and Austin, not to mention the possibility of a franchise in London.

With their current lease expiring in 2023, the team had already indicated that the 2022 season could
have been its last in Buffalo.

This threat was a slap in the face of loyal Bills fans who have supported the team for over 60 years
through subzero temperatures, lake-effect snow, four straight Super Bowl losses in the 1990s and

more losing seasons than winning ones.

The NFL has long kept the number of teams lower than the number of cities that could profitably
support a franchise. So as long as owners are willing to use the threat of relocation, | don’t believe
any city’s fans — and any state’s taxpayers — are safe.

This article is republished from The Conversation, a nonprofit news site dedicated to sharing ideas
from academic experts. It was written by: Victor Matheson, College of the Holy Cross.

6A-




Twice as many come off Packers ticket waiting list, but more than

140,000 are still waiting to get into Lambeau Field

Richard Ryman
Green Bay Press-Gazette

GREEN BAY - Nearly twice as many names will come off the Green Bay Packers' season
ticket waiting list this year, the result of normal turnover and the team redistributing some

excess tickets they took back from a handful of fans.

More than 99% of the Packers 38,000 season ticket holders renew their seats every year,

which results in about 70-100 new ticket buyers. The team has a waiting list of 140,000 for

81,441-seat Lambeau Field, which means a long time on the list.

Cory Vogel of Green Bay was put on the list when he was 2. He's 51 now and recently accepted

an offer for Gold package tickets.

"I was pretty excited. It was a long time in waiting," he said. "My parents had seats in the same

section."

The Packers this year reclaimed excess tickets from a handful of season ticket holders who the
team said had a large number of tickets that were being used for commercial rather than

personal purposes.

"The team made the determination to not renew a selection of tickets of a handful of
ticketholders who held a significant number of tickets that were primarily being resold on a
regular basis above face value," said Aaron Popkey, director of public affairs. "Packers season
tickets are intended to be used by the ticketholder, including family and others, to attend the
game. The tickets identified and not renewed were simply being resold for a profit. It was a

pattern that existed for vears.”
Popkey said more than 100 additional names will come off the waiting list as a result.

Get breaking Packers news on your mobile device: Download our app

How many names come off the list depends on how many tickets each new ticket holder

chooses to buy. It remains a fluid process until all the tickets are spoken for.

N




The larger than usual number of people being offered tickets was great news for Michelle
Hensel, 49, of Sobieski, who ended a 47-year wait. Hensel also was put on the list by her

parents when she was two.

"Every year, I'd be so excited to get my card in the mail from the Packers," she said. "Last year

I was 125 on the list. I said it’s got to be soon."

But she knew this year wasn't a guarantee. She remembers one year when only 40 people
came off the list. Also, she was holding out for Green package tickets, which Popkey said

tend to turn over more slowly than Gold packages.

About 75% of people whose names come up buy tickets, Popkey said. The other 25% no longer

want to buy tickets, have died or cannot be found.

At some point during the process, say when they get to about 7,500 on the list, fans are asked

whether they'd like to be in the Green or Gold package queue.

The Gold package costs between $236 and $312, depending on seat location, plus the one-
time seat license fee of $900. This year, Gold package includes two regular-season

games. Because of the NFL's unbalanced 17-game schedule, the Gold package could include
two games, like this year, one preseason and two regular-season games, or three regular-

season games.

Green packages this year cost between $800 and $1,014 for one preseason and six-regular
season games, plus a one-time $2,100 user fee. In some years, the Green package will include

seven regular-season games and no preseason game. Preseason games cost about half as much

as regular-season games.

Gold package listers tend to climb more quickly, but in 2013 the Packers added nearly 8,000

seats to Lambeau Field, which moved everybody up.

Vogel opted for the Gold package in hopes of more quickly end his 49 years of waiting for

tickets of his own.

"I didn’t think I was ever going to come up. On the (Green) list, I'm 4,000-some. When the
opportunity came up for the Gold list, I jumped ship," he said.

Vogel's sisters also are on the waiting list, but they chose to hold out for Green package tickets.

They'll likely be there for a while.

052




Because she knew it was coming soon, Hensel said she'd been saving to pay for the seat license

fee and season tickets.
"I was not giving them up," she said.

Her parents, who were on the list 32 years themselves, shared their tickets with other family

members and Hensel will do the same.

"We'd go to games when we could. I'd opt to stay back and let my kids go on my parents'

tickets. This season, it’s going to be a different story," she said.

She did give up her ticket to the Dallas Cowboys game to her brother-in-law, a huge Packers

fan who lives in St. Louis, but she kept the home opener against the Chicago Bears.

"The home opener is going to be awesome. They are going to be my tickets and they’re playing

the Bears," she said.

Contact Richard Ryman at (920) 431-8342 or rryman@gannett.com. Follow him on Twitter

at @RichRymanPG, on Instagram at @rrymanPG or on Facebook
at www.facebook.com/RichardRymanPG/.




Ashwaubenon 'Stadium District' emerges two decades after
vision to renew aging, industrial sites was first laid out

Jeff Bollier

Green Bay Press-Gazette

ASHWAUBENON - Nearly 20 years ago, Ashwaubenon set out a vision to transform the aging industrial
corridor southeast of Lambeau Field.

The village's plans took shape in the late 1990s, about the same time the Green Bay Packers finished the
stadium's atrium expansion and Brown County completed construction of the Resch Center. The vision was
to turn vast stretches of sheet metal buildings and storage areas east of Lambeau Field into an "Olympic
village"-type neighborhood to match the renowned entertainment venues and tourist draws a few blocks

away.

"We wanted to try to take advantage of this whole area's unique location up against Lambeau Field and the
Resch Center," Community Development Director Aaron Schuette said. "We're seeing it come to fruition
now, years later."

The village refined its vision in 2009 with urban design guidelines for the area that called for a mix of
residential and commercial development with multistory buildings close to the sidewalk, hidden parking,
and more bicycle- and pedestrian-friendly street designs. Those revisions were incorporated into site plan
requirements, zoning codes and other regulations.

First, though, the village set out to address conditions in the area roughly bounded by Lombardi Avenue,
South Oneida Street, Ashland Avenue and Morris Avenue. It bought blighted and unused properties, cleaned
up environmental site contamination from longtime industrial uses, buried utilities, widened sidewalks,
added bike lanes and rebuilt roads. The village also offered financial incentives to spur residential
development in an area where Schuette said land prices were already high, well before the current housing

boom.

Since 2009, two hotels were built in the Stadium District area and another is in development, The Bar on
Holmgren Way, Anduzzi's and Stadium View have all expanded and a key component of the plan — dense,
multistory housing — has started to fill in some empty spaces.

Development in the Stadium District has brought out some of the style, feel and appearance that village
officials envisioned more than a decade ago.

Slinde Realty started construction in 2018 on The Element Apartments on Marvelle Lane (renamed Element
Way), one of the first new housing projects in the district. Jeff Slinde said being the first in a redeveloping
area like the Stadium District can be risky, but the company was familiar redevelopment work in Milwaukee

and Madison areas.

Managing your subscription has never been easier. Pause delivery, update your credit card and more online.

"Here we are four years later and it's pretty amazing to see our own progress, but it's encouraging to see the
progress in the area," Slinde said. "That was the intent all along, but to get us going, that was a big step.”

Now, projects have started to "fill in the gaps" in the Stadium District, Schuette said. He cited the village's
redesign of Mike McCarthy Way as an example of how the area was prepared for new uses.




"We reconstructed McCarthy Way with wider sidewalks, buried power lines, a new road, and better
streetscaping so it was more comfortable for bicyclists and pedestrians," Schuette said. "There was some
really good planning done years ago ... to put that vision in place so when a developer came forward, they
knew what was expected."

The momentum has also attracted the attention of retailers and other businesses, like Revolution Market,
the public market-type space that Kurt and Sanna Rudrud opened on Holmgren Way in December 2020,

Kurt Rudrud said the couple saw the need to offer a space for small, local entrepreneurs in the Stadium
District area. Interest in renting spaces has been strong and their current mix of tenants specialize in
products like fresh produce, European crepes, custom-made charcuterie boards, soups and wraps.

Julie Baranek, a Revolution tenant who specializes in soups, wraps and sandwiches, is starting to see more
workers from nearby offices and people who heard about her business, Souper Day, from neighbors. She
said it's nice to see small, local businesses find a home in the area alongside larger chains and corporations.

"It's nice small, local people can benefit from the Stadium District as well," Baranek said. "It's nice to know a
small, local business can do okay in this area."

Here's what to watch for this year as construction continues in the Stadium District and what developers
plan to start work on this year.

Apartments and a climbing gym

With a climbing wall for a backdrop, lowa-based Merge Urban Development and Odyssey Climbing +
Fitness broke ground in September on an 80-unit apartment building and indoor climbing gym.

it's the first building in a multi-phase development in the 600 block of Mike McCarthy that Merge is
calling The Common Place, which it describes as "a Main Street destination for both residents and visitors"

to the Stadium District.

Schuette said The Common Place's location in puts it right in the core of the district. The project's design
incorporates village guidelines such as first floor commercial space, welcoming common spaces and a mix of

building materials.

"It’s filling in those gaps and creating that sense of what we really want to see in that area. This really helps
formulate that vision," Schuette said.

A major draw of The Common Place will be Odyssey Climbing + Fitness, a membership-based gym that will
have fitness and yoga classes and a 47-foot-tall, roped climbing terrain. Ben Ganther and Sam

Howard, Odyssey's chief executive officer and chief climbing officer respectively, also will offer bouldering
and lead climbing spaces, lessons, fitness spaces for personal trainers and more. Memberships start at $65-
per-month, $695 for a year, or you can buy 10 daily passes for $210.

The Berkshire

The Berkshire will add affordable senior apartments and three-bedroom townhouses to a site across Mike
McCarthy Way from The Common Place.

Milwaukee-based General Capital first proposed the mix of 15 two-story townhouse rentals and 75 senior
apartments two years ago, but struggled to secure the state funding it needed to finance the project. in
early March when Gov. Tony Evers awarded the project $4.7 million via the state's Neighborhood
Investment Fund.

Schuette said the grant will replace the tax incremental financing, or TIF, assistance the village intended to
provide General Capital and allow construction to start this year.

oC-2




The village will review updated site plans for the project this month; earlier plans called for 75 units of senior
housing with 63 units set aside for seniors who earn less than 60% of the county's median income.

"It helps fill that gap we’ve all experienced in terms of affordable housing in northeastern Wisconsin,"
Schuette said. "We're trying to do our bit to help fill that gap."

Second Bohemian Park building underway

Wewerka Group developer the has started construction on phase two of Bohemian Park, its multibuilding
apartment complex southwest of the Morris Avenue and Holmgren Way intersection. The first building, with

50 apartments and underground parking, opened in 2019.

The new building includes 69 units, more parking, almost 1,800 square feet of ground-floor retail space
facing Morris Avenue, and the creation of some of the complex's outdoor common amenities for residents,
customers and the public, per a site plan approved in early 2021. The outdoor amenities include a small
stage near a patio area, sitting areas, planter beds and lighting.

Element Apartments

The Element has completed three buildings, but is slowing down on any additional construction on the site
north of Marvelle Lane and east of South Oneida Street.

Jeff Slinde said construction costs, supply chain challenges and a federal interest rate hike have made it a
challenging time to build. He said the team expects those challenges to linger through this year's
construction season, so they plan to pause construction and assess options for future phases.

"We will do something, but we're just trying to figure that out all," Slinde said.

Coachway Condominiums

The most recent Stadium District housing development under consideration has the potential to be the
tallest in the area.

Filip Barsan, of Barsan Corp., wants to build an 84-unit, 12-story condominium building on one acre of land
northwest of the Mike McCarthy Way-Holmgren Way intersection. Coachway Condominums, which Barsan
estimates will cost $41 million to build, would offer units starting at $275,000 and increasing in cost to $1.3

million.

Schuette said Barsan Corp.'s plans need to go through several reviews by the village, beginning with a
request expected next month for a conditional use permit to allow the building's height, which exceeds
village building restrictions. From there, the project would need to go before the village's Site Plan Review,
Plan Commission and Village Board.

Barsan said the start of construction would depend upon condominium sales. Eighty percent of the units
would need to be sold before construction could begin, he said. He began listing units for sale in early April.
He said response has been positive so far.

Barsan said he does not plan to seek tax incremental financing, or TIF, support. In an email, Barsan said his
proposal follows the trend started in Ashwaubenon by developments like Bohemian Park and Element.

"This project may serve as another pillar for future urban, dense developments along this corridor," Barsan
said.

Contact Jeff Bollier at (920) 431-8387 or jbollier@gannett.com. Follow him on Twitter at @JeffBollier.

v

U




Packers report 85% of tickets sold for Bayern-Man City match on July 23 at
Lambeau Field in Green Bay

Richard Ryman Green Bay Press-Gazette
5/26/22

GREEN BAY — About 15% of original tickets remain for the Bayern Munich-Manchester City soccer match at
Lambeau Field, the Green Bay Packers said Thursday.

The exhibition match between Europe's premier professional soccer clubs is scheduled for 6 p.m. July 23. It will be
the first professional soccer match held in Lambeau Field.

Tickets went on sale May 5 to Packers season ticket holders and May 6 to the general public at the Ticketmaster
website. Standard tickets were listed between $35 and $160, but those closest to the field were more expensive.
Those seats are in what Ticketmaster calls its Official Platinum category, which uses market-based pricing.

On Thursday, the remaining Official Platinum seats, some of which were directly behind the team benches, ranged
from $80 to $950.

The average of lowest-cost tickets on the secondary market, based on checking seven marketplaces, was $69.

Manchester City (29-6-3, 93 points) cemented its place among English Premier League elite on May 22 by
capturing its fourth title in five years, rallying from a two-goal deficit to defeat Aston Villa 3-2 in the closing
moments of the final match of the 2021-22 Premier League season at Etihad Stadium. Meanwhile, FC Bayern
Munich (24-5-5, 77 points) captured its record-breaking 10th consecutive Bundesliga title earlier this season.

The friendly — soccer's term for an exhibition match — is the second time Bayern and Man City will meet on
American soil. They played in an International Champions Cup match on July 28, 2018, when Man City downed
Bayern Munich 3-2 at Miami's Hard Rock Stadium.

The weekend of the game will kick off a busy time in Green Bay. The Packers will hold their annual shareholders'
meeting on Monday, July 25, and open training camp for the 2022 season that week as well. The week-long EAA
AirVenture in Oshkosh also begins on that Monday. That event drew more than 600,000 visitors in 2021,
according to EAA, Packers training camp draws about 90,000 fans from around the world.

In downtown Green Bay, the annual Kitsunekon convention, an event for lovers of anime and gaming, claimed
hotel rooms for the weekend.

"We are pretty full that weekend," said Brad Toll, president and CEO of Discover Green Bay. "We had a lot of
rooms full already downtown before soccer was announced. The impact of this one is going to go all over
northeast Wisconsin, and potentially Madison and Milwaukee."

Which is to say that hotel rooms already are at a premium, when you can find them, going for $300 a night and
more. A random check of hotel websites showed a number of them with no availability for that weekend.

A check of Airbnb listings for that weekend showed 29 listings, some in the Fox Valley, that were going for $103 a
night for a private room in Brillion to $3,652 a night for a seven-bed house in Neenah.

Toll said there are about 700 Airbnb providers in the region.

Contact Richard Ryman at (920) 431-8342 or rryman@gannett.com. Follow him on Twitter at @RichRymanPG, on Instagram
at @rrymanPG or on Facebook at www.facebook.com/RichardRymanPG/. / O |
M) -
/ o




NOTICE OF CLAIM OF INJURY AND WRITTEN NOTICE OF CLAIM
PURSUANT TO SECTION 893.80 (1d)(a) and (b) WIS. STATS.

TO: GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY PROFESSIONAL
FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT '
1229 Lombardi Avetue
Green Bay, WI 54304
ATTN: Legal or Chuck Lamine, Chair

CITY OF GREEN BAY

Via electronic mail to: law@greenbaywi.gov
c¢/o Law Department

100 North Jefferson Street, Room 200

Green Bay, WI 54301

BROWN COUNTY

¢/o County Clerk — Patrick Moynihan, Jr.
North Building

305 East Walnut Street, Room #120
Green Bay, W1 54301

-and to-

BROWN COUNTY

c/o Corporation Counsel — David Hemery
305 East Walnut Street, 6™ Floor, Suite 680
Green Bay, WI 54301

CLAIMANT: BONNY EMMER
5815 South Calhoun Road
Necw Berlin, WI 53146 \

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Bonny Emmer states that the following circumstances
give rise to a claim:

1. That on January 22, 2022 Ms. Emmer was injured while lawfully on the premises
located at 1265 Lombardi Avenue in Green Bay, WI (better known as Lambeau Field), when she
fell and/or tripped over a defective condition, more specifically negligently-placed signage, on the
premises. The parties listed above knew or should have known of said defective condition, had
ample opportunity to correct it, and failed to do so. As a result, Ms. Emmer sustained personal
injuries, including but not limited to injuries to her elbow, wrist and shoulder.

2. The damages itemized below were caused in whole or in part by negligent actions of
the parties herein noticed and by their agents or employees in failing to identify and correct a
defective and hazardous condition on the premises and/or failing to provide a safe place, as that
term is identified in Wis. Stat. § 101.11.

3. This Notice of Claim of Injury and Written Notice of Claim shall supersede any
previous claim filed by claimants related to this matter.

71




4, ITEMIZED STATEMENT OF KNOWN DAMAGES AND CLAIM PURSUANT TO
SECTION 893.80 (1d)(b) WIS. STATS: As a direct and proximate result of the negligent
conduct, Ms. Emmer did incur pain and suffering, disability, humiliation and embarrassment, and
loss of enjoyment of life as a result of the arm injury in an amount yet to be determined. Ms,
Emmer has also incurred damages in the form of medical expenses and wage loss. Ms. Emmer’s
claimed damages, upon information and belief, appear to exceed the amount of $50,000.00.

- Pain and Suffering/General Damages (past and future, to be determined)
- Maedical expenses (past and future): $24,242.00 to date.
- Lost wages (to be determined)

5. The amount in controversy does not currently appear to exceed $50,000 for current
medical treatment expenses.

6. The amount in controversy does appear to exceed $50,000 for past and future pain and
suffering, disability, humiliation and embarrassment, loss of enjoyment of life and past and future
lost wages.

This Notice is provided pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 893.80(1d). Ms. Emmer’s address,
which is also listed above, is 5815 South Calhoun Road New Berlin, W1 53146,

WHEREFORE, the claimant, whose name and address is stated above, claims relief
against the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football Stadium District, the City of Green
Bay and Brown County, jointly and severally, in the amount of $50,000.00.

éi [EN
Dated this day of May, 2022

GATZKE & MCFADDEN LAW OFFICES
Attorneys for Claimant

John g fatzke
State Bat No.: 1091409

. P
o YA EAYE VAV e W AN
* IO I U L V.NS P T S SO I B

I e ; A

Bonny Emmer )

GATZKE & MCFADDEN
15730 West National Avenue
New Berlin, WI 53151

PH: (262) 814-1680

FAX: (262) 814-1676
johngatzke@gatzkelaw.com




DETAIL OF SPECIAL EVENTS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDS

May-22

INFLOWS
SPECIAL EVENTS REVENUE
INTEREST EARNINGS

TRANSFER FROM DEBT SERVICE RESERVE INTEREST

TOTAL INFLOWS
OUTFLOWS

GRANT PAYMENTS

EXPENSES-MR KUEHL

TRANSFER TO OPERATING
TOTAL OUTFLOWS

BALANCE

SPECIAL EVENTS REVENUE
SNOW CROSS- (2004-2006)
UW HOCKEY-2006

LEAP OF FAITH-2007

LZ LAMBEAU-2010

CHESNEY CONCERT--2011
CHESNEY CONCERT--2015
HALL OF FAME INDUCTION-- Brett Favre—~2015
UW FOOTBALL VS LSU--2016
BILLY JOEL-2017

PAUL MCARTNEY-2019

GRANT PAYMENTS

WIAA GIRLS BASKETBALL-(2013-2014)

WIAA GIRLS BASKETBALL-(2015-2019,2022)
WIAA GIRLS AND BOYS VOLLEYBALL-2019,2021
TALL SHIPS-2013 , 2016 AND 2019

WSAE-2014

WISCONSIN DENTAL ASSOC.-2014

CITY OF GREEN BAY HOTEL STUDY

CABELLA FISHING-2014

WISCONSIN WOMEN'S GYMNASTICS-2014
PMI-USHL FALL HOCKEY CLASSIC-2014
WAMO POOL TOUNAMENT-2015, 2017 AND 2019
USA YOUTH SOCCER-2015

US BOWLING -2015

FOREST LAKE EVANGELICAL~(2015-2020,2022)
USA GIRLS HOCKEY-2015

MEYER THEATRE --2015/2016

BROWN COUNTY SCOREBOARD~2016/2016
NEVILLE PUBLIC MUSEUM-2016/2016/2019/2020
GREEN BAY CHILDREN'S MUSEUM-~2015

CITY OF GREEN BAY-- BAY BEACH- 2016/2016
PMI-GAMBLERS PRE-SEASON SHOWCASE-2016
WALLEYE FISHING CHAMPIONSHIP-2016

PROF. WOMEN'S BOWLING ASSN 2016
ASHWAUBENON AQUATICS-2016

NEW ZOOLOGICAL-2016

BOTANICAL GARDENS 2016 -2017
ASHWAUBENON ARENA STUDY--2016 PAID IN 2017
18T--2017

MASTERS WALLEYE QUALIFIER -2017
ANTIQUES ROARSHOW-2017

MIDWEST WOMEN'S BOWLING TOURNAMENT-2018
LIVING PROOF — BETH MOORE-2018

WAMO DARTS 2018,2021

SMALL MARKETS MEETING 2019

BROWN COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS STUDY-2016
EXPO CENTER

RESET FOR LIFE

CVB SPORTS FACILITY STUDY

APPROVED NOT PAID

WAMO POOL TOURNAMENT-2023,2026
WAMO DARTS 2024,2026,2028
DISTRICT OPERATIONS
WIAA-2022,2023

FOREST LAKE 2023.2024,2025

US BOWLING-2023*

* Funds carmied forward for events rescheduled due to Covid.

2,079,816.47 2,079,816.47
111,685.72
2473,822.06
466533325

2789,680.52 2,789,680.62
136,905.45
972,028.59
3,897,614.56

767,718.69

56.187.58
97,851.68
556,452.14
25,000.00
59,363.90
299,190.98
23,034,686
912,849.70
236,269.09
31461574

2,079,815.47

60,000.00
82,000.00
10,000.00
§56,000.00
17,127.61
6,000.00
6,523.32
24,760.00
12,600.00
10,000.00
28,000.00
15,000.00
§0,000.00
37,000.00
20,000.00
100,000.00
450,000.00
86,000.00
40,000.00
120,000.00
5,000.00
10,000.00
15,000.00
20,000.00
60,000.00
100,000.00
60,000.00
16,000.00
12,669.69
16,000.00
30,000.00
7.500.00
15,000.00
60,000.00
76,200.00
4,000,000.00
15,000.00
54,600.00

2,789,680.52

10,000.00
30,000.00
64,319.48
20,000.00
18,000.00
5,000.00
147,319.48

767,718.69 BANK BALANCE

- DUE TO GENERAL FUND
767,718.69
147,319.48 COMMITTED NOT PAID
620,389.21 FUNDS AVAILABLE

2,789,680.52

~—




GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT

RESOLUTION #113

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE HIRING OF AN ATTORNEY TO ASSIST IN
LEASE NEGOTIATIONS

WHEREAS, the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football Stadium District (the “District”), the
City of Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “City”) and the Green Bay Packers, Inc. (the “Packers”) have entered the
Lambeau Field Lease Agreement dated as of January 1,2001 (the “Lease”) and

WHEREAS, the parties have expressed interest in negotiating an extension of the Lease, and

WHEREAS, the District desires to have the assistance of an attorney (the “Attorney”) during Lease
negotiations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the District Board autorizies and approves the hiring of an attornery to Assist the
Executive Director in Lease negotiations.

2. That costs for the Attorney shall be paid from the Economic Development Fund in an amount
not to exceed $

3. That the Executive Director, in consultation with the Chairperson, is hereby authorized to
take all such other action as he/she, in his/her judgment, shall deem necessary or convenient
to carry out the intent and to accomplish the purposes of these resolutions.

Approved and adopted this 13th® day of June, 2022.

GREEN BAY/BROWN COUNTY PROFESSIONAL
FOOTBALL STADIUM DISTRICT

By:
Chuck Lamine, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Kristen Johnson, Secretary

/0




LOIRMLSIAd NNIAVLS
1T1Va1004d TVNOISS3410¥dd
ALNNOD NMOUL/AVE NI3ZUO



~

00°00€'685"L 68'029'v85'8l ZLBLL'GLER 68°02£'620° L1

- $8°02€'%58'9 $0°064°102'S G8'02E'¥S8'9

- 8v'6LE'Y9 - 8y'6LE'v9

- 00°000°22 00°09¥'02 00°000°22

- LE'10€'6LL°G 65°20L'VEL'S IE710E'6LL'G

- 00°00S'€ gg'8ie 00°005'¢

- 00°000°01L5°} /1°00L'se 00°000°01L5't

- 00°000'8Y 10°085'01 00°000'8y

- 00°002'¢T 95°¢e 0000222
00'00€'GSS'L 00°00€'0SL'} 1 89626 €LL E 00°000°621°0}

- 00°000°0Z 80°/£8°92 00°000°0Z

- 00°000°00% - 00°000°00¥%
00°000'000°} 00°000°60€'0} 09'Z6L'1EL'T 00°000'S0€'6
00°00€'SSS 00°00€'S56 00°00€'658 00°000°'00%

FONVRIVA avnLov avnLovy 13odnd
aa1o3rodd azsid3roud aia [44114
(44174 2202
2202 AVIN

AUVINIANS TVIONVYNIL

SINNIAIY TVLIOL

SA33004d 310N 1560

ININJOTINIA DINONODI NI YAASNYAL 60y

SL103r0¥Ud TV.LEVO NI Y3JISNYHL 2P60Y

FONVNILNIVIA NV NOILLYHIdO NI 434SNVAL L¥60Y

QNNd L6528 NI ¥3JSNYHL 0v60Y

QNN AJQ JINONOO3 NO LS3HALINI G160

SANN4 INNIAIY TVIO3dS NO LSTHIINI 1160V

SANNA NOILLONYULSNOD NO LS3HILINI 0L60Y

S$Q33004d 310N NO LSIHIALNI 80601

SUANN IAYISTY FOIAYIS 1930 NO LSTHILNI L060Y

SANNZ ONOE NO 1S3HI.LNI 5060

S1SOd3A XV.L STTVS NO LSTHILNI £0601

GNNd TYH3IN3O NO 1S3H3LINI L060Y
SNOJINVTIIOSIN 00609

334 NOILONVS 01804

SNOILYNOQ NVIgNVYT IAVS 0807

ANDOVAT TIVELO0d TYNOILYN 2080%

SUDIOVd AvE NITFUO L080P
SNOILYNOQ 0080%

S334 L NV IORIE  L040¥
440 HO3JHO XVL INODNI 90v0¥
$334 31V1d ISNIDIT SOV0¥
SIN3AZ IVIO3dS €0v0v
I34 1IDLL 2090V
$334 ¥3ASN 1L0v0¥

SIOAVHO Ol'and 00¥0¥

$33d YAHLO ANV TYNOISSIH0Ud €00y
SIOUVHI TYININNYIAODTIINI 00€0¥

NISNOOSIM 40 31VIS 50201
INNIATH TVININNIIAODHLLNI 0020¥

XYL SIS LOL0Y
S3IXVL 0010V

# 100V
SSEANNIAIY



>

00°0¥S'S

0009602 0075802 00°005°/Z

- 00005 00°6€ 00°00S
(00°5¥¢) 00°SYE'SL 00°SVE'SL 00°000'SL
00'588'9 00°GiL's 00°SLL'S 00°000'Z}

- 00051 - 00°0S1°}

- 00°00E - 0000¢

- 00°005 - 00°005

- 00°05€ - 00°0s€
(o0 p) 00'9V8'v 6CVLE 00'S¥8'v

- 00002 822 00002

- 00°6/6'L 19281 00°G48'L
(00'1) 00'L 00°L -

- 00°005 - 007005

. 00°005 - 007005

- 00°00S 00°06 00°005

- 00°08S SLLL 00055

- 00°020'} - 00°020'}

- V€908 £8816¢C 7908

- 08285’ 6£°260'} 08'28s'S

- 0092 00°2EL 00992

- £2'66. 1ize £2°66L

- YiY'S leele' viiv'e

- 5661165 0Sv¥0°1C S6'6L1'SS

- G661} 65 09%¥0'12 G66LLSS

IONVIHVA VNLOV VnIov 135ang
g3Lo3rodd a3aLo3aroxd aiA zz02
z20Z 2202
2202 AVIN

AMVINIANS TVIONYNIA

dNOD SHINHUOM 50908

VT8N - ALNIGVIT TYH3NIO $0908
ALMEVIT TYNOISS3J0ud £0905
OLNY G3NMO-NON 20908

ALV TYHINTID L0905

IONVINSNI 00905

SS3O0V LIANYILNI €0508
1¥0ddNS ANV 3ONVYNILNIVIA 20508
NOLLYTIVLSNIINIWGINDI/FYVMLIOS 10505

S3VINAAS NOLLYWHOLNI 00508

SIONIHIINOD £008

(SALLMIOVL ¥IH10 OL SdidL 40
# NO IN3AN3d30) SISNIJIXI ANV IOVI TN 4VIS Z0¥0S
SISNAdXT ? FOVITIN ¥3GINTN AHvOod LOY0S

ISNIJXT SNOANVTIIISIN 0L£05
LNININDI 01440 60€08
ISNIdX3 ? S3MddNS I0I440 80£0S
SX004d ? SNOILJIYOSaNs £0€0s
SJIHSYIaWAIN NV SINA 9005

LS00 XV4/AdOD S0€0s

LNIWHMROIY ANV ONISLLY3AQY v0€0S
AYINTIAA ONY IDVISOd €005

INOHJ3T3L Z2080S

ONILNIMd ONV AYINOILVYLS L0E0S

ONINIVY.L ONV IONFHIINOD "TIAVHL 00908

ASNZIdX3 301440 0005

LANINLSNIAY AUVIVS 01205

LNINIFHIL3H 60205
ALITIGVYSIA 80208
AONVHNSNI 3417 L0208

J0N 3LVLS OGNV Tv30a3d 90205
JONVHUNSNI TYLINIQ 50205
AINVUNSNI HLTV3H $020S

ININAOTIINANN £020S
AVYIIA3N 20205
ALREND3S IVIO0S 1020S

S1I43N3d JIONIYS 00208

SAVIVS LOLOS

AIVIVS 00L0S

BEIER) €]

#100V



00°6.0°¢) 0L°281'S.V'6L 69°125°682'S 0.°992'88v 61
00°0¥S'9 68'080°69Z'S 65°/91'66)'S §8°029'142'S
00°0¥S'9 8¥'6..'v8 00°08%'02 8¥'61E'L6

- £V LoV LPL'S 6G°20L'vEL'S Sy L9V LYL'S

- v6'€€8'L8 - v6°6€8'LE

- 00°000°L - 00°000°L

- 00°00L'+.2 ¥£'692°68 00°001°L42

- 00°000°0L 00's28's 00°000°0}

- 00°005'28 60881 ‘g€ 00°005'28

- 00°000°0% 00°000'9L 00°000°0%

- 00'002'2C} §2'959'sT 00°002'22}

- 00°000'S - 00'000°S

- 00°00S - 00°00S

- 00°002'} - 00°00Z'}

- 00°000'L - 00°000'L

- 00°00.'8 00°009 00°00.'8

- £p298'8y8'EL - £¥'/98'8V8'EL

- ey /98'sp8'el - £’ te8'8y8'eEl

JONVRIVA avnLov TIVNLOY 139ang
a3103rodd az103aroyd QLA (44174
[£4174 (44114
2202 AVIN

AUVINIANS TVIONVNI

SIASNIJAX3 V1Ol

ANNd ONILVYY3d0 10141810 O1 Y34SNWHL 18606
QNN SONVYNILNIVIN 8 SHIVA3Y OL H¥34SNVYL 08605
FOIAY3S 1930 OL YIJSNVHL 6605

SINIAT TVIOAJS OL HIJISNWML 87608

QANNd £528 O1 ¥3ASNVHL 22605

A3A NOOJ3 O1 Y34ISNWHL 9.606

ONN ONILLYHE3JO OL Y34SNVHL 52608
SLINIWIAOUIWI TYLIdVO 0.608

ASNIdXA 30INY3S 18930 ¥3IHLO 69605

SANOE O SARI3S NO ISNIHXT 89605

SANOg g S3H3S NO ISNALXT L9605

SANOS V S33S NO ISNIIXT 99605

SANOG O SIS NO TVdIONd §9605

SCGNO4 g S3RITIS NO TVJIONRd ¥9608

SANOS V SARTS NO TVJIONRId £9605

SANOE D S3RAS NO LSIUTLINI 29605

SANOG 9 S31Y3S NO LSIYILNI 19605

SANOE V S3RIIS NO LSTUILNI 09605
ADNIONIINOD LO3rodd L5605

S1S00 LO3r0Yd 43H10 95605

SLSOO ONIONVYNIL LO3roudd SS60S

$1S00 LNINJOT13IA3A LI3r0oHd #5605

AINTNCINDI ¥ STUNLIXIS 'JUNLINYNS LO3rOUd £5605
S1S00 NOILONYLSNOD LO3royd 25605
ANIFNSAOHINE 2 NOLLISINOOV ALS LO3r0Hd 15605
SHIVdIY VLAV £0608

ANINWIND3 HW3HLO 20605

LNININD3 301440 10605

SRANLIANIdXT Tv.LIdYD 00605

JLMN —38MW3IGIN 15805

HOLINOW LNIANIJAAN! 3aM/3aN 05805

$334 MNvE QIIH41TvNO 0805

SIALLNZONI /SINYYO LNINJOTIAIA DHINONODI 52805
LANY IONVYNILNIVIN/LINIWIDVYNVYIN YINOIS S180S

J34 ¥3SN LORILSIQ- SFOINGTS A3 LOVHINOD #1805
SHORHE- SFOIAYZS Q3 LOVHINOD 21805
LNVIINSNOD WYO0Ud/H0LO3NIA ANLLNOAXA 80805
LNVLINSNOD NOLLOMNYLSNOD L080S

TESNAOD Y301 £0805

TASNAOD TYNOIDIY 20805

S3VINGIS ONLLNNODIY 2 LIANY TYNNNY 10805

IVIHOLINYT $040S
SHIVAIAW/IONVYNILNIVIN €008
S3LLN 20L0S

IN3IY L0405

(panuguoo) :g3SNIJXI

S3VINYES TYNOISSTI0dd 00805



{00°L) 00122 62 ¥eC 00022'S
- 00°002 19722 00002
- 00'00Z 19281 00002

(0071) 001 00’1 -
. 00°00S - 00°005
- 00°00S - 00°009
- 00°00€ Gl LL 00°00¢
- 00°0Z0'L - 00020}
- /¥'€90'8 €8'8L6¢C 7'€90'8
- 08285 6EZ60'L 08'285°E
- 0092 00°ZEL 00¥92
- £T66L 21128 £266.
- il [TELE) Wip'e
- G66L1'GS 09¥0'LC S6°6L1'6S
- G6'6L1°SS 0901 T 96'611°GS

IONVIEVA IVNIOV TVALOV 139ang
az1o3arodd a3aLoarodd dlA 2202
zzoz zz0z
- TV ESELGL 9g5°€8¥'02 Zyr€GE 161
- TV EGELS1 95°€87'0C Zr'€8E LSL
- 8V 6LE V9 - 8V 81E V9
- 00°000°22 00°09%'02 0000022
- P6€E8 € - ¥6°€£8°2€
- 00°002'22 96°'€Z 00002'22
JONVIIVA Tvniov JvNiov I5and
a3arosarodd a3roaroud aia zeoe
220z 7202
2202 AVIN

aNNd ONILLYHIdO Lo 1SIa

ISNIdXT SNOANVTIZOSIN 0LE0S

ONIHSINYNA/ININLINDT 301440 60€0S

JSNIdX3 ® S3'ddNS 321440 80€0S

SA004 8 SNOILAIHOSANS L0205

SdIHSYIgN3N ANV S3NA 9005

1S0O0 XV4/AdOD S0€08

LNIJWLINGOIY ANV ONISILYIAAY #0£0S

AYIAINEA ANV 39VLSOd £0£0S

3INOHJIT3L 20€0S

ONILNIYd ANV AYANOILYLS LOS0S
ISNIdX3 301440 00£05

ANJWLSNrav ADVIVS 01209
ININIHILIH 60205
ALITIIVSIA 80205
JONVHNSNI 3417 L0205
00N A1VLS ANV Tvy3a34 90205
FONVHNSNI TVIN3IA 0205
JONVINSNI HLTV3H #0205
INIWAOCTININN £020S
FHVOIA3IN 0205
ALRKNO3IS TVIDOS 1020S
S1iddNdd JONIdd 00205

SIVIVS 10108
AYUVIVS 00105

#1000V
*SISNIdX3

SIANNIAIY TVLOL

ININJOTIAIA DINONODI NI HAJISNVYHL #7607

FONVYNILNIVIN ANV NOILVHIdO NI H34SNVHL L¥60Y

QNN L5628 NI HIASNVYL 060

ANN- TVEINIO NO LSIHIUNI LO60Y
SNOINVTIIOSIN 00607

$334 Y3IHIO ANV T¥YNOISS3J0¥d €007
SAOUVYHD TVININNIINODHEILNI 00€0¥

Xv1 S31vs LoLoy
SOXVL 0010¥%

# 100V
‘SINNIARA



006559 Ty vi9zee 26°00E° 1L Zreslieee SISNIIXH TVLOL
- 00°000'} - 00°000°}
- - - - ININGINDIA ¥IHLO Z060S
- 00°000't - 00°000°} INIWDINDT 301440 L060S
STENLIANTAXT WLIdvD
- 00°00L°EEL G2 952 9¢ 00001 °€EL
- 00002221 GZ'959'62 00002221 L1aNV ONYNIINIVIN/ LNIWIDOYNYIN YINDIS §180S
- - SHOMYE- SIDIAYIAS ATLOVHINOD Z180S
- - - - INVLINSNOD WVHDO0Ud/H0L0IHIA IALLNDIXT 80805
- - - INVLTINSNOD NOILONYLSNOD 20805
- 00°00Z't - 00002'} JISNNOD TYO01 £0805
- 00°000°L - 00°000't TISNNOD TYNOIDIY 20805
- 00°00.'8 00°009 00°00.'8 SAVIAUIS ONILNNODOVY B LIANV TYNNNY L0805
S3IDIAYIS TYNOISSIJ0dd
- - - - IVIHOLINVT #0205
- - - - SYIVAIY/IDONYNILNIVIN £020S
- - - - SIILITILN 20205
- - - - IN3Y 10208
SISOD ONIGTING 301440 ANV IN39
00°0%5'9 00°096°02 00°/88°02 00005 /¢
- 00°00S 00°/6€ 00005 dNOD SYIFUOM 50905
- - - - YTI3YEINN - ALV TVH3N3O #0905
(00°6¥E) 00°GE'GL 00°'SYE'GL 00°000'G1 ALMIAVIT TYNOISSIH0Hd £0905
- - - - 01NV A3NMO-NON 2090S
00°688'9 00°SLL'S 00°SLL'S 000002t ALITEVIT TvHANIS 10905
FONVENSNI
- - - - SS300V LANYILNI £0505
- - - - 1¥0ddNS ANV FONVYNILNIVA 20505
- - - - NOLLVTIVISNI/ININDINOI/AYVMLIOS L0S0S
S3IDIAYIS NOILVINTOANI
- 00051} - 00°0S1'L
- 00°00€ - 00°00¢ SADNIHIINOD £0¥05
- 00°008 - 00°00S SIASNAJXI ANY IOVITIN 44V.LS Z0Y0S
- 00°06¢ - 00°06¢ SASNIdXT 2 IOVITIW HIFWIN a¥v0d L0¥0S
ONINIVEL OGNV 3ONIY3INOD 19AvEL
FONVIGVA TVNIOV YNIOV =5angd
a3aLoarodd a3lo3roud atAa zzoz (panunuod) :saSNIAJXI
zz0z [AA T4
2202 AVIN

QNNd ONILVI3dO 1LOR1SIa

00609

00805

00408

0090¢

00509

00t0S

# 100V



T

- 000059 90°676°L 000059

- 00°00S'9 90'6v6'L 00°005'9

- 0070059 90'6v6'L 00°00S'9

JONVINVA avniov avNLdv 139dan4g
a31o3rodd a3Lo3arodd ata 2202
{4414 [£4174
00'00€'S5S 00°00€°€00°L £0°088°696 00°000 8¥¥

- 00°000'8% 2008501 00°000°8%

- 00°000°8¥ 200850l 00°000°8¥
0000656 00°00€'656 00°00€'S56 00°000°00%
00°00€ 555 00°00€'G56 00°00£'556 00°000°00%

JONVRIVA VALV avniLov 139ang
a3103rodd a3aLoarodd [¢EDN 2202
(44114 (44114
2202 AVIN

(IVNNNV) SLO3r0o¥d TVLIdVD

S3ISNaJX3 TvIOL

F0IAYAS 1830 Ol ¥IASNVHL 62605

SLNIWINOHJWI TVLIdVD 02605

AONZONILNOD 103rodd 45605

S1802 L03roydd ¥3H1O 9560S

S1S00 ONIONVYNI4 LO3rodd 55605

S1S00 LNINDOI3AIA LO3rodd 8605

ININCINDT 8 STHUNIXIS ‘FUNLINYNA LOArOxd £5605

S1S0D NOLLONYLSNOD 103roxd 26608

LNIWIAOHAINI 8 NOILISINDDY I LIS 103royd 16605
SANLIANIdXT TV1IdVD 00605

$334 MNvE a34ITvND 0805
INVITINSNOD WYHO0Hd 80805
ANVLINSNOD NOLLONYLISNOD L080S
S30INGAS TWNOISSE40dd 00805
#1200V

‘S3ISNIX3

SIANNIAZA TV.LIOL

SANNJ NOILONYLSNOD NO LS3HILNI 0L60F
SNOINYTI3OSIN 00607

INOVAT TIVEL004 TYNOLLYN Z080Y
SUIIOVd Avd NIFHD L080Y
SNOILYNOQ 0080y

$334 ¥3sSN Lovor
S3DAUVHO OIdNd 00¥0%

NISNOOQSIM 40 3LVLS S020v




Lo
\
N

2

JONVRIVA
a3aLoarodd

FONVIEVA
Qa3103royd

1£°928°16L'S

LE710E'6LL'G

P LIV LYL'G
$6'€€8°LE

00700511
00°000°L1
00°008

00°620°'L
00'6L2

00°00S8
00°05¢

IvnLov
a3103rodd
(44174

00°000°04¥'C
00°000°00S"L

00°000°005°}

00°000°0.6

0070000
00°000°00%

00°000°00S

avnLov
a3103royd
2202

GOP8E'6EL'S

1£928°161'C

65°L0LYEL'S

6S°20L'vEL'S

LE710E'6LL'S

90285’y

P LoV LYL'S
v6'ee8’LE

90°'28S'Y

00°005'41

00°000°}1

00°005

0006
00°06
vniov

aiA
[441 74

00'520°L

0.°08¢°8S

00'6le

00°00¢
00°052

1390ng

2202

Zoere'le

00°000°04¥C

zoevsiie

00°000°00S't

80°2£8'9¢

00°000°005"L

80°2£8'9¢

00°000°026

00°000°0L
00°000°00%

00°000°00S

avniLov
aiA
(44174

139and

220¢

T0Z AVIN

SISNIJX3 TVLIOL

GNN- FONYNDLINIVIN 8 SNOILLYHIJO OL ¥34SNVHL 08606
ANNd TVH3INIOS OL ¥3ISNWL 67605
STANLIANIXT TVLIdVO 00605

$334 XNvE g314ITvND  0£80S
LIANY FONVYNIINIVIN/ININIOVYNYIN VINDOIS 51805
SHORIG- SADIAYIAS QTLOVHINOD Z180S
ANVLINSNOD NYHOO0Ud 80805
TISNNOD TYNOIDIY 20805

S3VINAAS TYNOISSII0Hd 00808

ISNIJXA ® S3MddNS 301440 80€05

LS00 XV4/AdOD S0€05

ININLINGD3H ANV ONISILAIAAY 0208

AYIAIMIA ANV 3DOVLSOd €0205

ONILNIMd ANV AY3INOILYLS 10€0S
ASN3IdX3 301440 00€0S

# 100V
*SASNIAJXT

SIANNIAIY TVLIOL

AJINAGIS 1930 NI 434SNVHL €v607
SONN4 2628 NO 1S3HIINI 1160V
SNOANVYTIIOSIN 00607

S334 INL ANV X048 L0¥0¥
440 MOIHD XV.L JNWOONI 9040+
$334 3LV1d ISNIOIT S0v0Y
SINIAZ VIOIdS €0v0v
334 13011 Z0v0v

S39¥VHO JIMdNd  00v0b

XVL SIS L0LOY
S3XVL 0010v

# 100V
*SINN3IAIY

aNN: £528- INNIASY TVIO3dS



00°0¥S' 9
00°0¥5'9
00°0¥S'9

AONVIRIVA
aa103roud

00000000 }

00°000°000°L

Dy T —

00°000'000'}

JONVRIVA
a3Loarodd

£V /e 6v6 €L
00°09v'02
00°099'02

0000008

—_—

00°000'0}
00°000°'69
00°000'S

£9°/98'8¥8EL
R STy ey perayey e a—

gv'/o8'8v8 el

00009
00°009

IVNLOV
a3aLd3aroud
20T

P LoV 956 7L
£V /9¥'LSL'S
—=resr a0

VLW LYL'S
00°000°0L

00°000'508'6

00°000'508'6

VALY
azaL0ArO¥Ud
2202

£6°9€6'09

00°09¢°'0Z
00°08¥'0C

16°949°07
00°528'8
16'159'1 €

IVNLOY
ata
f44:r4

_—

89950 0/C /L
80'¥92'8EL'S
6G°L0LVEL'S
61'95S'E

——

0926.'LEL'T

09°2Z6L'LEL'T

vNLOV

2202

£V /9V'9G6'EL

00°000°22

00°000°22

00°000'08

00°000'0L
00°000's9
00°000°S

£p°/98'8¥8'EL

cv'/98'ev8'EL

00°009

00°009

139ang
[£4i14

SV /9v' 966 el

SV L9¥'LGL'S

SV L9V IPL'S
00°000°0L

00°000'508'8

00°000'508'8

i13oang
ZZ0Z

2202 AVIN

SISNIJX3 TV1OL

ONN ONLLYHIJO LORMLSIT OL ¥I4SNYHL 1860S
SHlvd3d TYLIdVO £0605
SFANLIANIEXE VLAV 00608

OLMN —3gMW/3aanN L5805

HOLINOW INIAN3J3ANI IgM/adIN 05808
S334MINVE A31dITYND  0£80S

334 ¥3SN LORILSIA- S3OINYAS GTLOVHLINOD #1805
INVLINSNOD NVHO0Hd 80805

LNVLIINSNOD NOILONYLSNQO 20805

SHUIVJIAAN/FONYNILNIVIN £0208
S1S0O ONIGTNG ANV LN3Y 00208

ISNIdX3 ® S3INMddNS 301440 80€0S
ISNIdX3 30140 00£05

# 100V
:S3SNIAIXT

SINNIAIY Tv1OL

SANNA INNIATY TVIOIdS BIHLO WOHL NI ¥I4SNVHL  0¥60b
1S3YIALNI LL60P
SNO3ANVTIZ0SIN 0060%

334 13M01L 20¥0b
S30IVHO Ongnd 00v0¥

Xv1S3vsS LoLoy
S3aXvl ooLov

#1002V
SSANNIAINY

JONVNILNIVIN ANV SNOILYHIdO- SNNIATY TvIOIdS



SISNIdX3 TVLIOL

CGNNd FONVNILINIVIA ® SNOLLYAEIdO OL ¥34SNVHL 08605
STHUNLIANIAX3 TVLIdVO 00605

L1aNV IONYNILNIVIW/ININIOVNYIN YINDIS S180%
LINYLTNSNOD WVHOO0Hd 80805
TISNNOD TVNOID3Y 20805

S30INITS TYNOISSIJ0™d 00805

JSNIdXZ ? S3NddNS 301440 80€0S

1800 XV4/AJ0OD S0€05

ANINLINGOTY ANV ONISILYIAAY $0€0S

AY3IAINTAA ANY JOVLSOd €0€05

ONLINRd ANV AYINOILYLS 10205
ISNIdX3 301440 00€0S

13oand
(4474 # 100V
-SISNA4X3T
SINNIATY TVi0L
GNN4 L6Z8 NI ¥34SNVHL 0v601
SANN SINIAT TVIO3dS NO LSIHALINI 1160y
SNO3NVTIIOSIN 0060+
S3d4 L ANV HIOIRIE  L0V0
440 H03HD XVL JNODNI 90+0¥
S334 31V1d ASN3DIT S0v0v
SIN3IAT WVIO3dS €0v0¥
d34 13011 20¥0F
S30AVHO JI1and  00¥0%
XVLS3avS 1010¥
SIXVL 0010V
139dng # 100V
[44174 *SANNIATY
2202 AVIN

SINIAT TVIOIdS- INNIAIY TVIO3AdS



- _8YBLEVOL 00°00091 87 61LE 0L S3ISNIdX3 V101

E 87 6LE 79 - 87 618 79
- 8Y'6LEY9 - 8Y'6LE'YY QNN ONILVHIJO LORLSIA OL HAISNVHL 18608
STENLANIdXT W1LdvD 00608
- 0000007 000009} 00°000'0F
- 00°000'0F 00°000'94 00°000'0% SIAILNIONI /SINVED INTWNJOT1IAIA DINONODT SZ80S
SITINTTS TVNOISSIIOSd 00805
ISNIdX3 % SIMddNS 301440 80€0S
1S0D XV4/AJOD S0£0S
AINFWLINYOIY ANV ONISLLYIAQY ¥0E0S
AY3AITEA ANV FOVISOd £0£0S
ONILNI¥d ANV AHINOILVLS 10805
FSNIIXT T390 00£0§
TONVIIVA VLoV TVNLOV IZ5ang
a=3Lo3roNd a31o3royd aLi zeoz # 100V
zz0Z zz0z :SISNIAIXI
- 00°005°€ g9'glLe 00°00S'E SANNIAT TVLOL
- 00 005'€ S98lE 00°005€ ,
8 00°005°€ S9gLE 0000S°T QGNN4 A3A OINONOOT NO 1SIHTINI SL60Y
- - 3IOIAYIS 193Q NI ¥IJSNvHL EF60F
SNOaNVTIFOSIN 00607
. - - 334 NOILONVS 0180%
SNOILVNOQ 0080¥
SIXVL 00LOV
SONVIEVA VALV WNIoV 135an4d # 100V
@aa193roud a=103roud aLa 2202 :SINNIATY
7202 Z20Z
2202 AVIN

GNN- INJINJOTIAIA DINONODI



00°000°000°} 680262081 G8'CYS'S88'L G8°0ZE'620 L1 SINNIAZY TVLOL
- G80ZE ¥58°9 Y0'€LZ 161G S8 0ZE 7589
- S3300¥d J1LON LS60P
- 8Y'6LE'PO - IR 1INFNDOTI3AIA DINONODT NI HIASNVHL v+607
- - - - S103ro¥d TYLIdYD NI Y34SNYHL Zv60y
- 00°000'22 00°09%'02 00°000'22 FONVYNILNIVIN NV NOLLYHIdO NI HI4SNYYL Ly60y
- 2£710€'641L'G 65°20L'vEL'S 1£10€'6LL'S ANN4 2528 NI ¥IJISNVHL 07607
- 00°005'e zelel 00°005' AaNNd A3A JINONODA NO LSIUILINI §L60Y
- 00°000°0L5'L SR AR T 00°000°015'} SANNA ANNIATY TVIDIJS NO LSTHIUNI LL60oY
- 00°000'8Y 9z'ev9's 00°000'8y SUNNL NOILONYLSNOO NO 1S3NTLINI 01607
- - - - SQ3ID0ud ILON NO 1SIHTLINI 8060%
- - - SANNS IANISTY JDIAYIS 1830 NO LSTHIUINI L0609
- - - - SANN- ANOE NO LSIFUILNI 50601
- - - - S1IS0O43A XYL STIVS NO LSTFHILNI £060Y
- 00°002'22 LS'LL 0000222 GNNd TYE3ENIO NO LSIHILINI 1060V
SNO3NVTIIOSTA 0060%
- - - - 334 NOLLONYS 01807
- - - - SNOLLYNOQ NV3gNY1 3AYS 0801
- - - - INOVAT TIVELO0S TYNOILYN 2080%
- - - - SYIMIOV AVE NIIHD L080Y
SNOILYNOQ 0080%
00°000°000'F 00°000'G/L° L1 18°69C ¥69°C 00°000°G.L 0}
- 00700002 1221091 00°000°0L S334 JLL ANV IONY  Z0b0Y
- - - - 440 MO3IHO XVL IWOONI 90b0Y
- 00°000°00% - 00°000'00% S334 31v1d ISNIDIT SOvOY
- - - - SLINIAZ VIOAdS £0¥0¥
00°000°000°} 00°000°G0£'01L 09'Z6L'LEL'T 00°000'50€'6 334 L3IM0IL Z0P0P
- 00°000°00% 00°00v'9PS 00°000'00% $334 ¥3ASN LOVOY
SIS5YVHD Onignd 00¥0%
- - - - S334 HIHLO ANV TYNOISSTH0Nd £0E0Y
SIADUVHD TVININNTIAOOEAINI 00£0¥
- - - - NISNOOSIM 40 3LV.LS 5020¥
INNIATE TVINIANTIACDETLINI 00207
- - - - XYL SIS L0LOY
SIXVL 00LOY
3ONVISVA IVNIOV VNIV FELTNE] # 100V
a31o3rodd asioaroxd aia zz0z :SIANNIATN
zz0z 220z
2202 RidY

AJVINIANS “TVIONVNIS



00°0¥5'9 00709602 00725802 00°00S 42

- 00°005 00°6€ 00°00S
(00's¥8) 00'S¥E'sL 00°SPE'SL 00°000'6L
00°688'9 00°GLL'S 00°5LL'S 00°000'Ck

- 00°061'1 - 00051}

- 00°00¢ - 00°00¢

- 00°00S - 00°00¢

- 00°0s€ - 00°05¢

- 00SY8 v 0S'€82 005¥S8'Y

- 00°002 18722 00002

- 00°626'L 89251 00's.8'L

- 00°00S - 00°00§

- 00°00S - 00°00S

- 00°005 0006 00°005

- 007055 SLLL 00°06S

- 00°020'} - 00°020°L

- Ly'€90'8 16'962'C J¥'€90'8

- 08'285'S £€8°018 08'28s's

- 0092 00°0LL 00492

- £2'66. 0,652 €266/

- PrLLb'E ProLLL vrLLv'e

- G6'6L1°GS 0’50891 G661 GG

- G66LL'GS 0%'508'91 G6'6L1'GG

3ONVIRVA AVALOVY AVRLOV 135ang
g3a103rodd g3aLo3aroxd aLA 20z
220z 2202
2202 dV

AMVINIANS TVIONVNIA

dNOD SYINIOM S090S

YTIFHEAN - ALMISVIT TYH3NIO $0805
ALMEVIT TVNOISS340ud £0908
OLNVY GINMO-NON 20905

ALNIGYIT TVEANTGD L0905

3FONVHENSNI 00905

S$S300V 13NH3LNI £€0505
1¥0ddNS GNY 3ONVYNILNIVIN 20505
NOILLYTIVLSNI/LNININDI/FYVYMLLOS L0S0S

SIDINITS NOILLYWHOLNI 00505

S3ONIHIAINOD £0v05

(S3LLMIOVL ¥AHLO OL SdI¥l 40
# NO INIANIJ3IA) STSNIIXT ANV IOVITIN 44VLS Z0v0s
SASNIIXT B JOVITIN HIGNTIN QUv0g L0v0S

ISNIdXE SNO3INVTIAOSIN 010G
ANINGIND3 301440 60£0S
ASNIdX3 ® S3AMJdNS 301440 80£08
SX004d ¥ SNOILJINOSENS L0€0S
SdIHSH3GWIAN ANV S3NA 90€0s

LS00 XV4/AdOD $0€05

LININLINYOTY ANV ONISILYIAAY YOE0S
AYIANZA ANV FOVISOd £0€0S

INOHJIN3L 20€0S

ONILNRId ONV AHINOLLYLS L0E0S

ONINIVYL ONVY IONIFYIAINOD TTIAVHEL 00¥0S

ISNIdXZ 301440 00€0S

ININWLSNrav ALVYIVS 01208

ANINFHLFY 60205
ALIMNgvsia 80205
IONVHNSNI 3417 L0208

00N ALVLS OGNV TvH3a3d 9020s
AONVHNSNI TVLINIA 50205
AONVHNSNI HLTV3H ¥020S

INIFWAOTIWINN €020S
FHVYIIA3N 20205
ALIENDAS TVIO0S L020S

S11d43IN3d IONIES 00205

SINIVIVS LOLOS

AYVIVS 00108

-SISNAIX3

# 100V



00°080°€1 02°981°G.v'61 88°9LL8ET'S 02°99Z°881'61
00°0¥5'9 $8°080'692'S 6G Z91'GGL'S G8°029 1/2'S
00°0¥5°9 8v'6LL 78 00°09%'0¢ 8V 61516

- eV 0P LPL'S 65 L0L'VEL'S S LoV LYL'S

- ¥6°8£8'LE - $6'££8'L¢

- 00°000'} - 00°000°L

- 00°00L'L/C Z9'90E EY 00004142

- 00°000°01 - 00°000°0L

- 00°005'28 Z9'18l'9 00°005'28

- 00°000'0¥ 00°000'9L 00°000'0¥

- 00°002'221 00'625'02 00002221

- 00°000'S - 00°000'S

- 00°005 - 007005

- 00°002't - 00°002'}

- 00000} - 00°000°L

- 00°002'8 00°009 00°00.'8

- SV /98'8V8 El - £V /98'8PS El

- £ /98'8¥8'SL - £ /98'8y8'sL

FONVIAVA WNLOV AVNLIOV 1E5ang
a3Loarodd a3LoarodNd ata 20z
Fadir4 2202
2202 TRidV

AYVININNS TVIONVNIL

SISNAJXH IVLOL

aNNd ONLLYY3dO LOYLSIQ O1 H34SNVHL 18605
ANNd IONVYNILNIVIA 8 SHIVdIY OL W34ISNVHL 08606
IDINYIS 1930 OL YIISNVYHL 62605

SINIAZ TVIOAdS OL HIAISNWIL 81608

GNNd 2528 OL ¥3ISNVHL L.605

A3QA NOO3 O1 ¥34SNVHL 9460¢

ANNd ONILYY3HO OL ¥34SNVYL 54608
SLINIFNINOHLNI TYLIdVD 0L60S

IASNAdXA IVINGTIS 1930 Y3IHLO 69605

SANOE D S3IYIS NO ASNAJX3 89605

SANOE g S3IYAS NO ISNIIXT 29608

SANOY V SIS NO ISNIJX3 99605

SANOE O S3ARIAS NO TVdIONIYd $9605

SANOE d S3I¥3S NO TVJIONIMd 9605

SANOE V STIYIS NO TvdIONINd £9605

SANOE O S3RIIS NO LSIUILNI 29605

SANOG 9 SIS NO LSIHALNI 1L960S

SANOg V SAIYIS NO 1S3HILNI 09605
ADNIONILNOD LO3rOMd L5608

$1S09 LOAroYd YaH1O 95608

S1S00 ONIONVYNIL LO3rodd §5605

S1S00 LNINJOTIAIA LO3roud ¥$60s

INTNDINDI 8 STUNLIXIS 'FUNLINYNLG LOIFOUd 5605
SLS0O NOLLONYLSNOD LO3r0oyd 25605
LNIWIAOYINI 8 NOILISINDOY JLIS LO3r0ud 15606
SuIVdIY TYLIdvD £0605

INININDI ¥3IH1O0 20608

IN3ININD3 301440 L0605

STAENLIANIdXT TVLdVYD 00608

OLMN —JamM/3gin  1580%

HOLINOW INIONI4IANI 3aM/38IN 05805

$334 MNvE a3idvNO 0805

SANLNIONI /SINYYO INTWJOTIAIA JINONODI 52808
1INV IONYNILNIVIW/INIWIOVYNYIN YIWOIS §180S

I34 "ISN LOMH1SIA- STOIAEIS A3 LOVHINOD ¥1808
SHOIHg- SAOINYIS QI LOVUINOD 21808
ANVLITNSNOD WYHOOU/AH0LITHIA IAILNDIXT 80805
ANVLIINSNOD NOILDONY.LSNOD L0805

13SNNOJ YO0 £080S

TIASNNOD TYNOIDIY 20805

SADINYITS ONILNNODIY 2 LIANY TYNNNY 10805

SIVINEFS TVYNOISSII0Ud 00805

IVIMOLINYT 005
SHIVJIH/IONYNILNIVIN £0205
S3ILALLN 20L0S

AN3IM L0L0S

S1SOO ONIdING 301440 ANV IN3H 00205

(panunuod) :gISNAJXT



- 00022 0ee6l 00°02C’e
- 00°00C 187¢C 00002
- 00004 89CG1 0000
- 007005 - 007005
- 00°00S - 00°00s
- 00°00¢€ GLLL 00°00¢
- 00020'} - 00020°1
- Ly'€90'8 16962 Lt'€90'8
- 08'z8s'e €8'918 08'zZ8s'c
- 00%92 000LL 00'v92
- £€T'66. 0,652 £C66.
- vriLv'e ¥ oLLL iV
- G6611°6S 0’50891 6661165
- G6'611'6G 0¥'G08'91 96'611°GS
JONVRIVA IvnLov TVNLOV 139dand
g3aLoaroyd azaLo3aroyd ata (44174
[44\r4 (44174
- Zr'ese’LSL 18 Liv'0C ZYESE'LS)
- Y EGeLSL LG LI¥ 02 (LA
- 87 6LEP9 - 8V'6LE V9
- 00°000°22 00°09%'02 00°000°22
- 76°€€8'LE - P6'EE8'LE
- 0000222 LSL1L 00°002'2Z
JONVRIVA IvYNLOV IVNLOV 139dng
qa1o03royd a3Lo3arodd atAa (44174
(44114 ez0T
20T ddv

aNNd ONILVY3dO0 10RiLSIa

ISNIdXTI SNOIANVTIIOSIN 0L£0S

ONIHSINYNA/ININDIND3I 301440 60205

3SNIdX3 ® S3NddNS 301440 80208

$X004d ? SNOLLJIYOSdNS £0€0S

SdIHSYIGNIIN ANV S3NA 90€0S

LSOO XV4/AdOD S0€0S

ANIWLINHEDIE ANV ONISILYINAY #0205

AY3AINEIA ANV JOVLSOd €0205

INOHJ3T3L 20205

ONILNIYd ANV AH3NOILVLS 1020S
3ISN3dX3 301440 00£0S

ININLSNrav ARVIVS 01208
ANIWIAHILTY 60205
ALITIGVSIA 80208
IONVHNSNI 3417 L0205
00N 31VLS ANV Tvd3a3d 90205
JONVHNSNI TVLINIA $0205
JONVHNSNI HLTV3H 0208
INIWAOTHININN €0205
JAVOIaaW 2020s
ALIMND3AS TVIOO0S 10205
S1I43N3d 3ONIHd 00205

SANVIVS L0L0S
AIVIVS 0010S

# 100V
*SISNIJX3

SANNIAZY TVIOL

ININGOT3AZA DINONOD NI HIASNVHL 607

JONVYNILNIVIN ANV NOILYHIdO NI 434SNVHL Ly60Y

aNN4d /528 NI 434SNVL 0¥60t

ANNd TvAINIO NO LSTHALINI L060Y
SNO3INVTI3OSIN 0060¥

S33d Y3IHLO ANV TYNOISSIH0uHd £0S0¥
SIDUVYHO TVININNAINOOHIINI 00€0Y

XV1 S37VS L0L0Y
S3IXVL 00L0t

#1002V
*SINNIATY



00°0¥5°9 zheLeeee 29°272°19 Zhesi'eee S3ASN3dX3a TvIOL
- 00°000°L - 00°000°L
- - - - LN3INCINDI3 ¥3HLO Z060S
- 00°000°L - 00°000'} 1N3INCINDIF 301440 1L060S
STHNLIANIIXT TVLIdVYD
- 00°00L°€€L 00seLlz 0000} '€EL
- 000022z} 00°625°0¢C 00002221 11Ny IONVYNILNIVIN/ININIDVYNYIN YIADIS 51805
- - SYOIdg- SIDINYES AT LOVHINOD Z180S
- - - - INVLINSNOD WYHOOHd/HOLOIHIA IALLNDIXT 80805
- - - INVLTINSNOO NOILONYLSNOD £080S
- 00°00Z'} - 0000Z'} TASNNOD VD017 £0808
- 00°000°} - 00°000°} TASNNOD TYNOIDIY 20805
- 007008 00°009 00008 S3VINGIS ONILNNODDY ® LIANY TYNNNY L0805
STVINGFS TYNOISSI40dd
- - - - IVIHOLINVT 0409
- - - - SHIVAIY/AONYNILNIVIN €0205
- - - - S3LLLN 20408
- - - - IN3IH 10208
S1S00 ONId1INg 301440 ANV INJY
00°0¥5'9 00°096°02 00/68°0¢ 00°005°22
- 00°009 00°L6€ 00°009 dNOD SUIDIYOM 50905
- - - - VTI3H9AN - ALTEVIT TYE3N3O ¥090S
(00°5v¢) 00'SPE'SE 00°S¥E'GL 00°000°G1 ALINGVIT TYNOISS3H40ud £090S
- - - - OLNY GaINMO-NON 20905
00°688°9 00°GLL'S 00'GLL'S 00°000°CL ALIMGVYIT TVH3IN3IO L0905
JONVENSNI
- - - - SS30JV LIANYILNI €0505
- - - - 1d0ddNS ANV IONVYNILNIVIN 20505
- - - - NOLLVTIVLSNI/LNINJINOI/TIVMIIOS 1L0S0S
S3OINGIS NOLLYINTOLNI
- 00°051L°L - 000S51L°L
- 00°00¢ - 00°00€ SIONTHIINOD £0+05
- 00°00S - 00005 SIASNIdXT ANV IDOVITIN 44VLS 20¥0S
- 00°0s¢ - 00°05€ SISNIAJX3 @ JOVITIN HIFNIN QHVOg L0Y0S
. ONINIVHL ANV JONIHFANOD T1IAVEL
JONVRIVA avnLov TVNLOV 135ang
a3103rodd a3aid3rodd aita (44114 (panuyuos) :g3SNIdXI
2202 ceoe
¢20Z THdV

NN ONLLVY34O0 LORISIa

00609

0080S

00405

0090S

0050s

00¥0S

# LO0V



0070059 169161 0070059
0070069 1G9LS'L 0070059
00°005'9 L6916t 000059
TFONVIAVA IVALOV VN1V i3sang
a3Lo3royd Q3Lo3roydd aia 2202
2202 2202
00°000°8%7¥ 92 €¥0'955 00°000°8t¥
00°000'8% 92’ cv9'6 00°000'8%
00°000'8% 92 Er9 6 00°000'8%
00°000°00% 00°00%'9%S 007000 00¥
00°000°00% 00°00V'9%S 00°000°00%
TONVIGVA SVALOV TVNLOV F5ang
Q3aLoaAroNd a3Lo3roud ala zz02
z202 2202
2202 MAudv

(AYNNNV) SLO3ro¥d TV.LIdVD

SASNIdX3 VLOL

30IAYE3S 1930 OL ¥3ISNVHL 61605

SINIWINOHJNI TVLIdVD 0.60G

AONZONILNOD 1O3rodd L560§

S1S00 103royd ¥3aH10 96605

S1S00 ONIONVYNI4 LO3r0dd §5608

$1S00 ININJOT3AIA 103rodd 9605

LNININDT *® STUNLXIA ‘TUNLINYNL LO3rOUd €560

S1S00 NOILONYLSNOD 133rodd 2560S

ANIWSAOHUJNI 8 NOILISINOOV ALIS LOArOxHd 15605
SFANLIANIdXT TV1IdvD 00605

S334 M¥Nvg a3141MvND 0£80S

ANVLINSNOD WYHO0Yd 80805

LNVLINSNOD NOLLONYLSNOD L0808
S3OINAIS TYNOISSIJ0Hd 00808

# 100V

‘SASNAIX3

SIANNIATY TVIOL

SANNS NOLLONYLSNOD NO 1S3 LINI 0160%
SNOINVTIZOSIN 0060F

ANOVIT TIVEL00d TVNOILYN Z080Y
SUDIOVd Avd NIIFHO L080Y
SNOILYNOQ 0080t

$334 ¥3sn Lovoy
SADAUVYHO O11aNnd 00¥0¥

NISNOOSIM 40 31LVLS S0Z0v
INNIATE TVINIANIIAODETLNI 0020%

, #100V
'SANNIATA



FONVRIVA
a3Lo3arodd

JONVRIVA
a31o3arodd

L8°928°161L'G

LE710E°6L1°G

YLV IVL'G
$6'€€8°LE

0000511
00°000°4}
007008

0020’1
00°6le
00°00S
00°0S¢

AVNLOV
a3Lo3rodd
[4A174

00°000°0Lv'C
00°000°00S°L

00°000°005"L

00°000°046

00°000°0L

00°000°00%

00°000°005

VNIV
a3103rodd
2202

YL 1GP'8EL'S LE£°928°LBL'S
65 L0L'¥EL'S L€710€'6LL'G
6G°L0LVEL'S eV L9V LYL'S
- $6°€€8°LE
SLYS9'E 007005}
GLv69'e 00°000°L1
- 00°00S
0006 00620l
- 00'sLe
00706 00°00%
00°05¢
VLoV 1390ang
QLA 220¢e
[4A174
LE1¥5°0V 00°000°0.¥'2
0L 'v9¥'ve 00°000°00S'L
0Lyov've 00°000°00S"L
1Z2.0°91 00°000'02,6
1222001 00°000°0L
- 00°000°00%
- 00°000°008
IvnLov 1390ang
alA (44114
(44174
2202 TRidV

SISNIdX3 Tv1iOoL

ANN AONVYNILNIVIN ® SNOILVYIJO OL Y34SNVYHL 08608
ONNd TVHINDOS OL ¥34SNVHL 52605
STANLIANIIXT TV1LIdVYO 00605

$334 XNvd d3I4ITvND  0£805
LIaNV IONYNIINIVIW/INIWIOVYNYIN YINOIS §1808
SHUORHE- SFDINYAS I LOVIINOD 21805
INVLINSNOD WYHOOHd 80805
T3SNNOD TYNOIDIY 20805

S3OINGLS TVNOISSTJ0dd 00808

ISNIdXd ? S3ddNS 301440 80€09

1800 XV4/Ad0D S0£05

INIWLINEOTH ANV ONISILHIAAQY $0€0S

AGIAITAA ANY JOVISOd €0£05

ONLLNIYd ONV AHINOILYLS 10€0S
ISN3IJX3 201440 00€05

# 100V
:SISNIJXI

SANNIATY TVI1O0L

FAOINGIS 1830 NI J34SNWVHL Sv60Y
SANNJ 2528 NO 1S3 INI L160¥
SNO3INVTIAOSIN 0060%

S3dd J1LL ANV MORIE  LOv0P
440 MOIHD XV.L JWOON! 90+0%
$334 JLV1d 3SN30OINT S0¥0¥
SINIAZI WIOIdS c0v0¥y
334 139011 2009

SIOUVYHO O118Nd  00¥0+

XYL SIS L0LoY
S3IXVL 00L0¥

# 100V
*SINNIAIY

AaNNd 2528- INN3IATY TVID3AdS



e

FONVIIVA
azdi03aroydd

e

00000000 L

YT T Ty Yy

0°000'000°L

00°000°000L

FADNVIEVA
a3a1o3arodd

£p'/98'8v8'El

00009
00009

avniov
Q3L03ro¥d
f44:14

T Ty O e

eV /oY 956 i

e

eV IOV ISLS

— -

YLV LPL'S
000000}

re——— e

00°000'5086

00°000'508'6

AVNLOVY
aaLo3arodd
2202

- ¥ /98'8v8'El
- 00°009
- 00009
VNLOV 135ana
aia 2202
zz0z
¥6 8v% 89¢ £ £V L9956 €L
$£955°9¢L'S SV 9% LGL'S
85 L0L¥EL'S eV LOF LPL'S
s/'8v8'L 00°000°01
0926L'1ELT 00°000°608'8
09'26L'1ELT 00°000'508'8
VLDV 135ang
aLi z20Z
2202
2202 dY

000¥5'9 “tvriceovec, Seowiz TV L9V 956 5L $3ISNIJX3 VLOL
T T ST A B A SO0 TE
e — ey pe——S————— arverewpresa—__ ~ T
000¥59 0009702 0009702 0000022 NN ONILYNIJO LOINLSIO OL ¥3JISNVHL 18605
- - SUIVATY TVLIdVO £0605
STENLIGNIdXT TVITdvS 0060S
- 0000008 960100 0000008
- - - - DLMN — 38M/IEN LS80S
- 00°000°04 - 0000001 YOLINOW INIANIJIANI IGWIEN 05808
- 00°000'S9 96°0L0'} 00°000'S9 $334 MNvE QIEMYND 08805
- 00°000°G - 00°000'S 334 ¥ISN LOIYLSIG- SIDIANIS GILOVHINOD i80S
- - - LNVLINSNOD Wv90Yd 80808
- - - - LNVLINSNOD NOILONULSNOD 20805
SIOIATTS TYNOISSII0Hd 00808
- S /98 BV £l - TV 98 SVE 'L

SUIVAIH/AONYNILNIVIN €020S
S1SCD ONIATING ANV LN3H 0005

JSNIdX3 8 S3TddNS 31440 8005
ASN3dX3 301440 00€08

# 100V
:83SNadX3

SIANNIAR TVIOL

SANNd INNIATY TVIO3dS ¥IHLO WOML NI ¥34SNVHL  0¥60%
1S3YIALNI Li60p
SNO3NVTIIOSIN 00601

334 13011 20¥0p
S3OEVHD Diiand 00¥0y

XvLS3vS LoLoy
S3XvL 0010¥

#1002V
SANNIAATY

JONVNILNIVIN ANV SNOLLVAIIdO- ANNIATY TVIOAdS



SISNIAX3 TVLOL

ANN= 3ONVYNIINIVIN 8 SNOILYHY3dO OL H3JISNVHL 08605
. SFANLIANIJX3 TV.LIdVO 00605

LIGNV JONVNILNIVIW INIWIOVYNVYIN YINDIS §1806
INVLIINSNOD WVHOO0Hd 80805
T3SNNOJD TYNOID3Y 20809

S30IAAES TYNOISSIH0dd 00809

ASNIIXT ¥ SAINddNS 01440 80€0S

1S00 XV4/AdOD S0€05

ANINLINYOZY ANV ONISILLYIAAY $0E0S

ALIANTIA ANV FOVISOd €005

ONLLNIAd ANV AM3NOLLVYLS L0E0S
3SN3dX3 301440 00€09

139ang
[£4114 # 100V
*SASNIAX3
SINNIATY TVIOL
aNN4 2528 NI ¥34SNYHL 0v60F
SANN- SIN3AT TVIOAdS NO 1SFHIAUINI Li60Y
SNOANVTIZOSIN 0060
S334 FNL ANV HOIIEG  LOVOr
440 HO3HO XL INOONI 90¥0%
$334 31V1d ISN3OIT  S0v0Y
SIN3IAT TVIO3HS £0v0b
334 13011 20¥0¥%
SIADAVHO DMand 00+0v
XvL SIS 10L0¥
SAXVL 0010V
1394ang #1020V
[4A1 14 'SIANNIAIY
220¢ Rdv

S1IN3IAT TVIO3dS- INNIAIY TVIOAdS



IONVIEVA
Q3103rodd

JONVRIVA
g3103royud

87 '6LE 0L

8Y'6LEYY

8V’ BLEYY

00°000°0%

00°000'0%

vNLOv
aaLo3arodd
20T

00°00S'€
00°005'¢
00°005'€

avniLov
a3.1o3royd
220z

00°000°9L 8y 6LE 0L
- 87'6LE P9
- 8v'BLE Y
00°000°91 00°000°0%
00°000'0L 00°000'0%
IWALOV 13sang
aii zeoe
zz02
Z8' /8l 00°00S'€
28/E1 00005
Z8'L8L 00°008'€
FYALOV 135ang
QLA FAATA
2202
2202 dv

SASNAAX3 TV1OL

ANNd ONILYHIHO LOR4LSIQ OL Y3ISNVHL 18605

SAANLIANIdXT TVLIdvO 00605

SIALINZONI /SINVYO ININdOTIAIA JINONODT 52805

SAJING3S TYNOISS340xd 00805

ISNIdX3 B SAddNS F0I440 80€05
180D XV4/AJOD 50€05

LININLINGOFH ANV ONISILHIAAY v0€0S
AYIAINZA ANV IDVLSOd £0E0S
ONLLNIYd ANV AY3INOILVLS L0E0S

3ISN3dX3 301440 00£0S

#1020V

*S3ASN3AX3

SANNZAIY TVIOL

GNNd ASA DINONOD3 NO 1S3431INI S160¥
AOINGAS 1830 NI YFASNVHL eve0r

SNO3ANVTTIOSIN 0060¥

334 NOLLONVS 0180%

SNOLLYNOQ 0080%

S3IXVL 00i0Y

#1000V

*SINNIAIY

aNNd LNSNdOTIASA JINONODH



00°000°000 4 S8'02£'620°81 £6¢/9G1E L G8°02¢ 620°2) SINNIATY TVLOL
- G802 ¥58°9 88 0vre/L'S G8°0CE ¥58°9
- S0a300dd JLON 15607
- 8r'6LE'YY - SY'61E Y9 INIWAOTIAIG DINONODT NI ¥TISNYYHL ¥+60%
- - - - $103roYd V.LIdYD NI ¥34SNVYL 2y601
- 00°000'42 00°09%'02 00°000'22 JONVYNILNIVIN ONY NOLLYHIJO NI ¥IASNVHL Ly60Y
- LEL0E'BLLG 65'€68'22L'S L8 L0E6LL'S AaNN4 /528 NI Y3JSNVHL 060y
- 00°005' [N 00°005'€ QNN A3A JINONODT NO LS3MILINI SL60Y
- 00°000°015'} €009 00°000°015"} SANNL INNIAIY TVIDIJS NO LSIHILINI L160Y
- 00°000'8¥ 10'18L'8 00°000'8¥ SANNA NOLLONHLSNOD NO 1SINILINI 01607
- - - - SA3II00Yd ALON NO LSTHILNI 8060%
- - - SANNL IANISTY IDIAYIS L93A NO LSIAHIUNI 2060%
- - - - SANNA ANOS NO LSTHILNI 50607
- - - - S1ISOdAA XYL STTVS NO LSTHILNI £060%
- 00°002'22 £9'S 00°002°22 NN TVHINTD NO LSINILNI 1060%
SNOINVTISOSIA 0060Y
- - - - 334 NOILONVS 0180%
- - - - SNOILYNOQ NY3SNV1 IAVS $080%
- - - - INOVIT TIVELO0H TYNOILYN 2080%
- - - - SYUINOV AVE NITHDO 1L080F
SNOILVNOJ 0080%
00°000°000'L 00°000'SZL' L1 S0'CEC ePL ¢ 00°000G/L 01
- 00700002 Gh6EV 0L 0070000/ S334 IUL ANV MOINE  Z0¥0Y
- - - - 440 MOIHO XV.L INOONI 90v0Y
- 00°000°00% - 00°000'00% $334 31V1d ISNIDIT SOVOY
- - - - SINIAZ VIOIALS £0¥0Y
00°000°000'1 00°000°50€'0L 09'262'1EL'2 00°000'60€'6 334 L3MOIL 20¥0Y
- 00°000°00% - 00°000°00% $334 ¥3SN LovoY
SIASAVHD onand 00¥0y
- - - - S334 ¥IHLO ANV TYNOISSIHOUd €080V
SIOGVAD WININNIFGAODIIINI 00£0¥
- - - - NISNOOSIM 40 31VIS S020¥
SANIATY VINIANIIAODTTINI 0020%
- - - - XVL STIVS L0LOY
S3aXVL 00LO¥
TONVINVA VALOV IVNLOV 139ang #1090V
az1oarodd aaLoarodd ata z202 :SINNIAIY
(44174 z202
2202 HOJVIN

AAVININNS TVIONVNIL



~OV

000559 0009602 00°288°0Z 00700522

- 00°00S 00°/6€ 00005
(005%%) 00's¥eE'sL 00°S¥E'st 00°000'5L
00°588'9 00°GLL'S I TANC 00°000°21

- 000511 - 00061}

- 00°00E - 00°00€

- 00°00S - 007005

- 00°05¢ - 00°05€

- 00'S¥8'v oLzl 00'S¥8'y

- 00002 - 00°00C

- 00°626'L 91Z8 00°6/5'4

- 00°00§ - 007008

- 00°00S - 00°00S

- 007005 00°06 00°00§

. 00°0S5 - 00088

- 00'0Z0't - 00°020'L

- 778908 11°6/9°) 1¥'€90'8

- 08'285' Vra%2 08285

- 00'v9z 00°88 0092

- £2'66L £2°861 £2°66L

- YL 19°2¥8 wLY'E

- 5661165 02'995°Cl G6'611L'SS

- S6'6L1'GS 02'996°C1 6661165

FONVIEVA VAoV FVALOV i3sang
a3Loaroxd a3 Lo3arodd aia z202
2202 ze0z
2202 HOYVIN

AMVININNS TTVIONVNIL

diNOD SHIHUOM 50905

YITHENN - ALIGVT TYHENIO $0905
ALEVIT TVNOISS340¥d £0908
OLNY G3NMO-NON 20908

ALEVYIT TVHENIO L090S

JONVINSNI 00905

SS300V LINYILINI €0508

130ddNS ANV IONVYNILNIVIN 20505

NOLLVTIV.LSNI/LNINDINDI/FYYML40S L0505
S30INGES NOILYINYOANT 00505

SIONFHFINOD €0+0S

(S3ULMIOVL HIHLO OL SdRL 40

# NO INIANIJIA) SISNIEXI ANV IDVITIN 34VLS 20v0S
SASNIAIXT ® FOVI TN HIGWIN AXVO0E LOY0S

ONINIVHL ONV 3ONIFHIINOD "TIAVHEL 00705

JASNIJX3 SNOANVTIZIOSIN 0LE0S
INININDT 3D1440 60€0S
ASNIdXA ® SANAINS 3D1440 8005
SH004 ? SNOLLJIMISENS L0€0S
SdIHSHIGINTGN ANV SINA 8008
1800 XVI/AJOD S0£08
ANINLINYOIY ANV ONISLLYIAAY 005
AY3AINTEA ANV A9V1S0Od £0€08
INOHJ43T3L 20205
ONLLNItd ANV AY3INOILVYLS LOE0S
ISN3dX3 301440 0005

LNINLSNIAY AUVIVS 01205
ININIHLLIY 60205

ALITIGYSIQ 80205

AONVHNSNI 341N L0208

30N ALVYIS ANV Tvy3d34 80205
JONVHNSNI TVLINIQ $0208
FONVAUNSNI HLTV3AH 0205

ANINAOTIININN £020S
FAVYOIA3N 20205
ALIYNO3S VID0S L0Z0S

S1i43INId IONRIA 00208

SANVIVS LOLOS

AYVYIVS 00L0S

‘SASNIIX3

#100V



sl

00°080°¢1L

02°981'52v'61

(A T4

0.°992°88V'61

00°0¥5'9

68°080'692'S

6GE5€'8YL'S

$8°029'1/2'G

00°0¥5'9

8Y'6.L'V8
eF LoV IPL'S

y6€e8'2€

00°000°}

00°09¥°0¢
65°€68'L2L'S

8Y'6LE'L6
er eV ivl's

v6eeg’Le

00°000'}

00°00L'122

9r'e29'9e

00°00L°LL2

00°000°0L
00700528
00°000°0%
00°002'221
00°000°G
00°00S
00002}
00°000°L
00°00.'8

LL629'Y
00°000'9}
GL'e6e'st

00°000°0L
00°005'28
00°000°0%
00°002 ‘et
00°000°G
00°00S
00002’}
007000}
00°00.'8

£y 298'8¥8'el

£p'/98'8y8'ElL

£y'/98'8¥8'cl

ey’ io8'evg'el

SASNIJXE Tv.LOL

QNN ONILYVAIZdO LORILSIA OL ¥I4SNWHL 18608
QNN IONVYNILINIVIA B SHIVdIY OL WIISNYHL 08605
IDINYIS 1830 0L YIISNVYL 6,608

SINIAT TVIOIdS O YIJISNVIL 84606

QNN 2528 O1 ¥I4SNYHL L2608

AFQ NOOZ OL ¥I4SNWHL 8/606

ONNd ONLLYY3dO OL ¥34SNVHL 5.608
SANINIAOYCNI VLAV 04605

ASNIdXI OINGIS 1930 ¥IHLO 69605

SANO8 O SA3IS NO ISNAIXT 89608

SANOE g S3143S NO ISNIJXT L9605

SANOE ¥ S31d3S NO ISNIJX3 99605

SANOE 3 S3RIAS NO TVdIONIEd 59605

SANOg 9 SHIYIS NO TVJIONIYd v9605

SANO4G V S31¥3S NO TVdIONIMJ £9608

SANOE O S3ARAS NO LSTHUILINI 29605

SANOE 9 SIY3S NO 1SIHILIN! 19605

SANOE V SAYIAS NO LSFHILNI 09605
AONIONLINOD LO3rodd L5605

S1S00 L03rodd "3H10 95605

S1S0O ONIONWNIH 133roxd 55608

S1S00 ININHOTIAIA LO3roud +560S

INININDT B STUNLXIS FUNLINYNG LO3rOYd £5608
S1S00 NOLLOMYLISNOD 103rodd 25608
LNIWIAOHJWI B NOLLISINDOV LIS LO3royd L5605
SHIVd3Y TVLIVYD €06805

LNININDI ¥3HLO 20605

INININDT 3D1440 10605

STANLANIGXT TVLIdYD 00605

JLMN — JgM/AGIN LS80S

HOLINOW LNIONIJ3IANI 3aWIEN 06805

$33d MNvdE a34ITvNO 0€805

STALLNZONI /SINVHO ININJOTIANIA DINONODII 52808
LGNV IONVYNIINIVIWLINIWIOVNVYIN VINDIS §1808

34 W3SN LOMLSIT- SADINYIS A3 LOVHLINOD +180§
SYO1¥E- STDINYIS A3 LOVHINOD ZL808
ANVLINSNOD NVHO0UdE/H0LIFHIA INLLNDTXT 80808
INVIINSNOD NOILONYLISNOD L0805

T3ISNNOT TvOO0T £0805

TTESNNOD TYNOID3Y 20805

S3VINGIS ONILLNNOIDV B LIANV TYNNNY L0805

S3OINGIS TYNOISSTI0U 00805

TVIYOLINYF ¥0.0S
SHIVAIH/FONYNILINIVIN €020
S3INILN 20408

INZA 10L0S

S$1S00 ONIATING 301440 ANV INJd 00405

ADNVRIVA avniov IvNLOvV 139ang #1020V
a3103royd Q3103rodd aLA 2202 (ponunuod) :SISNIAXI
zeoz F44114

2202 HOYVYIN
AYVININNE TTVIONVNIH



- 000zZz’e 9lzg 00°02Ce
- 00°00¢ - 00°002
- 0000 g1z8 0000
- 00°00S - 00°00S
- 00°00S - 00008
- 00°00E - 00'00¢
- 00°020°1 - 00°020'}
- L¥'€90°8 LG9 Lv'€90'8
- 08'285'c LTS 08'285'c
- 0092 0088 00'v9C
- €2°66. €2'861 €2°66.
- yrLLY'E 1974y8 viiv'e
- G66L1°GS 02995°C1L G6'611°SS
- G6'6L1'GS 0z'995°C1L $6'641'GG
JONVIIVA wnLov vNLOV 139and
a3Loarodd a3aLoarod ala (44114
[4 4174 zeoe
- Ty eSE LSt 19'59Y¥°02 CrEse’LSt
- [ A 19'89¥'02 Zreselsl
- 8y'6LEPO - 8P'6LE VI
- 00°000°22 00°09%°0C 00°000'22
- ¥6'€E8'LE - y6€e8’LE
- 00°00Z'zZ L9°G 00°002°¢2
JONVRIVA avnLov avniov 139ang
a3.10drodd a31Lo3roud aia [4A114
[£A174 zzoe
¢20Z HOYUVIN

ONANd ONILVH3dO LORILSIa

ISNIdXd SNOINVTIIOSIN 01208

ONIHSINYNS/ININGINDA 301440 60€05

JASN3IdX3 B SAddNS 301440 80€0S

SHO04 8 SNOILLIHDOSANS L0€0S

SdIHSYIgINTIN ANV S3NA 90£0S

1S00 XV4/AdOD S020S

INIWLINGOTH ANV ONISILYINAY Y0E0S

AHIAINTEJ ANV IOVLSOd £020S

INOHdJ313L 2020S

ONLLNIdd NV AYINOLLVYLS L0209
ISNIdX3 301440 00€08

AINIJWLSNrav AYVIVS 01205
LININIHILIE 60205
ALITIGVSIA 80205
JONVHNSNI 3417 L0205
00N 31V1S ANV Tvd3a3d 9020S
JONVINSNI TVLNIA S0208
FONVINSNI HLTVIH $0205
AINIWAOCTAININN £0205
IHVYOIA3IN 2020S
ALRINO3S VIOOS 10208
S.Lid3N39 IONIY 00205

SAEVYIVS 1L01L0S
ALVYIVS 00106

# LO0V
-SASNAJX3

SINNIATY TvLOL

ANINGOTIAIA JINONODI NI YIISNVHL 601

JONVNILNIVIN ANV NOLLVYIdO NI HIASNVHL 60y

QNN4 2628 NI Y34SNVHL 0v60Y

ANN4 TVHINIO NO LSFHILNI 1060Y
SNO3ANVTIIOSIN 00601

$334 {3HLO ANV TYNOISS310¥d €00y
SIDHEVHO TVININNHIAODHILINI 00€0H

XV S3TVS L0LoY
S3IXVL 00Lov

# 100V
*SANNIATY



00°0¥5°9 zreL9zee TTYLL'LS ZheslieTe SIASNAIXT TVLIOL
- 00°000°L - 00°000°L
- - - - LNIWLINOI ¥IHLO 20605
- 00°000°L - 00°000'L 1IN3INdIND3 301440 1060S
STANLIANIdXE TVLIdvO 00605
- 00°00L°€El GL€66°Gl 00°00L'€EL
- 00°002°¢CL GL'E6EGL 00°002°CCL LIdNV IONVYNILNIVIWINIWIDOVYNYIN VINDIS G1808
- - SHUOIAE- SIAOINYIS QI LOVHINOD Z180S
- - - - INVLITNSNOD NVIS0Ud/HOL03HId SAILNDIXT 80805
- - - LINVLINSNOD NOILONALISNOD 080§
- 00°00Z°L - 00002'} TASNNOD VD07 £0805
- 00°000°L - 00°000'1 TASNNOD TVNOID3Y 20805
- 00°00.'8 00°009 00°00.'8 S30INGAS ONILLNNOJDV B LIANV TYNNNY L080S
STDINGIS TYNOISSII0HUd 00805
- - - - IVIIOLINVT ¥0.0S
- - - - SHIVdIE/AONVYNILNIVIN €0£06
- - - - SALLTILN 20208
- - - - 1N3Y 100G
$1S0D ONIdTiNgG 301440 ANV INJH 00205
00°0¥5'9 00°096'02 00°/68'02 00700522
- 00°00S 00°L6¢ 00°00S dNOD SHAHOM S0905
- - - - YTIFHEAN - ALMNIEVIT TVHINIO #0905
(00°s¥¢e) 00°GvE'SL 00°6YE'SL 00°000'G1 ALFIGVYIT TYNOISSI40dd 0905
- - - - O.LNV GINMO-NON 2090S
00'G88‘9 00°GLL'S 00°GLL'S 00°000ZL ALIMEVIT TVHINIO 1090S
TFONVENSNI 00905
- - - - S$S300V LINYILN! £0505
- - - - 1H40ddNS ANV IONVYNILINIVIN 20505
- - - - NOLLVTIVISNI/LNINdINDI/FIVMLIOS 10505
S30INYES NOILYINHOANI 00505
- 00°0SL°L - 000511
- 00002 - 00'00¢€ SIONIHIINOD £0v0S
- 00°00¢ - 00°00S SASNIJX3 ANV IDOVITIN 44VLS 20105
- 00'0se - 00°0s¢ SASNIdX3 B IOVITIN YIFWIN advO8 LOv0S
ONINIVYL ANV JONTHIINOD TTIAVEL 00#0S
JONVRIVA avnLov aviLov 139ang # 100V
gaLo3rodd a3103rodd aiAa [44:14 (panuguod) :g3SNIAJXT
zz0z [44174
€202 HOYUVIN

aNNd SNILYY3d0 LORLSIa



0070059 elirl'L 00°005'9
00°00S'9 [N 00°005'9
00°005'9 Lyl 000059
TONVIGVA TVNIOV TVNIOV IZoang
azioarodd a3aLoaroyd aiA z202
220z z202
00°000'8%% L0188 00000 8%¥
00°0008% /0°1€L°8 00°000'8%
000008V 1071818 00°0008¥
00°000°00¥ - 00°000'00%
00°000°00% - 00°000°00%
TONVIGVA VALOV IVNIOV 135ana
a3Lo3royd a3Loaroxd aia 2202
z202 202
220Z HO¥NVIN

(AVNNNY) S103roxNd Tv.1dvD

SISNIAXT IV1IOL

FOINGZS 1930 Ol YIASNVHL 62605

SINIWINOHAWI TVLIdYD 0,605

AONIONILLNOD 103rodd 45609

$1S00 LO3roud ¥3HLO 95605

S1800 ONIONVNIL 1D3rodd §9605

$1S00 ININJOT3AIA LO3r0¥d 5605

ANININDS ® STUNLXIL ‘FHNLINYNA LO3rOUd £560S

S1S00 NOLLONYLSNOD LO3royd Ze60s

ININIAOHINI 8 NOLLISINOJV JLIS LO3r0dd L5608
SAANLIANIIXT TVLIdVD 00605

$334 MNvd a3ldiTvND 0€805

INVLINSNOD WYHD0Ud 80805

LNV.LINSNOD NOILONHYLSNOD £080S
S30INGTS TYNOISS3308d 00805

#1020V

*S3ASN3dX3d

SINNIATY TVIOL

SANN- NOILOMYLSNOD NO LSIH3INI 0L60¥
SNOINYTIROSIN 00607

3INOVAT TIVEL00d TVNOILYN Z080y
SYI]IOVd AVE NIIHO L080F
SNOILVNOQ 0080Y

S334 ¥3sn L0v0y
S3ADAVHD O1gnd 00v0¥

NISNOOSIM 40 31V1S 5020%
ANNIAIY TVINIWNISAODIILINI 00207

# 100V
“SANNIAIY



4

er

AONVRIVA
a3Lo3arodd

FONVRIVA
a3Lo3royd

LE°928°16L'S

LE10E°6LL'G

P L9V LVL'S
¥6€€8'2E

007005}
00000}

00°00s

00°620'L
00'6.2

00°00§
00°052

IvnNLOvY
a3ioaroyd
(4474

00°000°0L¥'2
007000005}

00°000°005'}

00°000°0.6

00°000°0L
00°000°00%

00°000°00S

VALOVY
a3103rodd
220z

08'869'0€1'S

65€68°/21°G

65°€68°L2L'S

1Z61Le

Lzell'e

00°06

00°06

IvALOvY
alLA
220z

12°841°9¢

92 6EL°GL

9z'6eL'SL

SP'6EY 0L

SY'6EY'0L

avnLOv
ala
220e

L£°928°161'S

LETL0E6LL'G

P L9V LYL'G
P6'e€8°LE

00700611
00°000°}1

00°009

00'S20°L
00'542

00°00S
00°0se

139ang
f4A174

00°000°'04¥'2
00°000°00S°1

00°000°00S°1L

00°000°046
00°000°0Z

00°000°00%

00°000°00S

1=5ana
2202

2202 HOYVIN

QNN4 2SZ8- INNIATY TVIO3dS

SISNAdX3 viol

GNN- IONYNILNIVIA 8 SNOLLYYIdO OL ¥A4SNVHL 08606

QNN TVHINIOS OL HIISNVHL 52608

STANLIANIJX3 TVLIdVO 00605

$334 MNVE g3iIdNvNO 0€80S

L1aNY IONYNILNIVIW/INIWIOVYNVYIN YINDIS §180S
SHOIEE- STDINYTS A3LOVHINOD 21805
INVLINSNOD NWYHD0Hd 80805

TASNNOD TWNOIO3Y 20805

SADINGSS TWNOISSTJ0Hd 00805

ISNAJX3 ? SANddNS 301430 80€08
LSOO XV4/AdOO S0£05

INIWLINEDTH ONV ONISILYIAQY ¥0€0S
AIAINAA ANV FOVISOd €0£05
ONLINIMd ONV AH3NOILVYLS L0£0S

ASNIJX3 301440 0005

# 100V

:S3ISNIJAX3

SANNIAIY TV1iOL

A0IAY3S L1930 NI d34ISNVHL €¥60F
SANNJ L5628 NO LSTYILINI L160¥

SNOIANVTIIOSIN 0060

S334 FIL ANV MOIG  L0v0v
440 ¥O3HOD XYL JWOINI 90v0v
$§334 31V1d ISN3OIT SO0v0v
SIN3IAT TVIOI4S €0v0v

34 IBA01L 200

SADHVHO JI'ldNd  00¥0¥

XvV.LS3vS Lolovy

SIXVL 00i0%

# 100V

-SANNIAITA



00°0¥5 9
00°0¥S'S
00°0¥5'9

FONVIRVA
a3Loarodd

007000000

T Yy

00°000°000°}

00°000'000'%

FONVINVA
aaloaroyd

EP L26'6V6 €L
00°09%'0C
00°09t'0C

B VS —

00°000 08

00°000'0L
00°000'59
00°000'G

£V 98'8p8'EL
£€7°.98'8p8'cL

00009
00°009

avnLov
aaLoarodd
2202

£V L9V 956 ¥I
£V LOV'LGL'S
VL9V LPL'S
00°000'0%

00°000'508'6

IvNLOVY
a3aLo3rodd
2202

LL2eT e

£ /9¥' 9G6'El

00°09v'02 00°000°/¢
00°09%'02 00°000°2Z
112l 00°000'08
- 00°000°0}
LLelL 00°000'S59
- 00°000'G
- £y /98'8V8'El
- £y°/98'8v8'el
- 00009
- 007009
avnLov 139ang
ala 2202
(44174
9€ V2092 L €Y /9p'956 €1
9L ¥SP'8TL'S e¥ L97'1GL'S
6G°€68°/21'S P LoV IPL'S
PANRC 00°000'0L
097Z6L'LELT 00°000'508'8
09'2Z6L'LEL'T 00°000°508°8
VALY 139ang
aii [44114
2202
Z220¢ HOXMVIN

SISNIJX3 "IVIOL

AN ONILYHIHO0 LO1H1SIQ O HA4SNYHL 18605
SHUIVd3Y TYLIdVYO €060S
STANLIANIdX3 TYLIdVD 00605

OLMN — 3gWIgN LS80S
HOLINOW INIANISIANI 3IgMAEIN 06805
S334 MNVE A31HITYND  0€80S
334 ¥3ISN LORELSIG- SFOINYIS dILOVHLINOD 71805
INVLINSNOD WYHD0™d 80805
INVLINSNOD NOILONAYLSNOO L0805
S30INSZS TYNOISSIIOHd 00805

SHIVAIU/AONYNILNIVN £0205
SL1SO2 ONITTING ANV INJH 00205

ASNIdX3 ¥ S3MddNS 30Id40 80€0S
ISNAJX3 3014d0O 00€0S

# 100V
*SISNIJIX3

SINNIAIY TVIiOL

SANN INNIAFY TVIOIdS Y¥IHLO INOX- NI ¥IJISNVML Ov60Y
LSIHALINI 160y
SNOIANVTIA3SIN 0060%

334 13M0IL 20v0p
STDAYVYHI JlENd 00v0Y

XVLSTIVS LoLoy
S3XvL 00L0¥

# 100V
*SANNIATY

FONVNILNIVIN NV SNOLLVHIdO- INNIATY VIOIdS



(]

1‘:"\)

AONVRIVA
qaLo3rodd

FONVIIVA
gaLo3roud

8V’ 61Ev0L
87'6LE'79

87'6LE'Y9

00°000°0%

00°000'0¥

avnLov
G3aL03rodd
z20e

00°00S'€
00005 €
00°00S'e

|

vNLIOv
a3Loarodd
{44114

00°000°9L

00°000°9}

00°000°9L

vnLov
aixa
(44114

2L os

cL'os

cL’0s

VLoV
ata
(44174

8y’ 61E' 0L SISNIJXI TV.LOL
Sv 6LE 79
8Y'6LE'VY QNNA ONILYEIHO LOM1SIA O Y34SNVYHL 18608
00°000°0%
00°000°0% SINILNIONI /SINVHD ININJOT13AIA DINONODI $2805
SIDIAGSS TYNOISSTJ0dd 00805
ISNIdXT B SIMNddNS 301440 80£0S
LS0J XVI/AJOD S0£0§
INIWLINYOIY ANV ONISILYIAAVY $0£0S
AMIAITIA ANV IOVLSOd £0£05
ONILNIMd ANV AYMANOLLVLS LOE0S
3SNIdX3 IDIH3I0 0005
135ang
radiT4 # 100V
:S3ASNIJXT
00°00G'E SIANNIAIY IVLOL
00°00S €
00°005'€ aNN4 ASd JINONOD3E NO LSIHILINI Sieov
IDIAGIS 1830 NI YFASNYHL EV607
SNO3NV 303N 00607
- 334 NOLLONVS 0L80p
SNOILVYNOG oog0t
SIXVL 00i0¥
I3sang # 100V
ze0z 'SINNIAIY
2202 HOYVIN

aNN= LINJNAOTIAIA JINONODH



92'8v8'62 Z0ELL'E Ly'L28 00700081 £8°€18'S
12'68
1288
Pese
b @74
00°€0¢
04592 1.'592
0002
25°965°L
2128
66'62
00°009
STLED'Y
00°00§
00ce
00°000'sL
0002
05§°965°L
LE'E25CE $0'600'€ 9.%88'L 8885 80°140°/C
G6'6.5
8v'LL
6y’ LL
YELEE
$e1EE
00'62¢
05°0v2
8y 0¥Z
8¥'86%
00009
0002
26°965'1
0006
00'svE'sL
00°GLL'S
00°009
ErA X4
00°00¢
002z
0002
£5TsY'L
00°26€
0022
Jvior Ti0dAVd EEINRIETT S3ISNIAX3 S3ISNIAX3T
® S1355V aNnd
A3Y 23dS

IVLOL ANVNHE3d

ONITTOHHLIM 31V1S

FIAOTHING FAHVOIGAN

ANYJNOD IHVOIQTIN

J3A0TdNT ALIIND3S TVIDO0S
ANVAINOD ALIRINDIS TWID0S
ONITTOHHLIM vy3a3d
AYYNNYI—LNIWAYL INIJWIHILIY
NOILYSNIJWOD 034y343a
TI0™AVd

TYMINIH INVYN NIVIWNOQ

Jlisgam

F34 IALLVYLISININGY ATHANOW
FOLOAAUIT IAILNDIXT
TYHINIO—LINVLINSNOD WvHO0Md
HOYVIN-3IONVANSNI 34117

SINVYEO LNINJOTIAIA DINONODT
NOILLYSNIdINOD 03yy343a
TIOYAVd

IVLOL ANVYANYT

ONIQTOHHLIM JLYLS

JIAOTJNI FHVYIIaIN

ANVAINOD FHVIIaIN

FIA0THINT ALRINDIS TVIDOS
ANVJNOD ALRINDOAS TVIDOS
ONITTOHHLIM Tvy3a3d

dxs YIGWIOAA—LNIWAY ININIHILTY
WM H3aN3DI0-LNIWAVYL ININIHLIH
TIOHAVd

XYL S3TVS MOIYg

SHLINOW $-SIDINGIS ATHINOW
NOILVSNIdINOD a3x¥343a

TIOYUAVd

SHOIHE Wv3L

JONVANSNI ALINIEVIT TYNQISSZ2408d
ALTIEVI TVI3N3D

334 IALLVYLSININGY ATHLNOW
¥OLOTNHIA INLNDEX3

S.LNIAT WVIOIdS—INVLINSNOD WYHDONd
SHORKEE—INVLIINSNOD NvYD0Nd
IVHINIO—INVLINSNOD WYHD0Hd
AMYNIF34-3ONVHNSNI 3417
NOILLYSNIdWOD 03443433

TIOHAVd

dWOD SUIHIOM

JONYHNSNI 3417 AIVd3dd

NOLLJINOSAA

HIALSIOFTA MIIHO

NISNOOSIM 40 31V1S

JOIAYIS 3NNIATY TYNEALNI
1SNYL 3FACTANG 40 INSWINVE3A
LSIMAIN OOVN

NOXSOY INviIa

LI INFNOETININVE SSVY

b ANY L '/MAMM-MNYE SSY

YNDIS

TVIONVNIA NVILNO3S
AVE NIZ™D ¥IA0DSIA
LS3IMAIN OJVN
NOMSOH 3NVIa

NISNOOSIM 40 31VLS

FDINGIS ANNIATY TYNYIINI

1SNYL IFA0TJINT 40 INTFNLUYLIA
NOMSOH 3ANVIA

SNNIATY 40 Ld3A NISNOOSIM

HSY SNDMVYH

LS3AMAIN OOVYN

WOMSO¥ INVIQ

SUDIRAVINMOIIG ~ MNVE SSY

JINAIM

YINDIS

TYIONVYNIH NVILNO3S
1S3MAIN OOVYN
NOMSOY aANVIA
JONVHNSNI OW3
TVIONVNId NVILNO3S

YOAN3A

1OR41SIa WNIAVLS TTvE1004 TVYNOISSI40dd ALNNOD NMONSE/AVE NITO

103dia
20205
10205
103410
60205 103410
Zeoz/sele 89901
zeoz/seie L9901
8005 103410
51805 220Z/LLT 99901
L0205 Z20Z/LLe S990L
§2805 Z20e/LiE 990l
zeoeiie £990L
zeoz/LLiz 29901
103410
20205
L0205
Lo3Mia
60205 103¥1a
2202/8Z/1
z202/82/L 19901
10805 Z20z/8z/L 09901
z20z/8e/l 65901
T202/82/L 85901
¥0£0$ Zeoz/oz/  103¥Ia
£0908
L0905 22024/l 1S90l
§1805 T202/7LiL 95901
10208 z202Z/7LiL 6901
T20Z/PLIL S90L
2202/%L/L €590L
50905 2202\ Z5901
1-fpe
INNOS3V HiIva #FM03H0



-
-]
89°'18%'88 NI 146619 8¥'885'0L L£°982'08
56°998°6 LocLL'e $8'656 - 0L'¥8.'S
VL9
pAAN]
£8°29¢
£8°29¢C
oo'oce
¥8°6L2 86°6/e
004
66°6C
00°02
06°965°}
00°009
STLE0'Y
007005
0022
0002
15'966'%
L 2Zv'0L 20ELL'S 98°6¥¥' L - 52'498's
20°06¥
¥'Lg
Ly'L9
£8°29¢C
£8°292
00'0ce
$8°6.2 96°6/2
16'8L
$S0L
06°¢
SLLL
8669
00°0C
16°955'L
00°009
SZ'LE0'Y
00°005
0022
[o[eNo74
16°956°'L
16°623'6 zo'eel’s ¥8'6£6 - LL'ESL's
P9
Iv'L9
£8°29¢
£8°29¢
o0o'oze
¥5'6L2 95°6.2
00°02
25°965'L
00°009
SZ'LE0'Y
00°00S8
00°¢e
0002
06'965'L
avioL TI0HAVd S3ALLITISVT SASNIAX3 SASNIAIXI
® S13SSV [¢«] TaE}
A3Y 03dS

AV1i0L 1A

VLOL AVIA

ONIGTOHHLIM 31V1S
JIAOTHNG FHVIIQIN
ANVAINOD JHVYOIgIN
JIA0TdNE ALI-IND3S TVIO0S
ANVdNOD ALIEND3S TVIDOS
ONIQTOHHLIM Tvy¥3a33
THdY—LNIWAYC LINIWINILFY
NOLLdIMOS8NS

Jilisgam

NOILYSNIdWOO a3¥y3434a
TIOYAVd

334 SALLVALSININGY ATHINOW
_OLOINIA IAILNDIX3
IVHINIO—INVLINSNOD WYHD0Yd
INNS—3ONVHENSNI 3417
NOILYSNIJWOD Q3¥H343a
TIOYAVd

IVLOL TRIdY

ONIQTOHHLIM 31V1S
EEINeREIERE el e 11
ANVANOD FHVYOIGIN
J3A0THNT ALIIND3S TVIO0S
ANVAINOD ALIHNO3S VIO0S
ONIQTOHHLIM TvH3G34
HOYYIN—INIWAVL INSNINHILTY
JSNIJX3 ONILI3IN
SIANOHJAVIH

YILVM

FOVLSOd

3LIsgam

NOILYSNIJINOO a3xy343a
TIOUAVd

334 ANLVYYLSININGY ATHLNOW
JOLOZFHA IANLNOIE
IVHINIOLINYLINSNOD WYHOOHd
AVIN-IONVENSNE 3411
NOILYSNIdWOO 03943434a
TI0YAVd

TVLOL HOYVIN

ONIAIOHHLIM J1V1S

FIAOTJIINT IHVYOIa3N

ANVJINOD 3HVYIIG3IN

FIAOTSNZ ALIKNDIS VID0S
ANYANOD ALIMNO3S TVID0S
ONIGTOHHLIM Tvy3ad34
AdYNUFII—INIWAVL INIWIRILTY
NOILVSNIdWOO G34¥343a
TI0¥AVd

334 IALLVHLSININGY ATHLINOW
AOLOTHIA IALNDIXT
TVHINIO—LINVYLTINSNOD WVIOO¥d
TRHEdY—3ONVHNSNI 341N
NOILYSNIJNOD Q38¥3433Q
TI0YAVd

NOLLJIbOSAA

HILSIOFA MOIHD

NISNOOSIM 40 31V1S

JOINYIS INNIAIY TYNMILNI

1SNdL IIA0THWT 40 INIFNLEVYLAQA
$S3dd Avd N30

INQJ | PUB L MMM~ DINVE SSY

LS3IMAIN OOVYN

NOMSOY ANVIA

YNDIS

IYIONYNI4 NYILNO3S
LSIMAIN OOVYN
INOMSOY aNVIQ

NISNOOSIM 40 J1V1S

SOIAYTS INNIAIY TVNEILNI
1SNYL IFA0NHINT 4O INIWLHVLEA
IAVS ANV MOid—
NOZVINY -
LAVIWIYM —
Sdsn—
WO | pue | "MMAM—MNVE SSV
LSIMAIN OOVYN
WOMSOY aNvIa

YNDIS

TYIONVNId NVILNO3S
1SIMAIN OOVN
NOMSOY INVIQ

NISNOOSIM 40 JLvIS

JOIAYIS INNIATY TYNYIINI
LSNYL IIA0TINT 40 INTWLHVIZQ
LSIMAIN OOWYN

NOXSOY 3INVIT

YWOIS
IVIONVYNIA NVLLNOZS
1S3MAIN OOVYN
NOMSONH INVIQ
YOAN3A

1ORi1SIa WNNIGVLS TTIVEL004 TYNOISSTH0¥d ALNNOD NMONS/AVE NITHD

2020S
10205
60205

0€0S
£0€06

51805
10205

20208
10208
60205
80205
0le0g

£0€0S
80€05

51808
20208

20205
10208

60205

$1805
20208

INNOOOV

ezoeivels
2eoe/oz/s
220z/02/S

20e/9/s
2202/9/S
2202/9/5
2e0z/9/s

2202/02/%
ccoe/eely
ceoereivy

2e0z/8/v
ceoz/ely
2e0z/8iy
z20z/8iv

[AATALTA
ceoziseie

ceoe/Life
2eoe/Lie
ceoe/hiie
ccoz/LLie
3lva

103u10

103u1a
10331a

103910
98901
$8901

8901
£8901
28901
18901

Lo3dia

103x1d
103d1a

103d1a
08301
6901

81991
17991
9981
S.901

103d1a

103¥1a
LO3dIg
v.90L
€901

21904
L2901
0301
69801
#MO3HO



Liiee

1Zese’t

FA A}
pA %]
FA-5e]
1265
6¥°LL

£€8729C
£€87C9Z
£8'29¢
vrese
veLee

1NV

LNINSSIASSY INTJNACTININN

FAVOIa3N
FAVOIg3aInN
FAVIIJ3IN
JHVOIG3IN
FAVOIa3In
FAVIIgIN
FAYOId3aN
FHVYOIdIN
FAVYIIa3IN
FAvOId3In
FAVYOIaanN
FAHVYOIG3N

ALRINDO3S VIO0S
ALIENOIAS IVIO0S
ALIENOAS VID0S
ALIMND3S VIO0S
ALRINOIS VIO0S
ALIENO3S VID0S
ALIENOIS VID0S
ALRNOIS TVIDOS
ALMNOIS TVIO0S
ALRMNO3S VID0S
ALEND3S TVIO0S
ALRKNO3S TVIO0S

SIADNIAS

FONVHENSNI TVINIA

JONVHNSNIHLTV3H

GMA NISNOOSIM

ANINACTIWINN

ANNIATY TYNYILINI ¥3gNI03a
INNIATY TYNHI LN Y38WIAON
INNIAIY TYNEILNI ¥380LO0
INNIATA TYNYILNI ¥IENILd3S
FNNSAIH TYNNILNI LSNONY
FANIAIY TYNYILINI AN
INNIAIY TYNHALNI INNF
INNIATY TYNYILNI AV
ANNIATY TYNYILNI WHdY
IANNIATY TYNYILNI YN
INNIAIY TYNHILNI 934
IONIATY TYNYILNI NvP

EELCATEN]

INNIAIZH TYNHMILNI ¥38W303a
INNIAZH TYNYILNI HISWIAON
INNIAIY TYNYILNI ¥380100
INNIAIY TYNYILNI ¥3GNILd3S
INNIATY TYNYILNI LSNONY
3NNIAZY TYNNILNI ANT
INNIATY TYNYILNI INNP
INNIATY TYNYILNI AV
INNIATY TYNNILNI TRIdY
INNIAIY TYNHILNI HYIN
INNIATY TYNYILNI g3d
INNIATY TYNNILINI NV

ATHNS3STVIOO0S
YOANIA 31va

1D141S1a WNIAVLS TIVEL004 TYNOISSIJ0¥d ALNNOD NMOUF/AVE NITND

Y0205

1o3d1a
103dia
103d1a
10310
103uiq
10=3d1a
10310
1010
1O3ia
10zd1q
1934ia
Lo3yia

¢0c0s

103d1a
10341a
103d1a
103uia
103dia
103dia
10310
103y1a
103H1a
103yia
193y1a
103410



6€7260'L

00zeL

95°6/2
9§°6/2
95°6/C
11692

00'ZZ
00°2e
00ze
00ce
0022
00°ce

=
Lt

INNINTYd ¥3anW303a
WNINTYd H39NIAON
WNINZHd ¥390100
WNINTYd ¥39NW31d3S
WNINZYd 1SNONY
WAINTEd AN
WNINTHd 3NN
LNINTHLLIY AVIN
INIWIHILTY UHdY
ANINIHLIH HOHVYIN
ININTHILIY AdvNyEg3d
ANINIULLIH ALVANYT

ANINDYd YIFNIAON
WNINTYd ¥390.100
WNINTHd Y393 Ld3S
WNINGYd LSNoNY
WNINZEd AN
WNINZHd INNP
WNINZEd AYIN
WNINZHd Y
WNINTHd HOYVYIN
WNINZYd A¥YNYE3

WNINFYd ¥3aW303a
ANINTYd Y38INIAON
WNINTY¥d ¥380100
WNINTHd ¥38N31d3s
WNINZ™Yd 1SNONY
INNINTYd ATNC
WNINZYd ANAT
WNINZY] AVIN
WNINTHEd THdY
WNINT¥d HOYVYIN
NNINTHd AdvNHE34

SIONIS

W3L1SAS INJWIHILIH NISNOOSIM ¥IEaW303a
W3LSAS INIWFHILIH NISNOOSIM ¥IGW323a
W3LSAS INJNIHLLIY NISNOOSIM HIGNIAON
W3LSAS INFWIHLLTH NISNOOSIM ¥380.100
W3LSAS INIWZHILIE NISNOOSIM HIFWILd3S
W3LSAS INJWIHILIY NISNOISIM 1SNONY
WILSAS INFWIHILIH NISNODSIM ATNT
WILSAS INIWIHLLIY NISNODSIM ANNT
WILSAS INIFNIHILIY NISNOOSIM INNT
WILSAS LNIWIHILIY NISNOOISIM TRidY

W3 LSAS LNINTUILIY NISNOOSIM HYIN
W3LSAS INJNTHILIY NISNOOSIM 934

FEEEINER]

1SNYL 3IA0TANT 40 ININWLMYLIA
LSN¥L IIA0TANT 40 INIWLHVYLIA
LSNYL I3A0THNT 40 INTFNLHVYLIA
1SNYL IIAOTIINT 40 ININLHVYLIA
LSNYL FFAOTANT 40 ININLHYLIA
LSNYL FFA0TdNT 4O INIWLNHYLIT
LSNYL IIAOTANG 40 INJWLHYAIA
LSM¥L 33A0TdAT 40 INJWLNEYL3Q
LSMAL F3A0TdNST 4O ININIMVYLIQ
LSNYL FFA0TANS 40 INTFWILHVYLIA
LSNYL AFA0THNG 40 ININIHVIIA AUVANYT
AlLgvsIa

IVIONVYNIL NVILNO3S
TVIONVYNI4 NVILNO3S
TVIONVYNIZ NVLLNO3S
TVIONVYNIS NVILNOAS
TVIONVYNIA NVILND3S
TVIONVNIS NVLLNDES
TVIONVNIS NVILNO3S 22/9/6
TYIONVNIA NVLLNO3S 22/8/y
TVIONVYNIJ NVILNO3S Zz/LL/e
TVIONVNIA NVLLNO3S 22/82/2
IVIONVNIS NVILNO3S Zevi/L

YIFNIOIA AIVd ISNIAXE ANVNNYP

FONVANSNI 3317

AHOAN3A alva

L1OI{LSIa NNIAVYLS TIVEL0O0d TVNOISSIA0Ud ALNNOD NMOHE/AVE NIJND

oz-fpe
103Ma

Lo=na
1ozdia
103Ma
103ua
103910
103ya
103MIa
103M1a
123uia
103dIa

60205

1031g
103ui1q
103414
103uia
103x1a
103d1a
103dia
10z3d1a
103y1a
10341a
10341a

80205

£8901
L2901
L2901
59601
55901
L-ravy

40209

100V



[0

0006

sLLL

00'} L13ZYO SSTUd AVE NIFHO-MNVE SSV TIOCIVEIS LOFAT
SHO0E OGNV SNOILJIRIOSENS 10505
1vd-$3na YINS—INYE SSY
s$3ng Y049
9349-$3NA YINS
SINA YO49-IM YO4OM-INYE SSY 103xda
SJHSEIEREN ANy Sand JOE05
IONVNILNIYA H3IdOD TYNNNY O ONIOVINI NISNODSIM
FONYNILNIVI H3Id0D TYNNNY OT71 ONIDVINI NISNODSIM
I300 XVIRI0D SOE05
INIWISHNEWITY SHIHOVL AVE NITHD 41aV A3Y ¥3HL0
SHOINE WVAL SMOINE a1314 NYIGWY — MNvE SSY 10310
SHOIME W3l SHOINE Q7131 NVISWY — MNVE SSV 19340
ININISHNEWIZY SHIHOVD AVE NIFND 770V A3Y H3HLO
SMOIRIE W3l SHOINE G131 NYIEWYT — MNvE SSY 103310
SHOIYE Wv3aL SHOIYE 41314 NYIENYT — YNVE SSY 1o93dia
0006 SHOINE Wval SYOIHE A1314 NYIGINYT — MINVE SSY 2202/0Z/L 103910
N NV b} POE0%
39VLSOd HSVO ALL3d
39VLSOd SdSN- MNVE SSY
SYOIHE~IDVLSOd SdSN- YNve SSY
39VLSOd SdSN-YNVE SSY
JOVLSOd SdSN- YNVE SSY
3DVLSOd SdSM-YNVE SSY
SHOINE~-IDOVLSOd SdSN-YNvE SSY
SHOINE-IOVLSOd SdSN- YNV SSY
IOVLSOd SdSN-YNve SSVY
39VLSOd SdSN- YNV SSY 1030
39YLS0d SdSN- ¥NvE SSY Lo3xia
SLLL 3DVLSOd SdSN- YNV SSY 220z/02 103¥a
XIIATTIA ONY F5VI50d TOE0S
SIOUYHO T1ES TYNNNY 983IM ¥ MONLYY
SIOUVHO TTFD IWNANNY WOMSOY 3INVIQ
STDUYHD T130 WNNNY THINN D3O
EERETS Z0E0%
NIINIET S A 1IVL T0E05
iAv 3534 HOANTA qiva FI05V
ISNIAXH 301440

LOIM1SIA WNIAV.LS TTYE1004 TYNOISSIH0Hd ALNNOD NMOHE/AVE NITUD



~
[\AN

-/

1872

1681
06'€

49281

66'6T
S0l
8665
PAN A
66'62

ISNIdXF ONUIIN TYALLS34-MNVE SN
ISNIAIXI ONLLIINW SddOO~-MNVE SN
FSNIAXA ONILIZN SAHYNIW-XNVE SN
HONMT INd TIVALLS3S-MNYE SN
ISNAdXT ONLLIIW LUYIWIVYAA ~HSVYD ALLSd
¥ILYM IAVS ANV MOId—-MNVE SN
HALYM TYAILS3A-XNVE SN
ISNIdXI ONLLIIN FAVS ANV MOId—MNVE SSY 2202/02/y
AUILYM LHVYWTIVM-MNYE SN ZzZoz/oey
STOINVTIEISIN

LINA ONIFI3HS INYIIA INSONIA LS—HSVO ALL3d

d o3
S3ANddNS SHORIE—LOJ3A 301440-YNvE SSY
S3IMAdNS NOZYWY-INVE SSY
LISEAM OILYDIINNWINOD | ONY L'MMM-MNYE SSY
334 ¥3SN A0 ¥IJOX0E 'O'd Sdsn- JINVg S8V

3LIS83M OILYOINNWINOD L ONV L MAMM-YNVYE SSY
31ISEIM OILVIINNININOD L ONY L' MMM-MNVE SSY
SHORIG 20 INIWISNGWIZY WyTL ANN LNIVIN ONY NOILYY3dO
3LISEIM OILYOINNINNOD L ONY L MMM-MNYE SSY
3LISEIM OILYIINNNINOD L ONY L'MMM-YNVYE SSY
3LISEIM OILYIINNNWOD L ONV L'MMM-MNVE SSY
31ISE3M OILVDINNWINOD L ONY L MMM-YINYE SSY
3LIS8EaM OLLYOINNININOD | ONV LAWMWM-INYS SSY
ILISE3IM OLLYDINNNINOD L ONV L MMM—INVE SSY 2202/b2/S
SANOHJAVYIH NOZvWvY->INVE SSY 220zZ/0Zi
3LSE3IM OILVIINAIWINOD L ONY L' MMM-INYE SSY 2202/0Z%
NIYWOQ LI INHNCETTN-INVE SSY 2202/027
3LISEIM OLLVIINNWINOD L ONY F'MMM—YNYE SSVY 2202/02/2
334 ssaNIsNg SNNIAIY INTNLHYAIIA NISNOISIM
N a Hddn!

3534 JOANIA aiva

ISNAJXT 301440

1ORI1SI1d WNIAVLS TTVdL004 TYNOISSIH08d ALNNOD NMONS/AVE NIZD

103490
1o3ya
103d1a
Lo3dia

o3P

1o3da
4-ar

103y1Q
103¥1a
103d1a
10310
1034ia
103¥ia

1031

103d1a

60E05




L¢ I

JONIHIINOD
JONIYIAINOD
JONFHUIANOD

FOVIN
VIADIS-aNITZY TIAVYEL
VAIDIS-ONILIIN
VINDIS-aINITY T3AVHL

=
<

*0s3da

VO49I-XNvd sn
VINS--JINVE Sn
YOJO—-MNVg SSV 103d1d
STONFHIINOD £0¥0S

NOMSOY INVIA
93M MORLYd
SLIVVHLS ONIMLSIHM MNVE SSY 103d1a
g93M MO 1vd
SASN3dXd ANV IOVITIN JIVIS c0v0s

S3SNIdX3 ANV IDVITIIN H3aNTIN a8v0ga L0¥0S

AOAN3IA 3lva # 100V

ONINIVYL ANV SONIHIANOD “TIAVHL

10R41SIa NNIAVLS TTVEL004 TVYNOISSIA0Hd ALNNOD NMOHS/AVE NITHO



O
™

77

00725802

00°SvE'GL

00'GLL'S

00°L6¢€

VT13d8nN
VIIZAdNN - ALMTIGVIT TVHaNTaD

00°Gre'SL SNOISSININO ANV SHOYN3

ALFIEVIT IVNOISSIH40¥d
OLNV d3NMO-NON

WIVIO HIS

ALIMTEVIT H38AD

00'SLL'S ALITIEVI TVEINTD
ALTTAVIT TVHINTD

ANNJTY-dINOD SHIHIOM

ANNFTY-dINOD SHIMHOM

00°L6E diNOD SHIHMHOM
dWOD SYIMUOM
1NV os3dd

JONVANSNI

NOV

OININM ZZ/vL/L

OINIAM
OININM
OININM Z2ivL/L

ON=
ONd
O3 2e/iiiL

70905
15901
€0905

2090S

L5901
10908

25901
$090S

JOUN3A 3lva

13141810 NNIAVLS TTVE.1004 TVNOISSI40¥d ALNNOD NMONS/AVE NIFND

# 100V



00°009

00°009

$334 AINHOLLY
S334 ASNYOLLY
S334 AINMOLLY
$33d AGNHOLLY
$334 AINHOLLY
$33d AINYOLLY

$33d AANYOLLY
S$33d AINYOLLY
S33d AINYOLLY
S$33d AINYOLLY
$33d AINYOLLY

SIDINMGIS ONLLNNOJDY
SADIAYIS ONILNNOIOY
SIDNHIS ONILNNODDY
SAVIAYIS ONLLNNODDY
SIDINLZS ONILLNNODDY
S3DIAYIS ONILNNOOOY
S3IVINYIS ONILNNODDY

$334 Lianv
SIDINHIS DNIINNODOY
S$3DIAETS ONILNNODODOY
SHDINEIS ONLLINNODOVY

o830

SIDIAMUIS TYNOISSIHOU

O3S F1LSVD 3ANVA
0S INLSVYD IANVA
0S8 T1LSVYO IANVA
0S8 31LSVO 3ANVA
08 31LSYD IANVA
08 F1LSVYO IANVA

TISNNOD 1vOo01

NHYM ONV A3¥Q0D
NHYM ONV AHH4A09
301440 MY SOOND
J21430 MV1 SDDIED
JJ1H0 MY SODIHD

JHSNMOD TYNODIYH

311dvE ‘HSY ‘SNDIMYH
311dv8 'HSY 'SNDIMVH
31LdvE ‘HSY 'SNDIMVH
iLdva 'HSY 'SNDIMVYH
3i1dvE ‘HSY 'SNIMMYH
3ildve ‘HSVY ‘SNDIMVYH
3iLdvE ‘HSY ‘SNDIMVH
NOSVT NITIV NOL4IND
3lLdVE ‘HSY 'SNDIMYH
3lLdve "HSY ‘SNDIMVH

3ILdVE "HSY ‘SNDIMVH 2202/82/1

£0805

09901

LIdNY IVNNNY

HOON3A

10RLSIA WNIAVLS TIVELOOH TYNOISSIH0ud ALNNOD NMOHS/AVE NITUD

10805

# 100V



d/-1]

§2°959'sZ

S

YINDIS
IDUVHD ATUINOW YINOIS
114NV 3ONYNILNIVIN YIADIS
FDUVYHO ATUINOW YINDIS
IOUVHO ATULNOW YNOIS
IDUVHO ATYLNOW VINDIS
IOUVHD ATULNOW YWOIS
IOUYHO AULNOW YNOIS
IDUVHO ATULNOW YINDIS
FOUVYHO ATULNOW YWOIS
STLEL'S IDAUVHO ATULNOW YINDIS 2202/9/5 8901
sZLEl's FOYVHD ATULNOW YINOIS 2202/8/% 8901
sZ'iEL's IDUYHOI ATUINOW YINDIS 2202/LL/e  2.90%
STLEL'S FOUVYHO ATULNOW VWDIS 2202/LL/2 99901
SZ'LEL'S FOUYHO ATULNOW VYNDIS Z20Z/pL/L 98801
1IANV IONVNIINVIWVINIWIDYNYIWN 51805
31vadn 3LIST3IM SUDIEYIWNIOIIG
SHOIHE - STOIAYTS QI LOVHEINOD Z180s
AQNIS ALAEISvad Ti805
INTFWJOTIATA ILISaImM or8o0s
STOINYIS AUVNNYT 37702 THIANM L AMODFYD
INVITSNOD WvaH0odd 80805
ONILINSNOD SLO3ro¥d TvLidvd dNO¥O 113MoNna
- INVITNSNOD NOILONS1SNOD 20805
v BLET] YOANIA Iiva #1090V
SIDIAXTS TYNOISSIIONd

A0RILSIA WNIAVLS TIVELOO0H TYNOISSIH0¥d ALNNOD NMOYS/AVE NITHD



00°000'SL

SLINYYD 0202 gA0
TIVEAATION 1202 aAD
00°000'94 S1N3IA3 22oe AVE NIFHDO ¥IANODSIA 2202/LL/e 9901

SIAILLNIONI /SINVHD INFNJOTIAIA DINONODT 62805

LNV Js3a HOOANIA divd # 100V

g

SIADIAYIS TYNOISSTH0U

1ORILSIA WNIAVLS TIVELO0H TVNOISSI40dd ALNNOD NMONS/AVE NITHD



DIRECTOR’S REPORT
JUNE 13, 2022

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

- Fund Statement

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
- District User Fee Fund Statement

- Sigma Update on Current Construction Projects

DISABLED VETERAN, MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS AND WORKFORCE
PARTICIPATION

- Independent Monitor Report — January 2004 — December 2020

BRICK/TILE SALES

- March and April 2022 Sales

REMAINING 2022 QUARTERLY MEETING DATES (held at 2:00 p.m.)

- September 26, 2022
-  December 12, 2022

OTHER MATTERS




69'812'297

69'81L2°29L

90'228'¢LP'T
(65°820'2L6)

(82vL0'veL)

16'585'626'C

SV oLE YT, 2y’ 08505597 $5609°2ES 7S

Y O0LEYLC L 27 086°055 oF $5 609°ZES +S
(Zl'6g6°012 L) (Z1°6£6'012°11)
£LovL'ze 6.'896'605'

(00°¢50'558) (se'82L'501) (v6'608'286'L)
(00'5£8'12) (00°5.9'12)

- 8v'88s 8¥'889

00'5.9°'L2 0062912

19'798'982'v8 (00’0

(81°0L06°212'92)

(06'£98'98Z°¥8)

£€9°9/€'1ZL°eYL

8€°108'691'59

16°685'626'2

6LLLG'L6LE

69°919'906'¢61 2§S2L'8EL 66'258'818'96}
00°v 1% 44
95°6%8'182 95°6¥8'182
9¥'€8€°298'061 9¥'€8¢°£98'061
00°000°008 00°000'008
L1°ev6'988 L1'ey6'oes
0S'vvy'oL z5°189'esL $9'9£9'786'

2.°669°LEL

1¥'518'640'C

SLN3Ad VIOIdS

1G'GLL'689°9LL

SL20L'098°2hL

LE'¥59'886'.92

T INA 86°69V'6VC 7L Z9L¥S'8eS 9L
00'LeL2iz
$8°6EY'L26'901 §8'GEY' L26'901
L¥518'640'T
88'129'250°L 88°129'260'L
L1'216'65%'Z L1'2L6'851'2
LT209'691°8 12'209's91L'8
LL'86Y LYS'pLL 00°000'000°0L LL'86Y' LYS'YEL
GNNd anNnid FvIOL
IONVNILINIVIN 1528
GNV
"NOILVESdO

zeoeiLels

SONVIVE ANNd ANV SISNIJXTI INNIATH
SANNd INNIAIH TVIO3AdS

FONVIVE MNVE

LSIHILNI AINADDY ONINVE TIGVAIZDTH SINNODOY
YIASNVHL

UTISNVYL ONILYHILO

JLVY.LS I19VAITOIY SINNODOVY

SANN4 NI3aML38 3NA S334 YNvE

SANNZ ¥IHLO WOAA ajqededpas §LOOV

pun} Uiy s|qeAed/I1IGVAIZOTY SINNOJOY
SMORIF-3I8VYAIZOTH SLNNOJOY

SANNS LNIVINAZdO-INV3L T19VAVASINNODOY
INNIATY 034H343Q

XV1 STTVS I18VAIZOIH SINNODOOV

UIISNVHL

HNVE/HD-TTIAYAYL SINNODOY

LISNVAIL NI S11SOd3a

AHUOLNIANI

JONYTVE L3N

V1oL

S334 MNvE ¥3H10

SASNIIXZ FI8W3aiN

ANIVIN ANV A4d0

ALIREINDAS

19 8334 MNVE Q3I41TVND

013 JANS TYNOIS3IJ0Y/LSOD MOotug
STANLIANTIX3

vioL

1S3UIUNI

334 NOLLONVS

XVL SIS

SIN3IAZ VIO3dS

=40 MI3HO XYL INODNI
SITYS FUIMOINE
S3LY1d 3ISNIONN

XV1 13M0IL

INNINTH

304N0S




DISTRICT USER FEE

5/31/2022

DISTRICT USER FEE
REIMBURSEMENT USER FEE COLLECTED

SUBTOTAL

TRANSFER IN O/M

INTEREST PAID
TOTAL INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUE

NET REVERSALS
BANK FEES
REIMBURSEMENT USER FEE ISSUED
BANK FEES REIMBURSED
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
TOTAL EXPENSES

AVAILABLE BALANCE

BANK BALANCE

ADVANCE FROM OPERATION AND MAINTENACE
DEPOSIT IN TRANSITS

PAYMENT TO BE REISSUED

DUE FROM O AND M

PROJECT

PHASE 2

28,647,525.00
9,300,200.00

37,947,725.00

211,363.93
1,469,177.17

1,680,541.10

39,628,266.10

357,433.79
9,161,400.00

25,938,228.98

35,457,062.77

4,171,203.33

4,171,203.33

4,171,203.33

JR -

(GN!




DISABLED VETERAN, MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS
AND WORKFORCE PARTICIPATION

INDEPENDENT MONITOR REPORT

For the period January 2004 - December 2020

May 11, 2022

- 2/




TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS

O&M EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO PARTICIPATION

BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

WORKFORCE PARTICIPATION

CONCLUSION

ATTACHMENT A:

ATTACHMENT B:

ATTACHMENT C:

ATTACHMENT D:

Operations & Maintenance (“O&M") Reimbursement Request
(January 2004 — December 2020)

O&M and Construction Expenditures Subject to Participation
(January 2004 — December 2020)

Operations & Maintenance - Targeted Business Participation
(January 2004 — December 2020)

Construction — Targeted Business Participation
(January 2011 — December 2020)

Independent Monitor

315 West Court Street, Suite 200
Milwaukee, WI 53212

414 449 4920




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Executive Summary

The Wisconsin Statutes established supplier and workforce diversity goals for operations, maintenance, and
construction activities at Lambeau Field. Annually, an Independent Monitor reviews the activities and issues
a report on the aggregate participation achieved by disabled veteran?', minority, and women businesses and
workers. This report covers the period of January 2004 — December 2020.

Business Participation

The Green Bay Packers (“Team”) or its' general contractors made payments of over $75 million to certified
disabled veteran ("DVB"), minority (“MBE"), and women ("“WBE") business enterprises (collectively “Targeted
Business"). These payments represent 1.3% DVB and 23.4% MBE and WBE participation on operations,
maintenance (“O&M"), and construction activities at Lambeau Field and exceed the 21% combined goal
established for those entities’ at Lambeau Field.

Graph 1: MBE and WBE Business Participation Summary (January 2004 - December 2020)

MBE and WBE Participation Summary

2004 - 2020
$350,000,000 $315,724,325

$300,000,000
$250,000,000
$200,000,000
$150,000,000
$100,000,000
$50,000,000
S0

573,908,498 $63,144,865

B

O&M and Construction Expenditures MBE and WBE Participation 20% Participation Goal

Graph 2: DVB Business Participation Summary (January 2015 - December 2020)

DVB Participation Summary

2015 - 2020
$100,000,000 $87,263,780
$80,000,000
sg0000000 =~
$40,000,000
$20,000,000 $1,103,267 $872,638
50 1.3% 1.0%
O&M and Construction Expenditures DVB Participation 1% Participation Goal

1 In 2014, the Wisconsin legislature amended Sections 229.8273(2) and (3) by adding a 1% disabled veteran business goal and
a 1% goal for employees of a disabled veteran business. These additional goals increase the business and workforce goals to

21%.

CROSE MANAGEMENT BERVICES, ING.

/2




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Workforce Participation

The minority and women new hires and employees of disabled veteran business (collectively “Targeted
Workforce”) worked 1,399,335 hours. The Targeted Workforce represents 57.0% of the total hours worked
by new hires employed by vendors and contractors providing O&M and construction services at Lambeau
Field. Consistently, the Team has exceeded the 21% disabled veteran, minority, and women workforce
goals. Below, Graph 3 summarizes the hours worked by new hires and employees of the disabled veteran
business at Lambeau Field.

Graph 3: Targeted Workforce Participation Summary (January 2004 — December 2019)

Workforce Participation Summary
3,000,000

2,453,655

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000 1,99,3

1,000,000
515,26

500,000

. G

Total New Hire Hours DVBE, Minority and Women New Hire Hours Goal
New Hire Hours

DROSS MANAGEMENT SERVIOES, INO.

/57




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Introduction

[n 2000, the Wisconsin State Statutes created the Green Bay/Brown County Professional Football Stadium
District (“Stadium District"). Sections 229.8273(2) and (3) established 15% minority and 5% women business
and workforce participation goals to be met during the construction and operations and maintenance of
Lambeau Field. Effective April 4, 2014, Wisconsin Act 192 amended Sections 229.8273(2) and (3) by adding
a 1% disabled veteran business goal; and a 1% goal for employees of a disabled veteran business. This
provision increased the combined goal to 21% participation for targeted business and workforce.

Section 229.8273(7) provides that:
The goals under subs. (2) and (3) shall apply to all of the following:

(a) Any insurance-funded repair work on football stadium facilities

(b) Any post-construction contract related to football stadium facilities for management of the facilities,
for professional services and for development services, except that this paragraph does not apply to
a post-construction contract for general maintenance of football facilities that is provided by a political

subdivision.
Section 14.5(d) of the Lambeau Field Lease Agreement (“the Lease”) provides that;

In consultation with the District, the Team shall, at the Team'’s sole cost, comply with all obligations
and responsibilities of the District with respect to minority and women contracting as provided under
Section 229.8273, Wis. Stats, and comply with the provisions of 229.8275, Wis. Stats, and shall
indemnify the District for all loss, liability, damages or expenses, including reasonable atforney's
fees, arising out of failure to comply. Prior to the Commencement Date of the Primary Term, the
Team shall deliver to the District a plan of action, in form reasonably satisfactory to the District and
consistent with the plan of action adopted by the Developer under the Construction Administration
Agreement, detailing the procedures and policies the Team will undertake to assure continued
compliance with Section 229.8273 Wis. Stats. throughout the Primary Term and shall thereafter in
December of each year throughout the Primary Term deliver to the District a written report, in form
reasonably satisfactory to the District detailing and confirming the Team’s compliance with this
Section 14.5 (d), forecasting the following year's events which may trigger the provisions of Section
229.8273 Wis. Stats. and setting forth the steps the Team will take in the upcoming year to comply
with Section 229.8273 Wis. Stats.

The Targeted Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Plan (“Plan") was adopted on December 17,
2003, and updated on January 21, 2004, and August 18, 2004. The Plan was developed to meet the Team
and Stadium District's statutory requirements, while serving as a guide for measuring targeted business and
workforce participation achieved. The Plan provides that the Independent Monitor will prepare an annual
report evaluating compliance with this Plan and the Stadium District's statutory obligations.

OROSES MANAGEMENT BERVIUES, ING.

Zat




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Data Collection and Analysis

The Independent Monitor reviewed data submitted by the Green Bay Packers (“Team”), AFF Research LLC
(“Program Coordinator”), contractors and vendors.  Specifically, the Independent Monitor gathered and
reviewed the following:

®  QOperations and Maintenance Reimbursement Request Summary

®  Detailed Account Expenditures Reports

® Monthly Targeted Business and Workforce Participation Reports prepared by the Program
Coordinator

= Contractor/Vendor contracts, invoices, payments, and employee data submitted to the Program
Coordinator

®  Confirmations of payments received by targeted business enterprises and submitted to the
Independent Monitor

®  New hire forms and payroll data submitted to the Program Coordinator

= Certifications of disabled veteran, minority, and women business enterprises

O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation

Annually, the Team requests reimbursement for construction and certain other expenditures incurred for the
operations and maintenance of the football stadium. Based on statutory limits, the actual amount paid by the
Stadium District to the Team, as O&M Reimbursement, may be less than the reimbursement request
submitted by the Team as shown in Table 1 below. It was agreed by the Stadium District and the Independent
Monitor that the O&M Reimbursement Approved would become the starting point for calculating the 0&M
Expenditures Subject to Participation and used to determine the percentage of targeted business

participation.

Table 1: O&M Reimbursement Approved Summary (January 2004 — December 2020)

Description Total

Team's O&M Reimbursement Request $189,007,278
Less: Non-Reimbursed Expenditures ($20,983,366)
O&M Reimbursement Approved $168,023,912

To arrive at the O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation, the O&M Reimbursement Approved was reduced
by expenditures that are exempted from participation. The Wisconsin Statutes and Stadium District policies
created several categories of expenditures that are exempt from targeted business participation.

Contracts for general maintenance provided by a political subdivision

Expenditures paid for staff salaries and benefits and to regulated and insurance companies
Contracts of less than $25,0002

Exemption granted by the Community Advisory Council to contractors/vendors that prove minority
or women firms that are unavailable to perform a service or supply a product covered by the contract.

-

2]n 2008, the Independent Monitor and Stadium District agreed to eliminate the exemption for expenditures of $25,000 or less.

DRDOES MANAGEMENT SERVICES, IND.

Jed4)




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

The O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation is determined after adjusting the O&M Reimbursement
Approved amount by the allowable and approved exemptions. The Construction Expenditures are added to
the O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation to calculate the O&M and Construction Expenditures Subject
to Participation, which is used as the denominator when calculating the Targeted Business participation
achieved. For the period January 2004 ~ December 2020, O&M and Construction Expenditures Subject to
Participation is $315,724,325 as shown on Table 2 below.

Table 2: O&M and Construction Expenditures Subject to Participation Summary?

Total
Q&M Reimbursement Request $ 168,023,912
Construction (2004 - 2008) $ 10,516,171
Less: Exemptions and Adjustments $ (113,383,883)
O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation $ 65,156,200
|Construction Expenditures Subject to Parficipation (2011 - 2018) |$ 250,568,125 I
Total O&M and Construction Expendifures Subject to Participation § 315,724,325

Business Participation4
From January 2004 through December 2020, the aggregate payments of $73,908,498 to minority and women
firms exceed the 20% participation goal with 23.4% participation of the Total O&M and Construction

Expenditures Subject to Participation, as shown on Table 3.

Table 3: Minority and Women Participation as a Percent of Expenditures Subject to Participation

Category Expenditures MBE MBE % WBE WBE %| MBE & WBE x:g 02
O&M Expenditures Subject to

Participation (2004 - 2020) $ 65,156,200 | $ 4,755,093 | 7.3% |$ 9,759,613 | 15.0% | $ 14,514,706 | 22.3%
Construction Expenditures Subject

to Participation (2004 - 2020) $ 250,568,125 | $ 42,985,141 | 17.2% | $16,408,652 | 6.5% | $ 59,393,793 | 23.7%
Total O&M and Construction

Expenditures Subject to Participation| $ 315,724,325 | § 47,740,233 | 15.1% | $26,168,265 | 8.3% | $ 73,908,498 | 23.4%

3 On prior reports, construction expenditures incurred in 2004 — 2008 were identified as Construction Expenditures. Given the
minor nature of these projects compared to the major construction projects undertaken in 2011 - 2016, those construction
expenditures are included as O&M Expenditures on this and future reports.

4 As the DVB participation goal did not become applicable until 2015, the DVB participation achieved is reported separately.

GROSS MANAGEMENT SERVIOES, iND.

[0 )0




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

The monitoring of DVB participation began in 2015, The DVB participation achieved based on 2015 — 2020
Total O&M and Construction Expenditures of $87,263,780 is 1.3%, which exceeds the 1% DVBE participation
goal as shown on Table 4 below.

Table 4: Disabled Veteran Business Participation (January 2015 — December 2020)

Category Expenditures DVB DVB %
O8&M Expenditures Subjectto

Participation (2015 - 2020) $ 25,367,201

Construction Expenditures Subject

to Participation (2015 - 2020) $ 61,896,579 | § 1,103,267 | 1.8%

Total O&M and Construction
Expenditures Subject to Participation| § 87,263,780 |$ 1,103,267 | 1.3%

As displayed on the tables above, construction projects have given the Team and its' contractors greater
opportunity for participation by disabled veteran, minority, and women business enterprises. Participation by
these firms on construction projects usually exceeds the 21% goal and makes up for any shortfall on O&M
expenditures.

0&M Targeted Business Participation

During 2006 - 2009, the annual O&M Targeted Business participation was substantially below the 20%
goal. In 2010, the Program Coordinator implemented strategies to increase the number of and the amount
paid to Targeted Business. The Program Coordinator's strategies consisted of several initiatives such as
intensive outreach to minority and women-owned firms, a mentor-protégé program, and a technical support
system. Execution of these strategies resulted in the largest 12-month increase (+3.1%) in minority business
participation since 2009, however, MBE participation continues to lag the 15% goal. Meanwhile, women
business participation efforts are continuing to prove fruitful with progress reporting at sevenfold greater than
its' 5% goal. Notwithstanding the WBE results, the Program Coordinator and Team must re-focus their efforts
on achieving similar results for MBE participation.

Graph 4: Minority and Women Participation by Year on O&M Expenditures
' O&M MBE an WBE Participation Each Year
Participation Goals: 15% MBE 5% WBE
.~ 40.0% 333% 350%

30.0%
20.4%

% 21.2%
17.9% 182% 1729 09% 182% 19.1% 205/

| 20.0% 13.0%
9.9%

8.09 o o
10.0% 3.9%" 5.3% 6.9% % 7:2% ZZf/
0.4%  05% 01% 0.1% 0;44"/;/———

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

0.0%

e MIBE = WBE

OROSS MANAGEMENT SERVIGES, IND.

' 1]




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Construction Targeted Business Participation
The cumulative expenditures with minority, women, and disabled veteran firms on construction projects
exceeds the aggregate 21% goal and the goal for each diverse type of business. Graph 5 displays the dollar

value and percentage participation by type.

Graph 5: Construction Expenditures with Minority, Women and Disabled Veteran Business

Construction Expenditures
Participation Goals: 15% MBE, 5% WBE and 1% DVB

© $50,000,000
$45,000,000
$40,000,000
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
© $15,000,000
.~ $10,000,000
$5,000,000
]

542,985,141

$16,408,652

$1,103,267
_ 1.8%
MBE WBE DVB

CROSS MANAGEMENT SERVIGES, IND.




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Workforce Participation

Lambeau Field has a diverse workforce with minority and women workers exceeding 50% of the total new
hires, as shown in Table 5. Of the 2,453,655 hours worked by employees of DVB and new hires, DVB
employees and minority and women workers have worked 57.0% of the hours.

Table 5: Total Workforce Hours {January 2004 ~ December 2020)

Total New DVB %DVB | Minority % Women % Total DVB, % DVB,

Type Hire Hours Employee | Employee | New Hire Minorily New Hire Women Minority, & Minority, &
Hours Hours Hours Hours Women Hours |  Women

0&M 2,164,928 414,813 19.2% 894,441) 41.3% 1,309,2541  60.5%
Construction 288,727 27,668 9.6% 41,192) 14.3% 21,2211 7.3% 90,081 31.2%
Total 2,453,655 27,668 1.1%|  456,005| 18.6% 915,662 37.3% 1,399,335 57.0%

O&M Workforce Participation
Most of the O&M vendors have had a large, diverse workforce at Lambeau Field, as shown in Table 6. Of

those vendors with minority and women new hires, the participation ranges from 28,9% - 95.1%.

Table 6: O&M New Hire Hours (January 2004 — December 2020)

Total Minority &
New Hire Minority New Women New| % Women New | % Minority
Company Hours Hire Hours | % Minority | Hire Hours | Women | Hire Hours & Women
Cenfral Restoration 1,694 274 16.2% 587 | 34.7% 861 50.8%
City Wide, Inc. 189 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Cleaner Carpets 29,259 5,332 18.2% 6,296 | 21.5% 11,628 39.7%
Holland-Selmer LLC 256 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Heidl Heath Farms 1414 866 33.2% 249 | 66.6% 1,115 78.8%
Kocken & Associates 112 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Labor Ready 84,282 36,138 42.9% 16,728 | 19.8% 52,866 62.7%
Levy Restaurants 976,090 187,712 19.2% 429,075 | 44.0% 616,787 63.2%
Levy Restaurants - Curly's Pub 797,857 90,550 11.3% 359,358 | 45.0% 449,908 56.4%
Mill Coatings & Subs 1,726 976 56.5% 0.0% 976 56.5%
NE Asphalt, Inc. 38 0.0% 11| 28.9% 11 28.9%
PMI & Subs 76,338 4,048 5.3% 30,006 | 39.3% 34,054 44.6%
Pro One Janitorial 36,286 22,026 60.7% 9,400 | 25.9% 31,426 86.6%
QPS Companies 147,518 56,140 38.1% 42,731 | 29.0% 98,871 67.0%
STS Bulldings 10,340 9,836 95.1% 0.0% 9,836 95.1%
Quality Sandblasting & Subcontrg 1,529 915 59.8% 0.0% 915 59.8%
Total New Hire Hours I 2,164,928 414,813 19.2% 894,441 | 41.3% 1,309,254 60.5%

Construction Workforce Participation
Through 2020, DVB employees, and minority and women new hires employed by companies working on
the construction projects at Lambeau Field performed 31.2% of the total hours workeds, which exceeds the

21% targeted workforce goal, as shown on Table 7.

5 Based on information provided by the Program Coordinator, these are the total new hire and minority and women new hire
hours that the Independent Monitor could verify.

CRUOSS MANAGEMENT SERVIDES, INC.




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report
Table 7: Construction New Hire Hours (January - December 2020)
Total DVB,
DvB Minority Women Minority & | % DVB,
DVB and New! Employee | %DVB New Hire New Hire Women | Minority &

Company Hire Hours Hours Employee Hours  [% Minority| Hours (% Women| Hours Women
Appleton Lathing Corp. 2,838.50 0.00{ 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
August Winters 2,026.00 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Bisley Fabrication Inc 30.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
C.M. Morris Group Inc. 56.50 0.00f 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Central Restoraton 6,952.80 80.50] 1.2% 717751 10.3% 798251 11.5%
CraftInc 1,050.00 311.50] 29.7% 0.0% 31150 | 29.7%
Eastern Sign Tech, LLC 182.00 0.00[ 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Express Insulation, Inc. 2,201.00 0.00f 0.0% 74100 | 33.7% 74100 | 33.7%
H & M Stainless Specialists LL(J 445,25 120.00] 27.0% 0.0% 120.00 27.0%
Heath Farms, Inc. 813.75 678.50] 83.4% 20875 25.7% 887.25 | 109.0%
Hillside Dampproofing Inc. 403.75 7.00] 17% 0.0% 7.00 1.7%
HJ Martin (Flooring) 445.25 10.50{ 2.4% 0.0% 10.50 2.4%
HJ Martin {Drywall) 13,5612.25 2,594.25) 19.2% 0.0% 2,594.25 | 19.2%
HJ Martin{Glass/Glazing) 1,867.75 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
IEI GeneralContractors, Inc. 1,210.00 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Insulators, Inc. 371.25 0.00f 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Inferior Installation Service 143.00 27.50 19.2% 0.0% 27501 19.2%
J.F. Ahern Co. 262.00 0.00 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
JCP Construction, LLC 492.00 255.00] 51.8% 0.0% 255.00 | 51.8%
Johnson Confrol 81.20 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Jones Sign Company 1,073.25 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Klein Dickert Company, Inc. 10,811.75 649.50, 6.0% 388.00 3.6% 1,037.50 9.6%
Macco'sCommerical Interiors 387.00 139.00{ 35.9% 0.0% 139.00 | 35.9%
Mashl Studs&Drywall 883.00 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Masse's Floor Coating 664.00 133.00]  20.0% 0.0% 133.00 20.0%
Mavid GlassGlazing 37,899.50 7,923.75]  20.9% 450.25 1.2% 8,374.00 | 22.1%
Mavid Flooring 690.00 0.00] 0.0% - 0.0% - 0.0%
Midwest Stalrs & Iron, Inc. 2,738.25 200 0.1% 0.0% 200 0.1%
Miron Construction 40,150.30 5322.80} 13.3% 11,627.50 |  29.0% 16,950.30 | 42.2%
Muza Sheet Metal Co Inc. 1,516.75 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Nations Roof 5,466.00 0.00f 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Northern Metal & Roofing Co., | 215.75 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Omni Glass&Painting 515.00 0.00] 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Ostrenga 376.50 250  0.7% 0.0% 2.50 0.7%
Otis Elevator Company 4,048.50 134.25) 3.3% 0.0% 134.25 3.3%
Panacea Group 27,667.96) 27,667.96 100%| 27,667.96 1 100.0%
Per Mar Security 983.00 572,751 58.3% 3.50 0.4% 576.25| 68.6%
ProFoamers Inc 128,75 128,751 100.0% 0.0% 128.75 | 100.0%
Reeks Marold 658.50 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
RHD Plumbing Inc 2,599.00 296.50| 11.4% 0.0% 29650 | 11.4%
SPE 17,777.50 1,627.50]  8.6% 227.50 1.3% 1,755.00 9.9%
Soper Sewer & Water LLC 844.50 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
Standing Stone Erecting 80.00 80.00] 100.0% 0.0% 80.00 | 100.0%
The Boldt Company 9,536.00 386.00 4.0% 849.00 8.9% 1,235.00 | 13.0%
Thomas A. Mason Co. 514.00 0.0% 0.0% - 0.0%
TSl Inc. 9,506.35 883.00] 9.3% 5232.95| 55.0% 6,116.95| 64.3%
Twest Garot 11,021.25 1,441.50] 13.1% 29.50 0.3% 1,471.00 | 13.3%
United States Alliance Fire Proj 374.50 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Van Ert Electrlc Coompany 3,307.00 3.000 0.1% 202.00 6.1% 205.00 6.2%
VDH Electric 58,937.50 17,036.00{ 28.9% 543.00 0.9% 17,679.00 |  29.8%
VerHelen Inc 1,971.00 44550| 22.6% 44550 | 22.6%
Total New Hire Hours 288,726.61| 27,667.96 9.6%| 41,192.05] 14.3% 21,220.70 7.3% 90,080,71 31.2%

9
CROSS MANAGEMENT EBERVICES, INC.




2020 Disabled Veteran, Minority and Women Business Participation and Workforce Diversity Report

Conclusion
For the period of January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2020, the Team exceeded the:

e 20% Minority and Women and 1% Disabled Veteran Business goals with 23.4% MBE and WBE and
1.3% DVB participation.

e 20% minority and women new hire goal and 1% goal for employees of DVB firms with 57.0% of the
total new hire hours worked by minority and women workers and employees of DVB firms.

These achievements are a direct result of the programs implemented by the Team and Program Coordinator

to increase the Targeted Business participation on O&M activities, the Targeted Business participation
achieved on the construction projects, and contractors employing diverse workers.

10

CRUSS MANAGEMENT SERVIGES, IND.

/A~




LAMBEAU FIELD
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST

In each year, except 2008, the Stadium District pald the Team less than the amount of the O&M Reimbursement Request. To minimize the impact of the non-reimbursed expenditures on the
O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation, the amount of the non-reimbursed O&M Expenditures were allocated lo expense items that were eligible for exemption as shown in the tables below,

0&M Reimbursement Approved

2004 - 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
Team's O&M Reimbursement Request $109,118,387 $12,976,730 $13,719,083 $14,325,127 $15,645,367 $15,621,428 $7,601,156]  $189,007,278
Less: Non-Reimbursed Expenditures ($7,858,975) ($1,341,730) ($2,479,083) ($1,542,127) ($3,236,667) ($2,873,628) ($1,651,156)]  ($20,983,366)
0&M Reimbursement Approved $101,259,412 $11,635,000]  $11,240,000 $12,783,000 $12,408,700 $12,747,800 $5,950,000 |  $168,023,912
Expenses/Vendors 2004 - 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
Salaries & Benefits $ 6654912]8 1341730 |8 2479083 [$ 1542127 |$ 3236667 |$ 2873628|% 1,651,156 19,779,303
Wisconsin Public Service 1,204,063 1,204,063
Total Non-Reimbursed Expenditures 785897518 134173013 2479083 |$ 1542127 |$ 3236667 (% 2873628|% 1,651,156 20,983,366

ATTACHMENT A

/o]//(/’




LAMBEAU FIELD

O&M and Construction Expenditures Subject to Participation
January 2004 - December 2020

Description 2004 - 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
Q&M Reimbursement Request 124,134,412 | $ 12,783,000 [ $ 12,408,700 | $ 12,747,800 }$ 5,950,000 [ $ 168,023,912
Construction Expenditures (2004 - 2008) 10,516,171 $ 10516171
JExemptions § - -
Expenditures < $25,000 2,838,432 2,838,432
Central Restoration LLC $ 295389 § 295,389
Cygnet Turf & Equipment § 28,069 28,069
Foley and Lardner 27,304 27,304
Kocken & Associates § 140,278 140,278
Labor Ready 426,806 3 426,806
Mills Coating b 202,934 b 202,934
National Football League 242,809 § 242,809
PMI 505,929 505,929
Quality Sandblasting Inc. b 39,147 39,147
Robinson Metals 40,354 40,354
Tuckahoe Turf Farm 5 107,880 b 107,880
WIPFLI LLP b 200,049 b 200,049
World Class Athletic 41,702 b 41,702
Insurance - -
AON Risk 9,080,085 [$ 1,169,846 |3 140198718 1712165[8 1225427 |$ 14,589,509
Public Entities
Appleton Police Depariment 4,241 5,340 { § 38911% 1,135 14,607
Ashwaubenon - Village and Water & Sewer 1,809,667 110,327 | § 125,185 | § 629411 % 53,019 ] § 2,161,139
Brown County 269,283 | $ 47,000 | $ 104,970 106,391 | § 109,799 | § 637,443
Green Bay - City and Water Utility 13,074,035 141851218 1,215,282 1,446,281 | § 183,300 17,337 411
Marinette and Outagamie Counties 240 459 4,796 - - 5,495
State of Wisconsin 8,053 | $ 48,363 38,019 2999118 3,795 128,221
Regulated Entities -
Earthlink/TDS/Dataline/Advance/NFL/Frank b 352,118 1% 73,798 83432 1% 354,875 ] 864,223
DirectTV/DISH 24915 | § 4472 6,295 | $ 6,765 ) 42,447
Integrys Energy Service/Constellation Energy | $ 8,273,220 564,755 | ¢ 710,291 617,663 10,165,929
Time Warner Cable b 2,480,446 | § 117,064 324,065 345355 1§ 59,916 3,326,846
Verizon 630,310 § 257,626 334,719 1,222,654
Wisconsin Public Service b 23476937 1% 21122551% 2,252,406 1,974,966 | $ 960,667 30,777,234
Salaries & Benefits
Salaries, FICA & Health Insurance 21924933 [ $ 252486315 674907{% 15336505 ~ 315203(F 26,973,646
Total Adjustments 86,041,325 1% 8195955 (% 7.204601[% 85296528 29123501% 113,383,883
[O&M Expenditures Subject to Participation $ 48,109,258 | § 4,587,045 |% 5,204,099 421814815 3,037,650 | § 65,156,200
[Construction Expendilures {2011 - 2020) $236,807,695 | $ 3,989,613 [§ 1,787,685 [§ 7,983,332 | § - |$ 250,568,125
;‘;‘n"‘ﬁm :”d Construction Expenditures Sublect 0] ¢ a4 016,953 |5 8,576,658 | $ 6,091,684 |$ 12201480 |$ 3,037,650 |§ 315,724,325

ATTACHMENT B
/ (;:\) -/




Operations & Maintenance

LAMBEAU FIELD

Targeted Business Participation
January 2004 - December 2020

Minority & Women Vendors MBE WBE Total

Absolute Fortunate Finds $ 92,286 $ 92,286
Advanced Maintenance Solutions LLC $ 2,184,926 $ 2,184,926
AFF Research LLC $ 11392281 % 1,139,228
All Pavement Markings $ 8,000 | $ 8,000
Apple Valley Landscaping LLC $ 593,393 | § 593,393
Arrow Pavement Maintenance Inc. $ 16,964 $ 16,964
BriteWay $ 91,760 | $ 91,760
Central Restoration LLC $ 5,297,261 | $ 5,297,261
City Wide, Inc. $ - 59,053 1% 59,053
Claridge Products & Equipment $ 9411$% 941
Continuum architects & Planners S.C. $ 83,224 | $ 83,224
Cross Management Services, Inc. $ 167,850 $ 167,850
Elevate 97 $ 11,565 | $ 11,565
Express Insulation Inc. $ 121,904 1 $ 121,904
Fly Me Flag LLC $ 2,025 1% 2,025
GAT Supply Inc. $ 71,284 | $ 71,284
Global Janitors Inc. $ 8,403 $ 9,403
Heidi A. Heath Farms Inc. $ 1,172,773 1% 1,172,773
High Hawk $ 71,827 $ 71,827
Holland Construction $ 5,884 $ 5,884
Holland/Selmer LL.C $ 1,755,728 $ 1,755,728
Hues Corp. $ 291,780 $ 291,780
IGS, Inc. $ 170,393 | $ 170,393
Insulation Technologies, Inc. $ 11,000 $ 11,000
Jack's Maintenance Service Inc. $ 647,906 | $ 647,906
JANA-KING OF GREEN BAY $ 43,696 $ 43,696
LP Mooradian Co. $ 20,100 | $ 20,100
Osbourn Supply $ 2,086 $ 2,086
R Team Construction $ 86,521 $ 86,521
Radisson Hotel & Conference Center $ 8,542 $ 8,542
SPE Inc $ 14,825 | $ 14,825
Twin Lake Transit Ltd. $ 143,640 | § 143,640
Valley Hydor Excavation $ 9,700 | $ 9,700
Vyron Corporation $ 4,09 |$ 4,090
Wash On Wheels LLC $ 65,587 | $ 65,587
White Buffalo Trucking $ 8,685 $ 8,685
WI Elevator Inspection Inc. $ 28875] % 28,875
Total Participation $ 4,755,093 1% 9,759,613 1% 14,514,706
Participation Achieved 7.3% 15.0% 22.3%

ATTACHMENT C

[ )

=




LAMBEAU FIELD
Construction
Targeted Business Participation
January 1, 2011 - December 31, 2020

. Total Payments to
COMPANY Prime Contractor DvB MBE WBE DVB, MBE & WBE
A & C Plastics Jones Sign $ 408 $ 408
Advance Digital Solutions, LLC Advance Digital Solutions,LLC $ 282,334 [ $ 282,334
Affirmative Supply Co. CM Morris $ 64,428 | $ 64,428
Applied Flooring Solutions, LLC Applied Flooring Solutions, LLC $ 74,080 | $ 74,080
Applied Flooring Solutions, LLC Hanson Masonry $ 314,311 % 314,311
Applied Flooring Solutions, LLC HJ Martin $ 24815 $ 24,815
Applied Flooring Solutions, LLC Miron Construction $ 49778 1 § 49,778
Arrow Pavement Maintenance NorthEast Asphalt $ 20,329 $ 20,329
ASC Insulation Miron Construction $ 1,189,800 $ 1,189,800
ASC Insulation Miron Construction $ 240,306 $ 240,306
Bisley Fabrication The Boldt Company $ 48,754 | § 48,754
Brock White Company of Wisconsin, Inc. Miron Construction $ 395919 3,959
Brock White Company of Wisconsin, Inc, Miron Construction $ 309,574 1 § 309,574
Calabrese Acctg & Mgmt Omni Glass & Paint $ 346,863 | $ 346,863
Carl's Trucking LLC Joe DeNoble Sewer & Water $ 9,460 $ 9,460
Central Restoration LLC Miron Construction $ 819,620 | $ 819,620
Central Restoration LL.C Miron Construction $ 536 | $ 536
Central Restoration LLC Miron Construction $ 1,629,345 | § 1,629,345
Cisco Distributing LLC Appleton Lathing $ 494,026 $ 494,026
Cisco Distributing LLC Miron Construction $ 538,049 $ 538,049
Cisco Distributing LLC Miron Construction $ 242,574 $ 242,574
Cisco Distributing LLC VDH Electric Inc. $ 5,131,719 $ 5,131,719
Cisco Distributing LLC VDH Electric Inc. $ 620,923 $ 620,923
Clsco Distributing LLC VDH Electric Inc. $ 1,694,336 $ 1,694,336
Cisco Distributing LLC VDH Electric Inc. $ 68,869 $ 68,869
Compusteel Detaifing Inc Nimsgem Steel $ 29,000 | § 29,000
Con-Cor Company, Inc. Miron Construction $ 29,282 | $ 29,282
Cook's Construction of Brownville, Inc. Appleton Lathing $ 42,225 | § 42,225
Design Dimensions 2D, LLC Henricksen $ 249437 1 % 249,437
Double D Landscaping, LLC Miron Construction $ 19,900 $ 19,100
Double D Landscaping, LLC Ostrenga Excavating $ 24,066 | $ 24,066
Eklunds Enterprises, LLC Otis Elevator $ 53,306 | $ 53,306
Elevate 97 The Boldt Company $ 378,357 | $ 378,357
Equity Supply Group, LLC Boelter Companies Inc. $ 320,986 $ 320,986
Everst Construction, Inc. Spirit Fab $ 538,771 $ 538,771
Express Insulation, Inc. August Winters & Sons $ 247,810 | $ 247,810
Express Insulation, Inc. Tweet Garot $ 1,184,065 | $ 1,184,065
Express Insulation, Inc. Tweet Garot HVAC $ 648,828 | § 648,828
Express Insulation, Inc. Tweet Garot Plumbing $ 92,4731 % 92,473
Express Insulation, Inc. Tweet Garot Plumbing $ 566,256 | $ 566,256
GAT Supply Inc. Pro Foamers $ 62,540 | $ 62,540
GAT-Supply Inc. Miron Construction $ 3788291 % 378,829
GAT-Supply Inc. Tweet Garot $ 20,206 | $ 20,206
GAT-Supply Inc. WM Hein $ 2405]% 2,405
General Bullding Supply Verhalen $ 20,804 $ 20,804
Hard Rock Sawcutiing Lunda Construction $ 7,092 $ 7,092
Hard Rock Sawcutting Miron Construction $ 381,717 $ 381,717
Hard Rock Sawcutting Ostrenga Excavating § 33,244 $ 33,244
Hard Rock Sawcutting Tweet Garot Mechanical $ 10,600 $ 10,600
Hard Rock Sawcutting VDH Electric Inc. $ 73,622 $ 73,622
Hard Rock Sawcutting The Boldt Company $ 15,055 $ 15,055
Hues Services, Inc. August Winters & Sons $ 1,356,783 $ 1,356,783
ATTACHMENT D Page 10of 2

/A




LAMBEAU FIELD
Construction

Targeted Business Participation

January 1, 2011 - December 31, 2020

. Total Payments to
COMPANY Prime Contractor DVB MBE WBE DVB, MBE & WBE
Hues Services, Inc. Tweet Garot $ 4,685,577 $ 4,685,577
JCP Construction, LLC Boelter Companies Inc. $ 20,238 $ 20,238
Jeta Corporation Appleton Lathing $ 3,500 % 3,500
Jeta Corporation Appleton Lathing $ 3,750 | $ 3,750
Jeta Corporation Miron Construction $ 34721 % 3,472
Jeta Corporation Miron Construction $ 2,3211% 2,321
JF Cook, Co., Inc. Miron Construction $ 2,856 $ 2,856
Jordan Trucking #2 De Keyser $ 28,613 $ 28,613
Jordan Trucking #2 Ostrenga Excavating $ 35,906 $ 35,906
Jordan Trucking #2 $ 472 $ 472
Klein-Dickert Co. , Inc. Miron Construction $ 134463 | § 134,463
Klein-Dickert Co. , Inc. Miron/Hammes $ 1,400,037 | § 1,400,037
LP Mooradian, Co. Macco's Interiors $ 181,601 | $ 181,601
Mashl Studs & Drywall, Inc. Marshl Studs & Drywall $ 859,100 | $ 859,100
Mavid Constuction Forestville Builders & Supply $ 302,392 $ 302,392
Mavid Constuction HJ Martin & Sons $ 1,625,237 $ 1,625,237
Mavid Constuction HJ Martin & Sons (Glass) $ 584,431 $ 584,431
Mavid Constuction HJ Martin & Sons (Wall/Glazing) $ 984,677 $ 984,677
Mavid Constuction Marshi Drywall $ 6,624 $ 6,624
Mavid Constuction Miron Construction $ 10,830,356 $ 10,830,356
Mavid Constuction The Boldt Company $ 1,941,531 $ 1,941,531
Midwest Structure Engineering, Inc. International Concrete $ 103,025 $ 103,025
Oneida Sevens Generations Merrill Iron & Steel $ 2,076,938 $ 2,076,938
Panacea Group LLC Miron Construction $ 118,539 $ 118,539
Panacea Group LLC Ostrenga Excavating $ 24,413 $ 24,413
Panacea Group LLC DLM Holdings $ 960,315 $ 960,315
Precast Engineering Co. International Concrete $ 103,434 $ 103,434
Price & Sons, Inc. JF Ahern $ 45,453 $ 45,453
Red-D Mix Concrete, Inc. Ostrenga Excavating $ 5,968 | $ 5,968
Reeke Marold Co. Inc. Miron Construction $ 1,008,005 | § 1,008,005
Reeke Marold Co. inc. Miron Construction $ 318,234 | § 318,234
RHD Plumbing The Boldt Company $ 2150191 $ 215,019
SPE, Inc. Miron Construction $ 2,251,047 { $ 2,251,047
Standing Stone Erecting, Inc. Miron Construction $ 1,318,165 $ 1,318,155
Superior Equipment, LLC Boelter Companies Inc. $ 322,127 $ 322,127
Sustainable Construction, LLC Miron Construction $ 2,741,868 $ 2,741,868
Sustainable Construction, LLC Schmalz Custom Landscaping $ 51,277 $ 51,277
Sustainable Construction, LLC VDH Electric Inc. $ 93,000 $ 93,000
Tegan Marketing Appleton Lathing $ 42,903 | $ 42,903
Thomas A. Mason Company, Inc. Miron Construction $ 1,327,292 $ 1,327,292
Thomas A, Mason Company, Inc. Miron Construction $ 427 { 427
Thomas A. Mason Company, Inc. Miron Construction $ 573,210 $ 573,210
Thomas A, Mason Company, inc. Thomas A. Mason Company, Inc. $ 61,601 $ 61,601
Tremmel-Anderson Trucking, LLC Ostenga $ 292,461 $ 292,461
Tremmel-Anderson Trucking, LLC SX Foundations $ 85,345 | § 85,345
Twin Lake Transit, LTD NorthEast Asphalit $ 20001$ 2,000
Two Buffalo Construction Appleton Lathing $ 108,953 $ 108,953
Wisconsin Rebar, Inc. IEl General $ 89,064 | $ 89,064
Wisconsin Rebar, Inc. Miron Construction $ 1,513,779 | § 1,513,779
Total $ 1103267 )% 42985141|$% 16,408,652 |$ 60,497,060
Participation Achieved 0.4% 17.2% 6.5% 241%
ATTACHMENT D Page 2 of 2

S A2




LAMBEAU FIELD COMMEMORATIVE BRICK & TILE PROGRAM

PERIOD March 2022

MERCHANT ACCOUNT TRANSACTIONS:

Payments made by Visa
Payments made by MasterCard
Payments made by Discover
Payments made by AmEx
Payments made by check
TOTAL REVENUE EARNED:

i

[

$10,875.00

$1,900.00.
$400.00

$100.00!

$0.00
$13,275.00.

_ |ALLOCATION

DEPOSIT DETAIL
Products: Selling Price Qty. Sold Total Sales| |
GB16A $1,000.00 $0.00!
GB16AR $100.00 $0.00!
GB16AT $500.00 $0.00.
GB16ATR $50.00 $0.00!
GB16MC $2,500.00 3 $7,500.001
GB48v $75.00 3 $225.00,
GB48VR $50.00 $0.00 |
GB48VL $100.00 22 $2,200.00°
GB48VLR $75.00 9 $675.00§ :
GB8sC $500.00 $0.00§
GB88CR $175.00 $0.00
GB8gsv $150.00 2 $300.00
GB88VR $100.00 $0.00§
GB88VL $200.00 4 $800.00
GB88VLR $150.00 $0.00f
GT16A $1,250.00 $0.00!
GT16AR $125.00 $0.00,
GT16AT $625.00 $0.00
GT16ATR $65.00 $0.00!
GT48V $100.00 $0.00!
GT48VR $75.00 $0.00:
GT48VL $125.00 1 $125.000 |
GT48VLR $100.00 $0.00:
GT88C $750.00 $0.001
GT88CR $225.00 $0.00.
GT88V $175.00 $0.00:
GT88VR $125.00 $0‘00§
GT88VL $250.00 $0.00.
GT88VLR $200.00 $0.00.
Gws8s $250.00 $0.00°
GW88R $200.00 $0.00°
LWi6MC $2,500.00 $0.00,
Lwa16Mm $500.00 1 $500.00
LW48L $100.00 3 $300.00:
LW48LR $75.00 $0.00!
LW88C $500.00 $0.00.
LW88CR $175.00 $0.00;
LwasL $200.00 2 $400.00!
LWB88LR $150.00 $0.00
LM816M $625.00 $0.00°
LM48L $125.00 $0.00:
LM48LR $100.00 $0.00.
LM88C $750.00 $0.00, .
LM88CR $225.00 $0.00!
LM88L $250.00 1 $250.00 ‘
LM88LR $200.00 $0.00.
LMNAME $90.00 $0.00:
| items Ordered 51] $13,275.00

Page 1 of 2

Per unit to GBBC

| $638.45 $0.00 $361.55
- $41.90 $0.00 $58.10
| $392.20 $0.00 $107.80
 $18.97 $0.00 $31.03
| $2,25212  $6,756.36 $247.88
$48.05 $144.15 $26.95
$16.34 $0.00 $33.66
$71.30 $1,568.60 $28.70
$39.59 $356.31 $35.41
$431.00 $0.00 $69.00
$115.76 $0.00 $59.25
| $105.50 $211.00 $44.50
$46.00 $0.00 $54.00
| $152.00 $608.00 $48.00
$92.50 $0.00 $57.50
$888.45 $0.00 $361.55
$65.14 $0.00 $59.86
| $517.20 $0.00 $107.80
| $32.92 $0.00 $32.08
. $71.30 $0.00 $28.70
. $39.59 $0.00 $35.41
| $94.55 $94.55 $30.45
| $62.84 $0.00 $37.16
| $663.50 $0.00 $86.50
$162.25 $0.00 $62.75
$128.75 $0.00 $46.25
$69.25 $0.00 $55.75
$198.50 $0.00 $51.50
$139.00 $0.00 $61.00
i $198.50 $0.00 $51.50
~ $153.55 $0.00 $46.45
$2,252.12 $0.00 $247.88
| $403.50 $403.50 $96.50
 $71.30 $213.90 $28.70
- $39.59 $0.00 $35.41
- $431.00 $0.00 $69.00
| $115.75 $0.00 $59.25
. $152.00 $304.00 $48.00
| $92.50 $0.00 $57.50
. $519.75 $0.00 $105.25
| $94.55 $0.00 $30.45
$62.84 $0.00 $37.16
| $663.50 $0.00 $86.50
| $162.25 $0.00 $62.75
| $198.50 $198.50 $51.50
$139.00 $0.00 $61.00
$51.55 $0.00 $38.45
$10,858,87

Per unit to BMI

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$743.64
$80.85
$0.00
$631.40
$318.69
$0.00
$0.00
$89.00
$0.00
$192.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$30.45
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$96.50
$86.10
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$96.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$51.50
$0.00
$0.00

$2,416.13




Additional shipping fees for foreign orders
Install Fee - swap brick
TOTAL DEPOSITS

FLAGLER BANK ACCOUNT:
3/1/2022
Previous disbursements
Deposits
Website
Automatic withdrawals for expenses
Balance as of 3/31/2022

TOTAL DISBURSEMENT

Year End Summary

$0.00.
§13,275.00

EE e

-$7,775.321 .
$13,275.00°
$0.0

-$449.95
$12,825.05.

[Date [Mthly GBBC _[Total Deposit |Running Total |
December 2021 $15,702.09 $23,315.00 $2,702,953.50
January 2022 $10,937.93 $16,400.00 $2,719,353.50
February 2022 $5,637.76 $8,250.00  $2,727,603.50
March 2022 $10,759.87 $13,275.00 $2,740,878.50
April 2022 $2,740,878.50
May 2022 $2,740,878.50
June 2022 $2,740,878.50
July 2022 $2,740,878.50
August 2022 $2,740,878.50
September 2022 $2,740,878.50
October 2022 $2,740,878.50
November 2022 $2,740,878.50
December 2022 . 5274087850
Total Monthly $43,037.64 $61,240.00
2022 Only $27,335.55 $37,925.00

Page 2 of 2

To GBBC
$0.00
$0.00

$10,858.87

Disburse to GBBC

$10,858.87
-$99.00
$0.00

$10,759.87

To BMI
$0.00
$0.00

$2,416.13

Disburse to BMI

$2,416.13
$99.00 Monthly hosting fee

-$449.95

$2,065.18




LAMBEAU FIELD COMMEMORATIVE BRICK & TILE PROGRAM

PERIOD April 2022

MERCHANT ACCOUNT TRANSACTIONS:
Payments made by Visa
Payments made by MasterCard
Payments made by Discover
Payments made by AmEx
Payments made by check

TOTAL REVENUE EARNED:

i

$3,700.00:
$1,275.00
$350.00,
$500.000
$200.00

$6,025.00

. ALLOCATION

DEPOSIT DETAIL
Products: Selling Price Qty. Sold Total Sales!
GB16A $1,000.00 $0.00;
GB16AR $100.00 $0.00°
GB16AT $500.00 $0.00/
GB16ATR $50.00 $0.00
GB16MC $2,500.00 $0.00
GB48v $75.00 8 $600.00:
GB48VR $50.00 1 $50.00,
GB48VL $100.00 13 $1,300.00,
GB48VLR $75.00 4 $300.00:
GB8sC $500.00 $0.00;
GB88CR $175.00 $0.00;
GB8sv $150.00 3 $450.00.
GB88VR $100.00 $0.00
GBB88VL $200.00 4 $800.00°
GB8SVLR $150.00 1 $150.000
GT16A $1,250.00 $0.00;
GT16AR $125.00 $0.00
GT16AT $625.00 $0.000
GT16ATR $65.00 $0.00
GT48V $100.00 $0.00. |
GT48VR $75.00 $0.00.
GT48VL $125.00 $0.00.
GT48VLR $100.00 $0.00,
GT88C $750.00 $0.000
GT88CR $225.00 $0.00
GT88v $175.00 $0.00.
GT88VR $125.00 $0.00.
GT88VL $250.00 $0.00:
GT88VLR $200.00 $0.00
GWss $250.00 $0.00
GWS88R $200.00 $0.00.
LW16MC $2,500.00 $0.00.
LW816M $500.00 3 $1,500.00.
Lw4sL $100.00 3 $300.00,
LW48LR $75.00 1 $75.00,
LwW8sC $500.00 $0.00
LW8BCR $175.00 $0.00:
LwssL $200.00 1 $200.00
LW8BLR $150.00 2 $300.00.
LM816M $625.00 $0.00,
LM48L $125.00 $0.00. |
LM48LR $100.00 $0.00
LM88C $750.00 $0.00:
LM8SCR $225.00 $0.00:
LM8SL $250.00 $0.000
LM8BLR $200.00 $0.000
LMNAME $90.00 $0.00

[Ttems Ordered 44| $6,025.00 |
Additional shipping fees for foreign orders $0.00.
Install Fee - swap brick $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Page 1 of 2

$6,025.00

Per unit to GBBC Per unit to BMI
$638.45 $0.00 $361.55 $0.00
$41.90 $0.00 $58.10 $0.00
$392.20 $0.00 $107.80 $0.00
$18.97 $0.00 $31.03 $0.00
$2,252.12 $0.00 $247.88 $0.00
$48.05 $384.40 $26.95 $215.60
$16.34 $16.34 $33.66 $33.66
$71.30 $926.90 $28.70 $373.10
$39.59 $158.36 $35.41 $141.64
$431.00 $0.00 $69.00 $0.00
$115.75 $0.00 $59.25 $0.00
$105.50 $316.50 $44.50 $133.50
$46.00 $0.00 $54.00 $0.00
$152.00 $608.00 $48.00 $192.00
$92.50 $92.50 $57.50 $57.50
$888.45 $0.00 $361.55 $0.00
$65.14 $0.00 $59.86 $0.00
$517.20 $0.00 $107.80 $0.00
$32.92 $0.00 $32.08 $0.00
$71.30 $0.00 $28.70 $0.00
$39.59 $0.00 $35.41 $0.00
$94.55 $0.00 $30.45 $0.00
$62.84 $0.00 $37.16 $0.00
$663.50 $0.00 $86.50 $0.00
$162.25 $0.00 $62.75 $0.00
$128.75 $0.00 $46.25 $0.00
$69.25 $0.00 $55.75 $0.00
$198.50 $0.00 $51.50 $0.00
$139.00 $0.00 $61.00 $0.00
$198.50 $0.00 $51.50 $0.00
$1563.55 $0.00 $46.45 $0.00
$2,2562.12 $0.00 $247.88 $0.00
$403.50 $1,210.50 $96.50 $289.50
$71.30 $213.90 $28.70 $86.10
$39.59 $39.59 $35.41 $35.41
$431.00 $0.00 $69.00 $0.00
$115.75 $0.00 $59.25 $0.00
$152.00 $152.00 $48.00 $48.00
$92.50 $185.00 $57.50 $115.00
$519.75 $0.00 $105.25 $0.00
$94.55 $0.00 $30.45 $0.00
$62.84 $0.00 $37.16 $0.00
$663.50 $0.00 $86.50 $0.00
$162.25 $0.00 $62.75 $0.00
$198.50 $0.00 $51.50 $0.00
$139.00 $0.00 $61.00 $0.00
$51.55 $0.00 $38.45 $0.00

54,303,589 Fé}'i,‘ffa’.'H)‘l

To GBBC To BMI
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$4,303.99 $1,721.01




FLAGLER BANK ACCOUNT:

4/1/2022

Previous disbursements

Deposits
Website

Refunds (1 order)

Automatic withdrawals for expenses

Balance as of 4/30/2022

TOTAL DISBURSEMENT

Year End Summary

$12,825.05
-$12,825.05
$6,025.00
$0.00° '
-$150.00
-$396.58
$5,478.42.

[Date

[Mthly GBBC [Total Deposit |[Running Total |

December 2021
January 2022
February 2022
March 2022
April 2022

May 2022

June 2022

July 2022
August 2022
September 2022
October 2022
November 2022
December 2022

$15,702.09
$10,937.93
$5,637.75
$10,759.87
$4,112.49

$23,315.00
$16,400.00
$8,250.00
$13,275.00
$6,025.00

Total Monthly

$47,150.13

$67,265.00

2022 Only

$31,448.04

$43,950.00

Page 2 of 2

$2,702,953.50
$2,719,363.50
$2,727,603.50
$2,740,878.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50
$2,746,903.50

Dishurse to GBBC

$4,303.99
-$99.00
-$92.50
$0.00
$4,112.49

Disburse to BMI

$1,721.01
$99.00 Monthly hosting fee
-$57.50
-$396.58
$1,365.93

[

%




